Posted at Village Hall on 12/30/10 at 4:00 PM

AGENDA

Village of Antioch, Lake County, lllincis
Municipal Buifding: 874 Main Street, Antioch, lllinois

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES; REGULAR MEETING - 7:30 PM
January 3, 2011

I. Call to Order
. Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Cub Scout Pack 191 Den 7
Hl. Roll Call
IV. Mayoral Report
1. Antioch Queen Portrait Presentation
2. Qath of Office - Officer Zachery Johnson

V. Citizens Wishing to address the Board (The public is invited to make an issue-oriented comment
on any malter of public concern nof otherwise on the agenda)

VI. Consent Agenda (ltems under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial
and will be approved by one motion. If any one board member wishes fo have a separale vofe on
any item, it will be pulled form the Consent Agenda and voted on separately)

1. Approval of the December 20, 2010 Meeting minutes as presented.

2. Approval of a Resolution for a Special Event Liquor License for the Village of Antioch for Winter
Wine Walk — Resolution No. 11-01.

VIl. Regular Business

3. Consideration of payment of accounts payable as prepared by staff.

4. Consideraticn of a Resolution Directing the Village Administrator to Distribute Funds from the
Utility Tax Fund to Pay Interest on Economic Recovery Zone Bonds — Resolution No. 11-02.

5. Consideration of a Resoclution Autherizing the Village Administrator to Accept a Grant Award
from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant
(AFG) program for the purchase of a New Fire Engine in the amount of $285,000 — Resofution
No. 11-03.

6. Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-3 of the Municipal Code of Antioch
Setting Special Tap-On Fees for the Clublands Subdivision — Ordinance No. 11-01-01.

VIIl. Administrator’s Report
IX. Village Clerk’s Report
X. Trustee Reports

XL Executive Session — Personne! and Pending Litigation.

Xll. Adjournment

ALL ORDINANCES SCHEDULED ON THIS AGENDA FOR FIRST OR SECOND READING MAY BE PASSED AT THIS
MEETING IF THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, BY MOTION DULY MADE AND SECONDED, BY MAJORITY VOTE OF THE
TRUSTEES IN ATTENDANCE, YOTES TO WAIVE ALL READINGS THEREOF AND THEN MOVES TO PASS SUCH ORDINANCES
ACCORDING TO RULE 11 OF SECTION 1-4-6 OF THE VILLAGE CODE AND ACCORDING TO LAW.

No vote may be taken on any item, which has not been listed on the Agenda for the meeting. Any matler not spacifically

listed on this Agenda, or brought up under "Other Business” may be discussed by Board members at this meeling, but a vote on the
matler shall be posiponed until the next Board meefing.



STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF LAKE

CERTIFICATE

1, Candi L. Rowe certify that | am the duly appointed Village Clerk of the Village of
Antioch, Lake County, Illinois.

| certify that the attached document is the Village of Antioch Board of Trustees Meeting
Agenda for the January 3, 2011 Regular Village Board meeting.

| further certify that this agenda has been prepared by me and to the best of my
knowledge and belief is identical to the agenda posted on the Village of Antioch web site at
www.antioch.il.gov.

DATED at Antioch, Illinois this 30" day of December, 2010.

SO AN
j_[ (‘)(9 0 A‘ﬁi’)‘)ﬁ\\

QQPO”"!?\ % ",

- ;. %‘3 60 ‘§ o Cw'\é ﬂp )
i o G i L. Rowe, vmage Clérk
\ »\89?. .“' ~t

!
)
.o

Posted at Village Hall on 12/30/10 at 4:00 PM k\{q;,'g -------
G



VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH
BOARD OF TRUSTEES; REGULAR MEETING
Municipal Building: 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL
December 20, 2010

. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Hanson called the December 20, 2010 regular meeting before the Board of Trustees to
order at 7:30 p.m. in the Municipal Building: 874 Main Street, Antioch, lllinois.

Il. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Hanson and the Village Board of Trustees led the Pledge of Allegiance.

. ROLL CALL

Following the Pledge of Allegiance, roll call indicated the following Trustees were present:
Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. Also present were Mayor Hanson, Administrator Keim,
Attorney Long and Clerk Rowe. Absent: Wolczyz.

IV. MAYORAL REPORT

1. Mayoral Proclamation; Ernest “Ernie” Slavik lll, Silver Star Award recipient — Clerk Rowe
read the Mayoral Proclamation honoring Ernie Slavik Ill who recently received his second Silver Star
Award for Gallantry in action June 19-20, 1967. Mr. Slavik Il was presented this second Silver Star
Award by Congresswoman Melissa Bean on December 12, 2010, 43 years after the battle. Mr. Slavik
briefly discussed his military experiences while stationed in Vietham and heroic acts also done by fellow
soldiers. He said that he has been an Antioch resident for over 37 years and that he was extremely
honored and proud to receive the Mayoral Proclamation from Antioch.

V. CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
There were no citizens present in the audience who wished to address the Board.

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
Trustee Crosby moved, seconded by Trustee Poulos to approve the following consent agenda
items as presented:
1. Approval of the December 6, 2010 meeting minutes as presented.
2. Approval of a Resolution accepting the Municipal Compliance Report for the Fiscal Year
Ending April 30, 2010; Resolution No. 10-116
3. Approval of an Ordinance Approving the Sign Variation for V-Land Development; Ordinance
No. 10-12-34
4. Approval of a Resolution Designating Certain Funds in its Water Fund Account as the
“Retained Earnings Fund” for Radium Removal Contingencies; Resolution No. 10-117
Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 4: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, and Crosby.
NO: 0.
ABSTAIN: 1: Jozwiak.
ABSENT: 1: Wolczyz.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

VII. REGULAR BUSINESS

5. Approval of an Ordinance for Special Service Area Number One Approving
Administrative Report and Amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2010 — Trustee Crosby moved,
seconded by Trustee Pierce to waive the first and second reading and approve Ordinance No. 10-12-
31 approving the Administrative Report and Amended Special Tax Roll for Special Service Area Number
One for Levy Year 2010. Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 4: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, and Crosby.
NO: 0.
ABSTAIN: 1: Jozwiak.
ABSENT: 1: Wolczyz.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

6. Approval of an Ordinance for Special Service Area Number Two Approving
Administrative Report and Amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2010 — Trustee Pierce moved,
seconded by Trustee Crosby to waive first and second reading and approve Ordinance No. 10-12-32
approving the Administrative Report and Amended Special Tax Roll for Special Service Area Number
Two for Levy Year 2010. Upon roll call, the vote was:

YES: 4: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, and Crosby.
NO: 0.

ABSTAIN: 1: Jozwiak.

ABSENT: 1: Wolczyz.

THE MOTION CARRIED.



7. Approval of an Ordinance Granting a Variance from Title 10, Chapter 14, Section 6
of the Village Code Related to Wall Signs (Taco Bell/NJB Operations PZB 10-03) — Trustee Croshy
moved, seconded by Trustee Sakas to approve as presented Ordinance No. 10-12-33 granting a
variance from Title 10, Chapter 14, Section 6 of the Antioch Village Code. Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 3: Poulos, Sakas, and Crosby.

NO: 1: Pierce.
ABSTAIN: 1: Jozwiak.
ABSENT: 1: Wolczyz.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

8. Consideration of accounts payable as prepared by staff — Trustee Jozwiak moved,
seconded by Trustee Poulos to approve payment of accounts payable as prepared by staff and in the
amount of $245,377.85. Upon roll call, the vote was:

YES: 5: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak.
NO: 0.

ABSENT: 1: Wolczyz.

THE MOTION CARRIED.

9. Village Board Safety Training — Safety training will be discussed at a future meeting.

Vill. ADMINISTRATOR’'S REPORT
No report.

IX. VILLAGE CLERK’S REPORT
No report.

X. TRUSTEE REPORTS

Trustee Sakas said that Director Dustin Nilsen recently passed the American Institute of Certified
Planners exam. He explained this is a national certification that is at the highest possible rank and
requires certain levels of expertise and letters of recommendations to qualify. Those present
congratulated Director Nilsen on achieving his AICP certification.

Trustee Pierce discussed the recently held Shop with a Cop program and said it's a great event.

Trustee Poulos discussed the “Make a Difference” program held at the Antioch High School. He
suggested that Board members who have the opportunity should attend one of the programs and see a
lot of good things being done by high school students.

Trustee Crosby gave a brief update on the fundraising efforts for Corporal John Peck.

Mayor Hanson wished everyone present a very Merry Christmas and happy New Year.

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Mayor and Board of Trustees did not go into executive session.

Xll. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further discussion, Trustee Pierce moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to
adjourn the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees at 8:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Candi L. Rowe, RMC/CMC
Village Clerk



Request For Board Action

REFERRED TO BOARD: January 3, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 2

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Village Clerk’s Office

SUBJECT: Approval of a Resolution for a Special Event Liquor License for the Village of Antioch for
Winter Wine Walk

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:

On January 3, 2011 the attached application was submitted to request a Class “E” special event liquor
license pursuant to Village Code 4-2-4 for the Village of Antioch’s Winter Wine Walk. This event is
scheduled to be held on January 22, 2011 from 1:00 pm to 4:30 pm at multiple locations located in
Antioch. The following locations do not have a current liquor license and asked for the Class “E” special
event liquor license; 924 Main Street, 902 Main Street, 896 Main Street, 891 Main Street, 913 Main Street,
345 Park Ave, 983 Main Street, 414 Lake Street

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Move to approve a resolution for a special event liquor license request from the Village of Antioch for
Winter Wine Walk to be held on January 22, 2011, waiving all fees.



RESOLUTION NO. 11-xx

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE
FOR THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH FOR THE WINTER WINE WALK

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (*Village”) is a municipality located in Lake
County, lllinois; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch is requesting a Special Event Liquor License
for the Winter Wine Walk event; and

WHEREAS, Winter Wine Walk is scheduled to be held on January 22, 2011 at

924 Main Street, 902 Main St, 896 Main St, 891 Main Street, 913 Main Street, 345 Park
Ave, 983 Main St, 414 Lake St, 921 Toft St, 389 Lake St, 881 Main St, 883 Main St, 899
Main St, 384 Lake St, 912 Toft St; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch is requesting that the fees for the special event
liquor license be waived,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of
the Village as follows:

On behalf of the Village, the Village of Antioch is granted a special event liquor
license for the Fall Wine Walk, to be held on January 22, 2011 waiving all fees.

PASSED this 3" day of January, 2011

AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 3" day of January, 2011

Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk



Request For Board Action

REFERRED TO BOARD January 3, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 3

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Finance

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $74,960.65

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

List of Accounts Payable for 01/03/2011
Invoices over $10,000 - Informational Report
Escrow Payable - Informational Report
Manual Checks - Informational Report

LS.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Move to approve payment of accounts payable in the amount of $74,960.65



Gl jo | abey

o000z [E10[ JopUIA

00002 18V-DAVIHG INVHIHIN

9r'sL fE30L JOPUSA

or'Gl HSYM dv2/adv.L SNIQTINON 12/208 S3TddNS ONILYHIdO 8955-028-060-008 SHHOM O1T80Nd UIMIS B I LYM

0Zv88°¢ 18101 JOPUBA

[AArA A 040 JIAAHIS 40 SAVA 0L oLLeel ININAYA LOVHINOD 88t5-115-060-001 SHHOM JINaNd TYHANTD
86'1€C 030 IVING3S 40 SAva 0L INIWAYL LOYIAINOD 88¥5-G.2-0L0-101 NOILVHLSININGY

002L 1830 JopUaA
0o'se FLOZ WYY 34! W10 1Sk §0G56S.E SOA7d INIVIN 05£45-0¥8-060-008 SHMHOM DInand HIAMIS B HILVM
00'ge 1102 ONITIIG 11D 181 008565.E S9079 INIVW 05€5-0¥8-060-008 SHAOM D019Nd HIMIS B ULV

00004 1101 J0pUaA

NIV SNLLYINIAZG ATHINOWIE

00'S61°L 1830 Jopuap
05°26G FOIAGTS TYNNNY 8290L 1L ININGINOI-TONVYNILNIVIN Z25€5-064-060-001 1014181d 3H14 TWHINID
05185 3JINGIS TYNNNY 8CO0L L ININGINDI-ZINYNILNIVIN 25e5-0r-050-001 . Jyid IVHINID

INNONY JONZ¥34dd ON-3OIOANI NOILdId083d LO0V-dX31O ININ.LAIVd4Ed aNnd
ININAVYd

LL0Z ‘e Alenuer - a|jqeled Sjunodosy
11 ‘yoonuy jo abejIp



Gl jo Z abed

00°00s [E10| Jopuap
aNndd 92v2-000-200-¥26

00°008

Z0°8LE°LL 12301 JOpUIA
S LFTL ALTIOYS LNIWLYIHL £2¥rSL0 DAS TWYNOISSIJ0Hd ¥3HLO 2£¥5-0v8-060-008 SHHOM DITENd HIAMIZS ® ¥ILYM
00°i51'2 AYHOONd INFWLYIH1IHd 2SO JAS TYNOISSIJOHd ¥IHIO 8E¥S-1#8-060-008 SUMHOM DMENd HIATS B HILVYM

$G'ELBL 1S8Y SNOILYY3JO dLMM LZrSLo OAS TYNOISS3J0Hd I3HLO 8e5-0r8-060-008 SHMHOM 211aNd HIMIS B HILVYM

00598 [E30 [ JOpUBA

00's9e H¥IAVIALS 11VS Z0LLIOY SUTYMIAIS LNIVIA ¥SES-G¥S-060-001 SHAOM DNgnd TYHANID

yevrs 18301 jopusp
00'G81 TIYW QYVANYLS 334 LINE3d £4221010C 3DVISOd Ze¥5-0L1-0L0-001 NOILLYHLISININGY IVHINID
00'g8lL I3 LINYFd L8083 8SVT10 Ls¥ld FAAATVAV A JOVISOd 2ev9-018-010-008 NOILYHLSNINGY HIAMAS ? UILYM

ER)AR ! g ALINLN Lgzloloe 3OV1S0d ¢e¥5-018-010-008 NOILYHLSNINGY HIMIS B 3 LYM
(o)

orels 1210} JOpUIA

0¥'S.LS IHOIIMM LVOTd 1d G2 S¥res ANINJINDI-TINVYNILNIVIA 25£5-0£8-060-008 SHHOM 211and HIMAS B U3 LY

INNOWYV JONIHF4dd ON-IDIOANI NOILdI®OS3d 100v-dX=19 INIJNLYVL3A anNnd
INIWNAVd

LL0Z ‘s Adenuer - ajqehed sjunoady
11 ‘yoonuy jo abejjIp



45144

18701 topuap

gl o ¢ abeg

4900

007005}

379V MNVL
L1 ATddNS

1BJC | JOPUBA

E6EYFOCLL
SLZrOelL

SHTOIHIA INIVIA
SIT1DIHIA INIVIA

1S€5-11L5-060-001

SHIOM O11dind
SYHOM O1dNd

IYHINID
TYHINTD

00°008
00°000°L

TYAOWSH 3341
TYAOWSY 334l

90600¢e
90600€

SANNCHD-LNIVIA
S1IFHISLNIYIN

G6EG-GP5-060-001
£6€6-6+5-060-001

SHHOM 2Iand
SHAOM DI1dNd

WHANID
IYHINID

0v'L06°C 1E]01 JOPUSA

€925 AYS 1SIQ ONOTIVYD0T  DAELSe0L0L OAS ANOHddA3L £2P5-0€8-060-008 SHAOM O17and UIMIS 2 HILVM
irvee AYS 1SId ONOT VYO0 2aELSeolol OAS INOHdIT3L £ZPS-06+-050-001 12141813 3did IYHINTD
LL°9L AMS 1SId ONOTTWI0T  DAELS90L0E FOIAHIAS IANOH4T1FL ECPSELL-0r0-00L JONWVNIS IVHINTD
$G'OC AYS LSId SNOTIAYO0T  2deL5e0L0L OAS INOHGIAL €2¥5-028-060-008 SHAOM DI1and HIMIS B HILVM
61621 AHS LSIT ONO VD07 OQELse0L0L OAS INOHJT 3L £2Pg-0£8-060-008 SHHOM DINand HIMIES ® d31VM
S6¢e AYS 1S1Q ONOT/IVO0T  Daglse0i0l OAS INOHJITEL £ZPS-c1€-090-001 03d % S¥dvd TYHINID
evar AMS 1SIJ ONOIIVI0T  OdELSa0101 OAS ANOH43 1L eChe-a2i-010-00L NOLLVHLSININGY TYHINIO
6¥'9l AdS LS ONOTVYI0T  20Cise010l OAS GNCHJEN3L £2¥5-0v8-060-008 SHHOM Odnd HIAMIS B JILYM
¥0'901L AYS 1810 ONCTIVOO0T  DdELse0L0L JOAS INOHdE131 £2PS-LEP-080-00L d401N0d IVH3INTD
67 0vY AYS 181d ONCIIVOOT  Odelse0lol OAS INOHLITAL €2¥5-115-060-001 SHUHOM OI'19Nd TYHANAD
Ze’L6 AYS 1S1d ONO VD01 2aglssilolL OAS INOHJIT3L £2rS-vEe-080-001 034 % SHHvd TWHINIO
FO¥aC AYS 1SId ONOIMVYD0T  20£1590101 OAS INOHJd3T3L £Z¥S-21£-090-001 O3 ¥ SHdvd IVHINID
¥0'L6 AXS 1S1d ONOTIVI0T  D2d61590101 OAS INOHdT13L £2¥5-912-0.0-001 g97d TYHINTIO
8¥vee AdS LSId ONOT V20T DaELS90L0L OAS INOHdITAL £TYS-LI-050-001 AL34VS JHid AYHINTID
9e¥LL AYS 1SId ONOTWO0T  Oagihss0lolL OAS INOHd33L £2FS-0T-080-001 30170d TYHIANID
L1'8E AMES ISId DONOTYD0T  OAELS90L0L OAS SNOHJTT3L £2¥5-512-020-001 ONIYIINIONT IVHIANID
69'¢8l AdS I1SIT ONOTIVO0T  DJdelsg0Lol OAS INOHJITIL eZPS-0L1L-0L0-001 NOILYHLSININGY TYHINTD

INNONY
ININAVL

ERIEREEET]

ON-JOI0ANI

NOILdI-MOS3A

LIOV-d X319

LL0Z ‘s Alenuep - ajqelAed SjUNoo2Yy

71 ‘yoonuy jo abe|lIA

ANINLYVYd2d




G| Jo  abed

05°2€9 [Ej0 Jopuap

0G'2E9

SLAIHS 1L NOLLYNAYHO L/BET S3MddNS ONILYIADO 896G-9Z#080-621 32110d AL3JVYS 21dand

S6°682°L JEIG L JOPUBA

69121 £20/60818L #1200V 03A €206 21410313 - ALILN 9z¥s-0£8-080-008 SMHOM OIMENd H3IMAS ® HILYM
K72 POOTBSEPOL # 100V 034 y00r6 2(ELDT3 - AN 97¥G-115-060-001 SMHOM Dand TWHANISO
66'001 1000620662 # 100V 03d L0006 218103713 -~ ALIMILN 9TPG-11G6-060-001 SHMHOM 211gnd TYHINTD
59'82 000.8L0VLZ £ 100V 030 00048 DIYLOTTE - ALMLLN 9TPG-0£8-060-002 SHHOM DIMENd YIMIS § HA1vm
§5'.E G00S9091L8L # 109V 030 S0059 DIYLD313 - ALNLLN 92¥5-028-060-008 SMHOM JMANd  HIMIS B HILVM
LETLL ZYOLS0E28S # 100V D3A TrOls 2IE103713 - ALNILN 9TrS-0£8-060-008 SHHOM DIMENd  HIMIS ? HILVM
Y LG 990051€04L # 100V 03U 99005 DI¥LOT1T - AN 9Z¥5-028-060-008 SMHOM OITENd  YIAM3S B UILVM
06’701 110008062 # 12DV D30 LLO0S 21Y103 13 - ALMILN 92vS-1LS-080-00L SMHOM O11and TvdINTD
ov'280'e 9e0ZYLEFOC # 100V  03A SE0ZY 2110373 - ALMILN 9Z#5-028-060-008 SHHOM DIMENd YIS 2 HILYM
LLYee 6L00P02228 # LO0V 61L00¥ 2IYL03 T - ALIILN 92¥s-0£8-060-008 SMHIOM 2MENd HaM3IS ® HILVM
T LY FPO6E06L50 # 10OV D34 #H0BE SIHOIT LS - ALIDRLOFTS 1Z¥5-9¥5-060-001 SYHOM DINand TYHIANID
6615 SPOSSIZOLO # 100V DA Sp08E SIHDIT 1S - ALIDI™LOATT 12¥5-G¥S-0680-001 SUHOM D178Nnd IYHINDD
€LL01 £20CELERST # LOJV 03 £T0¢E 214103713 - AN 9Z¥S-0£2-0680-008 SHHOM OTENd Y3IMIS 8 daLvm
Loge NOILVLS L4171 13Mar  £20840€082 D1HL0T T3 - ALMILN 9Z¥G-0£8-060-008 SHYOM O8N »IMIS B HILVYM
PL6LG JOHD SANNHOf 9P0110£8GL #1020V 23A 9011 DIHLOTIE - ALLN 9Z¥S-0£8-060-008 SMHOM DIENd H3IM3AS § HILVM
80°299'L L T13M OPOLLOESSL #1009V D3Q SF0LL 2HHLD373 - ALNILLN 9Z¥5-028-060-008 SMHOM DITENd ¥IMIS % HILVYM
LFESL 9l0LL06E6L #1100V  D3A 9LOLL 2112313 - ALNLLN 9Zr5-022-060-008 SMHOM OI1ENd  HIMIS B HILYM
S9°€LL Z0060€051Z # 100V $34 L00060 OIF10313 - ALTILN 9Z¥S-0£8-060-008 SMHOM OITENd  HIMIS 2 UILVYM
0L¥G B1L09L00LLL # 100V 61090 SIHOIT 1S - ALIDIYLOE3 1Z¥5-6¥S-060-001 SHIOM DENd IvH3INID

9Ly 18301 Jopusp

gl £691000€200LLLL8# 100V O3JA £69100 OAS 3NOHJT131L mN.vm-cm.v,omo-oo L 321N0d IVHINID

INNOWY JONFHIdFS ON-IOI0ANI NOILdINOS3A LIOV-dX3-19 ININLAVCdIa anNnd
INIFNAVL

1102 ‘¢ Arenuer - ajqehed Sjunoosay
11 ‘yosonuy Jo abefjIA



Gl Jo g abed

0009 18701 Jopuap

0009 1¥0ddNS TO0HIS HOIH 04820 ONISILIIAAY EEPSE1E-080-001 239 B SHHvd TYHINGD

vO0Li fejot Jopuan

S6'0Z1 SWHO4INN  LGPLGOLLG SIWMNOINN  69G5-0EK-080-001 30I10d TVHENTO
6067 HILSTOH ONDIOOT  SGELS0LLS SWHOSINN  6965-0E7-080-00 BLLENE|

058y [E101 J0pUBA

0S8Ly 230 FIAHIS TVANNY 0039€09 SOAE INIVYIN 05€5-115-060-001 SHHOM DMdNd TYHANTD

vest {€]01 JOpUIp

reGl SWHOIINN 40 ONIddIHS S01959Z¢€L SWHOLINA 6955-0€#-080-001 d401170d TYHINID

00°L0L je1a L JopUsAp

00°20L S1HVd divdad LINVHOAH gLECEEE WALSAS ALNILN INIVIN  95£5-028-060-008

005t 1E30] JOpUIA

ONILIIN ATHLNOW

05°8r 1EJO.| JOPUBA

058y LL/8E/Z - OL/L2/21 ADINA3S BTECTE SNOILYOIdNd 1/65-0€¥-080-00} 30M0d TYHINID

INNORNYV JONIHF438 ON-JDI0ANI NOILLdIHOS3a 100Vv-dX3-19 ININLIVYdIa NN
IN3IINAY

LLOZ ‘¢ Atenuep - a|geled Sjunoosody
1 ‘yoonuy jo abe|IA



G1 4o g abed

£6vLL 18301 JOpURA

ov'l8 SAMAdNSVINIY H3000 oLglzel S3Nddns 301440 G965-06+-050-001 LoLSIa 3414 TYHANID
oislzl S31ddNS 301440 El=|E| TYH3N

6L 08L°E [e301 JopUdA
0g'ELL H313aW 96810%2 SH3II3IN 9655-028-060-008 SHHOM OINENd HAMIS % H3LYM
6981 ONIY-0O WALS 9829/€2 WILSAS ALITLLN INIYIN 95£5-028-060-008 SHHOMDIMGNd  HIMIS ® ¥3LVM

00'8r0'e o313 §/29.EC SH3LIN 9655-028-060-008 SHIOM 2Nand HIMIS B HILVYM

LLZSE. [e10] Jopusp

06'18L'e FALVY4INS WNNIANTY QLPZBLEININIYIHL/SAMNDdNS TVIIWIAHD €455-0¥8-060-008 SHHOM OFand HAMIS B UILYM
e JAK> STVOIW3HO MINg BEFLBLEININLYIHL/SIdANS IVIUNIHD mk.mm-om.w.ooo.oom SHAOM DINaNd HIMIS ® W LVM

y0°8.8 18101 JOPUBA

60°LLZ gv1 4304 s3ddNS 0eG.Le0L S3NddNS ONILYHIHO 8955-098-060-008 SHHOM O1Tdind HIMIS B HALYM
56'009 JIAOWEA LSNH E6LLE0L S311ddNS ONILYH3d0O 8955-028-060-008 SYHOM DITand HIMIS ® YLV

ve'Li [e30] Jopuapn

AvaH IHOIM 1Od  L6PECLPLPE - S3ddns ONILYH3IdO  8965-028-060-008 ] w¥m0>>o_..“m3n_

00526 18301 J0PUBIA

00°G26 HOLINOW/JOL X830 129089 NGZE$>ININGINDT §645-1€#-080-001 321104 TYH3INGD

LINNOKNY FONIYUIJTH ON-IDIOANI NOLLJIIDS3A 130V-dX3-19 NIETRESL- S E ] anNnd
ANINAVYd

11L0Z ‘¢ AMenuep - o|gehed sjunoosay
11 ‘ysonuy jo abejjip



Gl Jo / abed

66°6.8 [E30] JopUsA

00'¥Pi SIWHOHINN €LOELS SWHOLINN 695G-0£¥#-080-00¢ 221N0d IYHINTID
05Zol SINHOLINN 0 ONIddIHS (TR AR SIWHOLINN 6865-0E+-020-001 321M0d TWHIANTD
00vS SINYOLINN 6e¥ZLG SINHO4LINN 6955-0€t-080-001 301704 TYHIANID
05091 SWEOLINN fois L TARY SINHOLINN 8955-0€+-080-001 321N10d TYH3INIO
66°LEC SINHOLINN Q9¥CLS SIWHOLING 6955-0€4-080-001 331104 TVY3INID
00°421 SWHOLINN Z9vels SWHOCINN 6955-0E¥-080-001 32110d AVHINGD

6678 1810 [ JOPUBA

6678  3TJOHS ALZAVS HOd INTWISHNGNITY 0L0¢ 230 SWHOLIINN 6955-0¥8-060-008 SHHOM 2178Nd HIMIS B dILVM

06°c81 1E]0 J0PUSA

Addllvd 9580001¢ SITAHIA INIYIN

00°0L1 [E10| 4OpUBA

00°0LL dIHSHITNIW $3NQ TYNOISSIAOUd

o0'sie je1of Jopusp

SHIAATOH LVOT1d A1ddNS dlvd3d

00°SET 1810 Jopuap

00'ged HOLOW H3ONY LOgese S3TOIHIA LNIVIN 1GES-1 1G-060-001 SMHOAM DI1dnd

LINNOWY JONIF™343d ON-3OIOANI NOLLdRIOS3a LI0V-dX3-1D NI LAVL3d anNnd
AINIWNAVYd

L10Z ‘e Aenuer - ajqehAed Sjunoddy
71 ‘yoonuy jo abe|iA



Gl jo g afied

0002} fej0 J0pU3BA

05291 S1uvd ¥Hivd3d eriee SITOIHIA INIVIN LSES-06%-050-001 10141810 3414 TYHINTD
05291 S1dvd divdad [ 4 %43 STIDIHIA LNIVIN LGEG-0FF-0G0-001 ENE TYHINTD
05°L¥S S14vd divd3d STA A STTOIHIA LNIVIN 15€5-06¥-050-001 LO-LSIT FHId TYHANGD
0S'2¥S SLHYd Hivd3d 62126 SATIHIA LNIVIN 16E5-0vH-060-001 Eb=1k] IYHINIO

05°9rZ 18301 Jopusp

05°Gv2 HSVYM JTOIH3A G001 STTOIHIA INIVIN L5EG-1 15-060-001 SHMHOM 2I1dind IVHINID

L16°8LL €30 JOPUBA
S3TddNS/SLHvd 2008886 S3T0IHIA LNIVIN FGES-116-080-001

1576 12301 topuap

Sovd ST3IvHOIN

ISNIdX WYHO0Hd

257551 1ejol 1opusp

<5951

$9°950°L [erof Jopuaa

S9'950'L a3xid ¥31vdH  99Ze$SO04 STIT1DIHIA INIVIN 1SE6-116-060-001 SHIOM D1dNd IVHINID

INNOWY JONIFHIATH ON-ZIDIOANI NOILdI™OS3A 100V-dX3-19 ININLAVYdEd anNnd
JINIFNAYL

LL0Z ‘c Atenuer - ajqeded sjunodoy
A1 ‘ysonuy jo abejjip



Gl Jo 6 ebed

ZrvioiiiL [BJO | JOPUBA
LG'GED'S LIvs »ing 28965 1ve 898S-G¥5-060-001 SHAOM D1Nand TYHINID
§9'8/6'G 17¥S M1Nd 0S08¥S 1vS 8955-5¥5-060-001 SHAOM 211and

TYHINID
i0i

A %14 1E30.L JOPUBA

009 133 Nvd GL002 S3ITddNS ONLLYE3d0 8945-028-060-008 SHYOM DJINand HEMIS B J3LYM
geeL S1NOdSNAMOA 09002 S9d79 LNIYIN 05€5-115-060-001 SHHOM DINand TYH3INTD
68’Le NIXS4dNL 96661 S9dTd INIVIA 0SE5-115-060-001 SHHOM JINENd TYHINAD
08’L¥ S3ddNS dOHS vre61L S90d7d LNIVI 05€4-1 15-060-001 SHHOM D1TdaNd TYHINID
6L LL SY3IAOD 1TNO 8TL6I INININDI-ZTONYNILNIVIA Z2GE5-0€8-060-008 SHIOM O1dnd HIM3S B H3ALVM
86°6¢ HI1VIH NV cLi6L ONINIVAL LEES-Z1E-090-001 03d ¥ SHdvd IYHINTO
[A x4 4" HAANIIAD SVO 81481 LNININDI-IINYNIENIYIN 2S€5-0€8-060-008 SMHOM OINand HIAMIS % HILVYM
66¢ did1s 39dNS L1281 S3Nddns 321440 §96G-115-060-001 SMHOM OINgnd IYHaANDD
99'G LINM YIWATTOL X4 29481 ININLINDI-IONYNILNIVIN Z5£5-0+8-060-008 SHHOM 2I1anNd HIMIS ® HI1VM
¥8Cl SIAMHANS dI-WLS DONI-NS 66581 SOaig LNIVIN 05€5-028-060-008 SHHEOM OIdNd HIMIS ® HILYM
er've CCLehLEE #1000V 215681 S37ddNS ONILYHILO 8955-061-0S0-001 JOIM1SIA Fdld TVHINIO
18 o A [AARARAN AL CL58l $3AMNddNS ONILYAIdO 2955-0v-050-001 Jdid IVHINTID
yeel SAMHdNS ALMHOV INJWLYIEL 2es8l $3N4dNS ONILYYIL0 8855-0v9-060-008 SHHEOM ONgnd HAMES ® HILVM
£9°cl di¥ 1S ONIYAENS 604981 SOAa19 INIVIN 05€5-028-060-008 SHAOM OITENd HIMIS B HI1VM
LEPS S700L 10881 S3IddNS ONILYH3dO 8955-028-060-008 SMHOM DIN8Nd HIMIS B I LVM
866°C STO0L 10981 STTIHIA LNIVIA 16€5-1 15-060-001 SHHOM DiN9nd “TYH3IN3TD
L0 ADUVYHD NINLIY 86281 S31TddNS ONILYHId0 8955-11$-060-001 SHHOM O1780Nd TYHINIO

00'vL9 Je301 JOPUIA
oo'erl ONIMdWYS LINE3d $30dN FAR 4°T4 OAS TYNOISSEH40Hd JdHLO 8erE-018-060-008 SHHOM DIT78Nd HIMIS R HIALVM
00°82% ONITdNYS 1INH3d S3AdN 0EESE DAS TYNOISSII0Ud YIHLO BEVYS-01+8-060-008 SHHOM OI't1dNd HIMIS B HILYM

AINNONWYV
LININAVL

FONIHIIIH ON-IDIOANI

NOILdI-FOS3ad

133V-dXd-19

1L0Z ‘s Aenuep - ajqeled sjunoosoy

71 ‘ydsonuy jo abe|IA

AINIJNWINVYd3a



Gl Jo 0} abed

00°PEL jEJO | JOPUSA
00°29 JOIAYIS ATHLNOW ZHSSh SOOT9 INIVW  0SES-06-050-001 LORLSIA 3™ TYHIANTD
00°29 IDIAYIS ATHLNOW ZPSSy SOQIEINIVIN  0SES-EPP-080-001 JNEEVEERE TVHINID

18JO L JOPUIA

A2IT0d F3JAQTdNE

[e10.1 JOPUDA

0290LE

J19VYAVYd HM SNI 3411

£022-000-200-001

§3ANA dIHSY3EW3AN 1102

sanp L1L0Z

§L00L'2 JEJO | JOpUSA

09°89 4809826820 # LOOV 03d L8098 SVO - ALMLN 0eve-115-060-001 SHHOM Onand TVHANTO
og'LslL 000189098S # 100V D30 800018 SYD - ALNLLN 0e¥G-1 15-060-001 SHIOM 2INdnd TYHINIO
el’ese L000E890LLL # 100V D30 L000L8 SVO - ALINILN 0ebS-L1S-060-001 SHHOM 217gNd IYHINIO
g8l 100018909 # LOOV 230 100018 SV - ALINILN 0e¥5-028-060-008 SHH0M DI18Nnd HIMIS B HILVM
L8621 000189000 # 100V 03A 000018 SYO - ALININ 0EPS-115-060-001 SHHOM O11and IVHANTO
06’62 0001 8800LE # LOOV 03000018 SYO - ALITLLN 0¢¥5-028-060-008 SHIOM 2INMdnd HIMIS B HdLVM
SG'8rL 8000L¥065LL #LD00V 030 8000L¥ SVO - ALINLLN 0e¥s-119-060-001 SME0M 2N8Nd TVH3INIO
S6°9LS 000L¥89E6S # LODV 034 0001y SVO - ALNLLN 0e¥S-115-060-001 SMHOM O1INand IYHIANIO
¥9°'96¢C 0 0001-78-26-00 #1000V 03A0PPILEE SVYO - ALITILLN 0evS-06¥-050-001 LOMLSIa 3HI4 IYHANID
§9'g6¢ 0 0001-+8-26-00 #L0JV  030A0FFYLEE SVYD - ALINILN 0e¥S-L¥¥-0S80-001 AL34VS 314 TYH3INTD
6.61E SO00LELOLOY #1000V gooole SVO - ALITILN 0gvS-115-060-001 SHHOM D1TdNd TWHIANTD
80gr 000LeLevel # 1OOV 234d odole SYO - ALITILO 0ePS-0€8-060-008 SMHOM O1dnd HIMIS B HILVM
LZce 8P0LLE8SPEC # LOOV  DJA 8vOLiT SY9 - ALMILN 0ev5-0£8-060-008 SHHOM DINand HAMIS B Y3LYM
86°¢e¢e POEEL998YC # 100V 034a veeel SVO - ALMLLN 0£¥Se-119-080-001 SHIOM OINand TvHaINID
L6°00L 0001L-¢G-19-8L # 1OV 230 000001 Sv9O - ALILLN 0EPSS.Z-0L0-L0L NOILVHLSININGY DONIHIVL LOd30

INNOWY
LNIWNAVL

JONF¥Iddd ON-ITIOANI

NOILLdIMOS3d

100V-dX3-19

L1L0Z ‘e Aaenuer - ajqeled sjunoaody

11 ‘yo0nuy jo abejjIA

INIJNLIVY43d



Gl jo || sbed

06°501 [B]0 1 J0pUBA

06'501 NIWNDITY AN 14 092 # ISNIADIT 891 1ZESIVAD SITOIHIA INIVIN 1GE5-115-060-001 SHAOM 21INaNd “IVHANID

E£LP6S [E}0 1 JOpLUDA
EL'ePe SHIATOH/STDAVE NI-G688201 SIWHOSINN 695G6-0E¥-080-001 30110Cd YHINTD
00'6¥2 SH3AICH F90va NI-65£8201 SIWHOLINN 8955-0ct-080-001 32110d TYHANTD

ZLLEL'L JEIOL JOPUSA

ZLlEL'L 143 31T YNNILNY H3MOL 91896 ININLINDT-FONYNILINIVIA 25e5-5¢i-010-00L NOILVALSININGY TYHINID

§5°V65 16101 Jopuap
Sl'vee DNNYYAAH HOLOW 8oLt STTOIHIA LNIVIN LSE6-115-060-001 SHMAHOM Oindnd TVH3INIO
08'69¢ HIANNILS JOLON SrOLYY S31DIHIA LNIVIN 16€6-115-060-001 SHHOM 21NaNd TYHANID

26851k [Bj0 | JOPpUaA

26'851 HOLY £66¢L) ININWJINDI-FTINYNILINIVIN €5E5-115-060-001 SHHOM DN8Nd IYHINID

05°299 2301 J0pusAp

6F ¥ SATddNS/S1HVYd L8/8E0-20 SITOIHIA ANIVIA LSEG-11S-060-001 SMHOM 21Tand TYHINIO
LeLe SAMNJIdINS/S1Evd 0698€0-L0 SITOIHIA LNIVIN 1GEG-115-060-001 SHIOM DNENd TVHINID
P& 0S S3ANddNS/SLAdvd £4/88€0-20 STTIIHIA LNIVIN 15€5-1.15-060-001 SHAOM JMand TYHINTO
91°s01 S3NddNS/Sldvd +L98E0-20 SITOMHIA INIVIA 16£5-1 15-060-001 SHAOM D1T7aNd TYYUINIO

AINNOKNYV JONZIUI4Id ON-IDI0ANI NOILdI™IS3a 130V-dX31D LININLAVH3A anad
LININAV

L10Z ‘e Aenuep - ajqeled SjUNo02oYy
1 ‘ysonuy Jo abejjIA



Sl o 21 abed

oovFi JEI0] JOPUDA

00 v WOW/NINGY L0L6L00198 # LOTrOdd S0ZLL OAS ONIFIIANIONT 9e¥5-028-060-008 SMAHOM OITdNd HIMIS B HILVM

81184 [E30] JOpU3A

19°€84 12301 JOpUDA

L9e8L S3117ddNsS LPO0E S3NddNS ONINYITO £985-115-060-001 SHHOM DI'1dNd TVHINIO

L6°EY 210 JopuUap

INNOWY JONFRIF43 ON-IOIOANI NOILLdI¥OS3a LIODV-dX319 LINIJNLHVYd3A anNn4
LINIINAVY

LLOZ ‘s Alenuer - sjqeAed Sjunoososy
i ‘yoonuy jo abejIa



S6°cg

je10 sopusp

Gl J0 g1 abed

S6°E8

NOILdIHOSANS J3INHSLINI

NOLLYHLSININGY

£g12¢ [E10] JOPUIA
LO'GE} SAMNddNS 301440 ZYB6EZLL08 $3ddNS 301440 §9S5-064-050-004 12141S1a 3M1 IWHANTD
LO'9EL S3IMddNS 30i440  Z¥665TL108 SIMddNS FDI4H0  §985-0¥¥-060-001 Y14 IWHINID

16°G5

S3iddNS 3440

SGEE0LOVIE

S317ddNS 391440

§995-C1£-090-00)

244 8 SHAIVd

TYHINIO

216592 [ejof lopuap

18’92 AYS INOHL 1130 oLoZZlel OAS INOHd T133/439vd ¥Z¥S-8¥€-080-001 234 B SHuvd TWHIANTO
9Z'0cy A8 INOHA 17130 oLoggieh OAS INOHd TT130/dd9vd ¥ZvS-1 1$-060-001 SHMIOM DITdnd IYY3INTO
L& LEY AYS INOHJ T130 oLozzlel OAS SNOHd T133/439vd ¥Z¥ae-S¥5-060-001 SHMIOM OIN8Nd IYHINTD
FA R ad AYS INCHJ 1132 oLogzicL JAS ANOH 1130/439Vd ¥evs-0¥8-060-008 SHHOM DIPand HIMIS B HHLVM
L8'60T NS INOHA 1133 01022121 OAS 3INCHJ T133/439vd ¥ePs-028-060-008 SHHOM 2I19Nd HIMIS B HILVM
[EAAA AYS INOHJ 112D 0Loggiel OAS INOHd T130/439Vd ¥ers-¢1L1-0v0-001 JONYNIL VHINGD
8829 A8 INOHd 1130 oLogeLel OAS INOHJ T130/439vd ¥ere-S2t-010-001 NOLLYHLSININAY IVHINID
89'7e AHS INOHd 1130 oLocelel OAS INOHd T135/439vd ¥eFe-G11-0L0-001 NOILVHLSININGY WHIANIO
1¢'ee AYS 3NOHd 1130 oLozZLel OAS INOHd T130/A39vd ¥e¥S-101-0L0-001 NOILYHESININGY TYHANAO
90°09e AYS ANOHJ 1130 olLocelel OAS INOHd 1130/d439vd ¥erS-0L1-010-001 NOILVALSININGY TYHIN3IO
EG¥LL AdS INOHd 1130 (1120 AY A OAS INOHJ 1133/4390vd ¥Yerg-06v-050-001 1O14LSia FAid IVHINTD
PSvLL AYS INOHd 1130 oLogelel OAS INOHd 113039V d ¥eye-LP-0G0-001 ALFHVS T TYHINID
68'v6 AYS INOHA 1130 0lLozeiel JAS ANOHd T130/439vd ¥erGs-L12-0L0-001 g7d TYHINID
£6°0F AYS INCOHJ 1130 (R ARAR OAS INOHd 1130/ 439Vd ¥eyG-21€-090-001 O3y ® SHYvYd Ivd3INTO
SE20L A8 INOHd 1130 VR AARAN DAS INOHd T130/439vd Yere-g12-080-00) ON[IFINIONT IVHEINTO
60'8¢ AYS INOHd 1132 oLozzlel OAS ANOHd T130/439Vd ¥ers-912-0,0-00! gZd TYHENIO
LL0LG AdS INOHL 7130 oLoezLel OAS INOHd 1130/430vd ¥ZP5-0E¥-080-001 32010d

1INNOWY
AINIWNAVd

JONFHT43H ON-3II0ANI

NOLLdI™DS3ad

LOOV-dX3- 19

L10Z ‘e Arenuep - a|qeled sjunoososy

1 ‘ysonuy jo abejia

ININLAVL3A



Gl 40 1 abed

VL0V [E30 L JopUsA

90°96 MIVAA INIM - ANSSLEADJS ASNIIXI WVHD0Hd 8¥¥S-8¥E-090-001 23 7 SXAvd IVHIANTD
a8'vLlL S3aNddNS 230A €LLEMd $31NddNs 301440 §955-1 1.5-060-001 SHYOM DINand IYHIN3ID
o6'cr S3NddNS 030a €LL8Md S$31ddNS 301440 §965-1 15-060-001 SHHOM D1dNd TYH3INID
oo'le SNVAr 03d eiltMd SWHOJINM 695G-55-060-001 SHE0M O11and IYHINID

SNVHO0Yd SYEVd € NILvHdd0O 034 8 SHAYd

8955 L€-090-001 TVHINID

GLESEL 1e301 Jopuap

L9 1H0ddNS HHOAMIIN g€81T SININAV LOVHINGD 88¥5-06t-050-001 1014.181a i TYHINID
88'LL 1H0ddNS ¥HOMLIN gegLe LININWAYL LOVHINOD 88G-0¥¥-050-001 3414 TYHIANID
00°08E 1¥0ddNS d0LMS3a zeele WILSAS ¥ILNAWOD LNIVIN LGE5-0€¥-080-001 300170d WYINDD
LE6G 1H0ddNS HHYOMIAN AN A SLININAVYd LOVHINGD 88¥S-06-050-001 12141S1a 3uid TYHINID
8E°65 140ddnsS MYOMILIN GeLLe INTWAYA LOVHINOD 88Y5-0rr-050-001 EXIE THINTD
5T'192 140ddNS 40.L X833 12412 WILSAS HILNDNOD INIYIN 28E5-0¥-080-001 Erelgle’ IVHANTD
00'0¥ ASNION 29912 WILSAS HALNJNOD LNIVIN 16£5-0£¥-080-001 301104 TYHANIO
00'¥EZ 130ddNS 401 yMs3a 99912 WILSAS HALNJNOD LNIYIN 26£5-0£1-080-001 30M0d TYEINTD
0025 SIADIAYAS ¥3aWIo3a 60912 ININAYL LOVELNOD 88¥5-21£-090-001 039 ® SHHV TYHINID
0022 LHOddNS HHOMLEIN #9912 SINIWAYC LOVHINOD 88¥G-06¥-050-001 LOMLSIa I TWHINID

00'¢e 1¥0ddNS HHOMLIN NIWAVA LOVHINOD 88v5-0by-050-001 3414 IYHEANID

68°109 jEjol Joplap

68109 $31.1.L09 A09/LIX 31LYHdSOHA £€.L26¢ S3NddNs ONILYE3d0 8955-0+8-060-008 SHYOM DIMand HIMIS

[ 4% 1BJO [ JOpPUBA
62'e0e 39N1 390H1LS ¥v310 00-2582L STTOIHIA LNIVIA L9€5-116-060-00L SHAOM 2IMaNd TYHINID
eg'eel S31Tdd4Ns/sLyvd 00-ceLcl SITHIA LNIVIN 16€5-115-060-001 SHMHOM 211180Nd

INNOWY JONFHIA3H ON-IDIOANI NOILLdIMOS3a L00V-dX3- 19 ININLVdHA anNnd
AININAVA

110Z ‘¢ Aenuep - a|qefied sjunosoy
A1 ‘yoonuy jo abejIp



Gl jo G| abed

G9°096'V.$ :[e10] puelS)
0L°¥98 [e101 JOPUSA

0Z'v02 HILSVYIN ONIY 437 €96L¥1r0C S3AMddNS ONINV3TO 1966-119-060-001 SHAOM OITdNd IVHINID
' Y10 G6

ALY |B10 JOPUBA

vZ Lo $713MOL ¥3dvd 0-20¥S996 S3TddNS ONINYITD £965-115-060-001 SMHOM DIN9Nd TYHINIO

LNNONY JONFd3438 ON-3DIOANI NOI1dI~¥0s3d LO2V-dX3- 192 NEITRENEE ) anNnd
LNIWAV

110Z ‘¢ Atenuep - ajqeled sjunodoy
71 ‘yoonuy jo abe(Ip



L jo | abed

:[ej0l puels

[E10.1 JOpUBA

INMOWY JONIJHI43H ON-IDIOANI NOLLdI-™OS3A 12DV-dX3- 19 IEITER-CLE anNnd
LININAVL

LLOZ ‘S AMVNNVF - Hoday Jeuonewojul 000°0L$ J9AQ SO2I0AU|
71 ‘ysonuy jo abejjIA



| J0 | abfed

00°00S$ :Jejo] puels)
00°005 [EJO | JIOPUBA
00°00% ANNZIY LISOJ3A NOIS aNN43y JF19VAYd SLISO43A 92¥2-000-200-726 MOYOST

LINNOIV YTl

LNIWAVd JONF™YIIIH ON-3DIOANI NOLLdIMDS3a 130V-dX31D ININILHVdad anNnd

LL0Z ‘S AMVNNVYI - Hoday Jeuonewloju] ssjqeled molosy
71 ‘yoonuy jo abeIA



£1°962Z°¢ rejoy

60°¥re [ej01 JOPUIA

00°06¢°2 {£]O] JOPUSA

00°06£°2 1 8# AVd3 QLOT/ET/ZL JONYHASNI TV.INIQ 1025°0£v°080°00L
¥0°299 [Bj0] JCPUDA

0299 86109 QLOZ/ELZL SONILIIIN NI £0¥g-0L L-01L0-001

Junouny JuslWiAed |isquin ¥oauD | ol juswiked | eieq Xo8uDd | 8pi) odlold | e T juawpedaq

s)y29Yn |enuey
I ‘§I0DuY Jo ASE[[IA

LLQg/es) BiEqQ




Request For Board Action

REFERRED TO BOARD: January 3, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 4

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Administration

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution Directing the Village Administrator to Distribute
Funds from the Utility Tax Fund to Pay Interest on Economic Recovery Zone Bonds.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Tax Act of 2009 created a new category of bonds
called Recovery Zone Bonds (“RZBs”) to assist economic development in distressed areas
throughout the United States. A benefit to issuers of RZBs is a 45% interest subsidy from the
Department of Treasury.

The Village met all the legal requirements related to RZBs, and on June 7, 2010 the Mayor and
Board of Trustees approved an Ordinance authorizing the issuance of $2,975,000 Taxable
General Obligation Bonds (Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010 to finance the
costs of constructing and installing certain improvements to capital infrastructure.

Utility Taxes were pledged to pay the principal and interest due on the bonds and the Village
Board approved an Ordinance abating the levy of taxes. Staff is requesting the approval of a
transfer of $82,913.73 from the Utility Tax Fund to pay the interest payment due on January 15,
2011.

On October 18, 2010 staff filed Form 8038CP with the IRS requesting reimbursement of 45% or
$37,311.18 of the interest payment due. On receipt of the 45% subsidy offered by the
Department of Treasury, $37,311.18 will be transferred back to the Utility Tax Fund.

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
1. Resolution

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
Move to approve a Resolution Directing the Village Administrator to distribute $82,913.73 from
the Utility Tax Fund to Pay Interest due on the Series 2010 Economic Recovery Zone Bonds.




RESOLUTION NO. 11-xx

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ADMINISTRATOR
TO DISTRIBUTE FUNDS FROM THE UTILITY TAX FUND
TO PAY INTEREST DUE ON ECONOMIC RECOVERY ZONE BONDS

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities implemented taxes on natural gas and electricity in late
2009, and

WHEREAS, at the same time as the corporate authorities implemented those taxes, they
pronounced an intention to exercise strict oversight on expenditures from those revenues and to
carefully limit their use to specific causes that the Board may deem sufficiently worthwhile or
important and as such, the Village Finance Director has maintained carefully segregated
accounting therefore, and

WHEREAS, at the time these measures were adopted, the corporate authorities could not predict
that there would shortly be a federal economic stimulus package known as “Economic Recovery
Zone Bonds” that would become available, and

WHEREAS, at such time as those bonds were announced by the federal authorities, the
corporate authorities held due and proper meetings and adopted appropriate resolutions to take
advantage of the said bonds, intending, among other purposes to invest in significant capital
projects, including, without limitation, additional road improvements and possibly rebuilding the
community’s swimming pool, and a total of approximately $3,000,000.00 was provided to the
community through the bonds, and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the said bonds require interest to be paid on an annual
basis, with the first such installment in the amount of $82,913.73 becoming due on or about
January 15, 2010, and

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities deem the payment of interest on the said bonds to be
something that would be appropriate to be made from the Utility Tax Fund, because there will be
tangible and long range benefits to the community therefrom,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, as
follows:

SECTION ONE:  The corporate authorities declare that there is good cause shown for an
immediate allocation of a portion of the Utility Tax Fund and that therefore the Administrator
and Finance Director are specifically directed to arrange for the payment of the sum of
$82,913.73 from this fund to pay the interest due on the Economic Recovery Zone Bonds as
described hereinabove.

SECTION TWO:  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage.



PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, ILLINOIS,
ON THIS DAY OF , 2011.

ATTEST:

LAWRENCE M. HANSON, MAYOR

CANDI L. ROWE, VILLAGE CLERK



Request for Board Action

REFERRED TO BOARD: January 3, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO 5

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Fire Department

SUBJECT: Approval of a resolution to accept a grant award from Federal Emergency
Management Association (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) program

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:

A recent Notice of Grant Award has brought forward the opportunity for the Village to accept a
grant to assist in the replacement of a fire engine. In May of 2010 the Fire Department submitted a
grant application for consideration by the Federal Emergency Management Association (FEMA) to
assist in the replacement of a fire engine. Unit 2124 is currently on reserve status and is a 1973
Pirsch pumper that has reached the end of its serviceable life. This reserve engine was due for
replacement in FY 2011 or as funds became available. At present Unit 2124 is our only reserve
engine and is the one of four total pumpers. Front line units are a 2002 Freightliner at station 1, a
1994 Spartan at station 2 and a 1990 Pierce at station 3. The typical life of a pumper is 20 years in
service.

This grant award gives the Antioch Fire Department a total of $285,000 to be used in assisting with
the purchase of a replacement fire engine for Unit 2124. Under the terms of FEMA AFG grants, the
Village and the Fire District must agree to share a portion of the cost for the vehicle purchase. In
their original submittal, fire department staff had requested consideration for funds totaling
$425,000. However, the FEMA administrators reduced the amount of the award total to $300,000
with a proposed match of $15,000 (five percent) by the recipients. Based upon current delivery
prices for new fire engines, it is expected that a new vehicle would cost approximately $400,000.
Under the terms of the program, the Village and Fire District would commit to cost sharing the
difference above $285,000 for a new vehicle. Using the $400,000 as a maximum estimate, the
amount of $115,000 would be shared by the recipients.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at present. The passage of the resolution is required to qualify for
the final award by FEMA to receive an AFG grant. Once final approval is confirmed, an amount
not to exceed $115,000 would be shared between the Village and the Fire District. Said cost sharing
amount would not be payable until final delivery of the vehicle. Delivery would be estimated to
take place in May 2012.

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Resolution to accept the FEMA AFG Grant award in the amount of $285,000

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Move to approve a resolution supporting the acceptance of the Federal Emergency Management
Association (FEMA) 2010 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) award to assist with the purchase
of a new fire engine for the Antioch Fire Department.




RESOLUTION NO. 11-xx

Resolution Authorizing the Village Administrator to Accept a Grant Award from
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters
Grant (AFG) program for the Purchase of a New Fire Engine
in the amount of $285,000

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake County, lllinois;
and

WHEREAS, the Antioch Fire Department operates and maintains a fleet of Fire Engines; and

WHEREAS, one of the Antioch Fire Department Engines has reached the end of its
serviceable life and was being considered for replacement in 2011; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department staff had applied for and has received notice of a grant award
pending under the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant
(AFG) program to fund $285,000 to be used toward the purchase of a replacement Fire Engine; and

WHEREAS, the grant award requires that the recipient provide a cost share of the total
purchase price of a replacement Fire Engine; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the replacement Fire Engine is expected to be $400,000 in total; and

WHERAS, the cost of the replacement Fire Engine above the amount of the grant award shall
be shared equally by the Village of Antioch and the First Fire Protection District of Antioch Township.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of
Antioch to authorize the Village Administrator to accept the grant award of $285,000 the from Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) program.

ADOPTED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois
on this 3rd day of January 2011.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor

Attest:

Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk



Antioch FD, IL
2010 AFG Narrative Statement — Vehicle Acquisition

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND BUDGET

The Antioch Fire Department (AFD) is a volunteer/paid-on-call department with 90 firefighters covering a
rural area of 35 sqg. miles located in Lake County, IL. We are located approximately 40 miles north of
Chicago and 40 miles south of Milwaukee. We operate out of three (3) unmanned stations. According to
the 2000 US Census, the population of our area is 19,442 residents. We have automatic-aid agreements
with the eight (8) communities around us for response with either a Ladder or Engine. In addition, we are
part of the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) whereby we respond to any of the 28 towns in Lake
County, the NE half of McHenry County, and all of Kenosha County, WI. This increases our mutual aid
response area to 1174 sq. miles and a population of 975,487.

The Department has the following apparatus: three (3) engines, three (3) tenders, one (1) squad, one (1)
ladder, four (4) brush trucks, one (1) fire investigation unit, one (1) dive van, one (1) boat, one (1) rehab
unit, two (2) command cars and three (3) utility or pool vehicles.

Our Training Department provides a driver/operator program that meets or exceeds NFPA 1002(Standard
for apparatus driver/operator), and our department S.0.G’s mandate the use of seatbelts whenever a
vehicle is in motion. Furthermore, our response S.0.G. and Safety Policy require any driver/operator of a
vehicle to adhere to local traffic laws when responding to, or returning from calls etc.

In 2009, the department responded to 767 calls. There were 23- structure fires, 12- vehicle fires, 30-
grass fires, 71- Haz-Mat Calls, 133- service calls to assist local agencies or citizens (separate from
Mutual Aid/Auto-Aid), 127- Auto Accidents, 32-EMS/BLS responses, 49-Other calls and 284- good
intent/false alarms. We provided Mutual Aid 31 times, and received aid on 17 occasions.

In the spring of 2005 as part of its formal adoption of the National Incident Management System (NIMS.),
all employees have received training to the appropriate level, and our personnel are State of lllinois
Firefighter Il or 1ll, which meets and exceeds NFPA 1001.

We have responsibilities for the following critical infrastructure:
e The Metra North Commuter/ Wisconsin Central Rail lines carrying 6.5 million passengers yearly.
o Route 173, Il- DOT figures the Average Daily Traffic count (ADT) is 15K vehicular. / 12K trucks
¢ Route 83 with an ADT of approx 14,000 vehicles & trucks per day.
*Each of these two (2) roads serves as evacuation routes for Milwaukee and Chicago cities
e large aviation fuel pipeline carries aviation fuels (capacities withheld for security reason)
e atank farm ( 150,000 gals.) fuels (identified on State Police Terrorism Target list)
e Zion nuclear power plant with two (2) units (1,040mw) ea.
e the Midwest Power Generation plant (789mw),
e two (2) sub-stations (255mw),
o the Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency which serves198,119 total pop
e We have a 12-mile stretch of 1-94 (6-lanes) ADTC of 98,200 vehicles and 12,500 trucks
e The Six Flags theme park is also in this area serving 2.6 million visitors last year.

As an organization, we try to provide our personnel with the necessary tools & equipment to protect them
from the hazards they encounter on a daily basis. The AFD has a long tradition of serving the people of
the community however; as an organization, we realize a responsibility to protect the long-term health



and safety of our personnel as well. This commitment includes the tools we provide our members with to
do the job we ask them to do. We go to great lengths, and expense, in training and equipping them with
SCBA , proper gear and apparatus capable of mitigating almost every hazardous situation, however as
our community grows we find ourselves behind in the area of apparatus & response capabilities.

The Department is seeking assistance to purchase a 2010 N.F.P.A. 1901 certified Engine to serve as a
front line response vehicle; to replace our 1972 Pirsch Engine with an open-cab which we currently run
as a first out piece of equipment. Since 1972, the department has utilized a Pirsch Engine with a 1000
gpm pump, 500 gallon tank and limited compartments as part of our first due response to incidents within
our community. Original plans called to replace this vehicle nearly 10 years ago; however, funding levels
made this impossible. In addition, our area has experienced a tremendous amount of growth, requiring
the building of additional stations; which resulted in an increased use of our 1972 Engine. This engine
lacks many of the basic safety items found on current apparatus including an enclosed cab; engine
braking, and transmission/pump interlocks to name a few.

In an effort to extend the service life of this Engine as well as operate within our limited budget,
refurbishment was undertaken; however, the lack of available funds prohibited our agency from enclosing
the cab; which is a requirement of NFPA 1901 Annex D. In addition, the company has long gone out of
business, and parts are no longer available; making repairs lengthy and expensive. The vehicle does not
have nor are we able to install Department of Transportation (DOT) mandated 3-point seat belts.

The vehicle is not equipped with safety interlocks for pump or transmission disengagement, which could
allow the vehicle to move with the parking brake set. The vehicle is not equipped with an Antilock Braking
System (ABS) required on all fire trucks as of 1996, nor is it equipped with an Auxiliary/Secondary
Braking system required on all fire trucks over 36,000 pounds.

One of our greatest concerns as a department centers on the fact that NFPA 1901 sets forth a
requirement that vehicles with 15 years of service shall be placed in reserve status, vehicles with 20yrs of
service shall be retired, and those vehicles built prior to 1979 are considered obsolete!

Our 1972 open cab engine is placed into service with greater frequency due to an increase in the amount
of time our front line apparatus are out of service for routine maintenance and repair; due in part to the
overall age of our fleet(21yrs). We recognize that we should be replacing many of our vehicles, however
due to numerous factors beyond our control; the pool of available funds is simply not there.

From what the department has been able to determine the Engine currently in use is one of the last, if not
the last unit of its type and manufacture still operating in Northern lllinois or Southern Wisconsin.
Currently, slides of this model are used in Fire Officer | class as a “Remember when we used to operate
like this!”

When this engine was purchased our department ran a limited amount of calls, and the fire service, as a
whole did not respond to the wide spectrum of calls we do now. As a result the amount of equipment is
limited and despite sending it out several times to a local apparatus vendor for improvements, we find
ourselves unable to meet basic mission critical functions, such as Rapid Intervention Team functions,
Haz-mat responses, as well as Search and Rescue on the scene of a fire.

Due to the diverse geographical area, we protect our front line apparatus are required to be self-sufficient
for the first several minutes as travel distances and lack of response personnel affect our operation as
well. From auto accidents to water rescues, car fires or structure fires; our vehicles are designed to meet
the needs of protecting the personnel who respond on them as well as the type of call they are
responding to. Our 1972 Engine lacks the cabinet space, safety equipment, water, & pump capacity to
meet these needs.



Additionally our area has experienced an increase in large commercial / light industrial facilities that
exceed our current ability to provide the required fire flow.

Project Budget:
2010 Engine:

All NFPA 1901 Required Equipment

E.P.A. Tier 4 motor (ISL 425)

PTO Generator (minimum 10 KW) with extensive vehicle lighting capability (minimum 750 watt floodlights)
Centrifugal single stage pump (min. 1500 gpm)

Cross-lay beds for 2 %2 and 1 % inch preconnected lines
Hose beds for both 2 %2 and 4 inch large diameter hose
Booster tank (750 gallons)

Wheel well air bottle compartments

Rescue style compartments to allow for maximum storage
Rollout equipment trays

Interior cabinetry for EMS equipment

Extrication Equipment

Total Costs = $425,000
Minus 5% matching funds =$21,250
TOTAL GRANT FUNDING REQUESTED = $403,750

If awarded funding we will follow all local procurement policies and if cost savings are realized those
funds will be handled in the manner prescribed by the AFG program guidance. We are cognizant of the
required paperwork and reporting requirements of this grant and will file all paperwork in a timely manner.

Additionally, we fully understand the requirement to place the unsafe vehicle out of service as set forth
within the program guidance.

FINANCIAL NEED

We have tried to be fiscally responsible with our tax revenues, all the while continuing to plan in order to
keep pace with our growth. Our community has grown from just under 6200 residents to over 19,442 in a
little over 3 years time. This population figure was based upon the special census in 2006, with current
projections showing an additional 3400-4100 residents currently living in our community. This growth,
coupled with the lack of impact fees and other financial methods commonly used to counter the effect
were non-existent up until the past year or so. The new Village Manager has placed safeguards in place
to insure that any future development shares the financial impact it will have by holding the developer to a
higher standard. In addition, the tax revenues that are typically associated with this type of growth are not
fully realized for upwards of two full years for commercial, due to the manner in which the state collects
taxes.



We have built two (2) sub-stations since 2000 at a cost of $2.7 million. The third station required the
department to take on a sizeable amount of debt service using bonds; which are scheduled to be retired
in 2013. We have placed personnel on duty 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, at our Main Station. The
opening of these stations required re-deployment of our apparatus and additional Tenders to address
rural water supply issues. As a result, we have no reserve apparatus, and the Tenders are set up to
function in that capacity, lacking the necessary hose and equipment to function as an Engine.

With the tremendous growth, our area is experiencing, as well as information received from a consultant’s
report; a fourth station and the apparatus for that station is the centerpiece of our Capital Improvement
plan over the next 5 years. This need for a station and apparatus comes at a time when our departments
like many across the nation are doing more with less, as tax revenues continue to decline due to the
decrease in property values. In an effort to begin to pay for these improvement the department has set
aside a very small amount of funds; approx. $20,000.

The construction of our stations, increase in staffing to a 24/7 operation, and need for a fourth station are
large capital expenditures, ones that were necessary to ensure the quality of service our citizens have
come to expect from the department. This type of expenditure would be a burden on any department,
especially one of our size and limited resources.

Outlined below are budget figures for 2010:

INCOME

Tax Based Revenues $1,295,143

EXPENSES

Payroll- $714,471

Payroll liabilities & benefits- $140,627
Debt Service- $65,500
Maintenance-$63,325

Utilities- $55,250

Fuel- $16,000

Training & Travel Expense-$27,440
Professional Services-$53,300
Operations/Equipment-$76,600
Capital Expenditure-$ 20,000
TOTAL EXPENSES =$ 1,268,725

The State of lllinois froze the tax rate in 1993 and at the time, our amount collected based on the
Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) was the lowest in the county. This did not greatly affect our department
at first in part to the relatively low number of calls we ran at the time and the growth mentioned earlier
was not even on the horizon. This tax cap allows us to collect a higher amount; however, we must go to a
referendum in order to collect the maximum allowable. We have made four (4) unsuccessful attempts with
the most recent attempt in February of 2008, where the referendum was defeated by 55% of voters
opposing the $30.00 dollar tax increase on their taxes for one year. This defeat will greatly affect the
amount of funding available to provide even the basic equipment as the operating costs continue to rise.
With the failure of the referendum, our department examined additional areas whereby we could make
cuts to eliminate an additional 20% from our budget to meet rising personnel costs, with the addition of



another crew. The Board of Directors have informed us they do not want any more referendums placed
on the ballot due to the current economic situation; with unemployment on the rise and foreclosure rates
climbing even faster.

COST BENEFIT

The benefit of the requested grant funding project for a Engine far outweighs the cost; the cost of a
firefighter's life and the financial and emotional impact that it has on a family, an organization, and
community. It is our goal as well as the AFG program to prevent firefighter deaths and injuries. Providing
for the health and safety of firefighters in dangerous working conditions with an NFPA 1901 compliant
Engine designed to support and meet our needs accomplishes this goal.

This grant will also greatly benefit the diverse population we protect; from the elderly population; in our
Senior Housing Facilities which consists of condo/duplex units all with gusset plate construction. It will
also benefit our youth; including our two High Schools(3 story wings with a total population of 4500
students), multiple grade schools and junior highs, and various religious facilities and organizations &
private schools. From a regional standpoint, this grant will benefit neighboring agencies, departments,
and communities. Our current Engine responds to our neighbors for fire alarms, target hazards, structure
fires, and multi story (highest is 8 stories) buildings.

Granting this request offers cost benefit to our department by assuring that we can conduct a safe fire
ground response. This improves efficiency which cuts down on fire damage losses and aids in preventing
injuries which are costly ot us in terms of Workmen’s Comp. claims and premium increases and saves
these costs from ultimately being passed on to our citizens as operating costs increase. Proper and
efficient mitigation of fire losses and proper SAR also offers cost benefit in reducing civilian injuries and
deaths through proper SAR and in controlling fire damage losses to control the financial impact
consequences to our citizens.

We are promoting fire and all-hazard safety and preparedness as well as firefighter safety and health. We
believe our request supports a regional approach, promotes interoperability, and allow us to respond as
an all-hazards emergency service. The AFG guidelines clearly state that protecting the health and safety
of the public and firefighters from fire and related hazards is a primary goal. Our equipment requests are
aimed at improving the safety of not only our firefighters but also the safety, health and survivability of our
customers, the citizens we serve.

The department has set aside some funding for equipment purchases and although it is insufficient to
cover this entire purchase, we have committed that funding to meet our cost share requirements.

If you take our first due population figures (19,442) and multiply that by the 20-year service life of the
equipment (388,840) and divide that figure into the total project costs $403,750 the cost per person of this
request is $.96 per resident. However when you take into account a percentage of our surrounding
communities population; the cost drops considerably and protects an additional 30,000 residents.
Furthermore, our role within the MABAS system on a local & regional level within a three county area, the
total population served by funding this project exceeds 900,000 residents in our area.



OPERATIONAL OUTCOMES

In the early development of nearly every town, the economic lifeblood of a community was in its
downtown area; which is why essential city services were located in the area as well. Our community
developed in much the same way, and while our downtown will always remain a vital part of our identity
and is important to our community, so shall the area east of town where our commercial corridor and new
housing exists.

If our town were to experience the loss of the car dealerships, big box retail such as Wal-Mart or
Menards, the effects on our local revenue stream would have an immediate impact. The Village of
Antioch is just beginning to see realize the benefits of growth, spending a great deal of time and effort to
insure that the businesses coming into town are consistent with the needs of the community. It is
therefore all the more reasonable and prudent to evaluate the mechanisms in place to protect this area,
evaluate the risk and provide additional capabilities where they are warranted. In other words, if one of
the businesses listed above were to experience a fire, the impact to our community would result in, and is
not limited to an immediate loss of revenue, loss of jobs and possibly a loss of the business all together. If
we had knowledge this loss of revenue or jobs were to occur prior to the event, what course of action
would we take as a community to prevent it?

The Antioch Fire Department believes this is a reasonable request that goes directly to providing for the
safety of our communities first responders, and we hope the reviewers will review this request favorably.

In closing, the Antioch Fire Department would like to thank the DHS/ FEMA/USFA and Office of Domestic
Preparedness for their ongoing support of America’s first responders



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

FiscAL YEAR 2010

Assistance to Firefighters Grants

GUIDANCE AND APPLICATION KIT

APRIL 2010

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY



Title of Opportunity: Assistance to Firefighters Grants

Federal Agency Name: Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA)

Announcement Type: Initial

Dates: Completed applications may be submitted as early as Monday, April 26, 2010,
but must be submitted no later than 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time on Friday, May 28,
2010.

Additional overview information: The Fiscal Year (FY) 2010 Assistance to
Firefighters Grants (AFG) remains largely unchanged from the previous year’s program.
In FY 2010, the program will remain focused on firefighter life and safety as well as the
safety of the public the firefighters serve. Applicants who demonstrate that their request
will have a direct effect on life and safety will receive the highest consideration.



Procurement Integrity

Through audits conducted by the Department of Homeland Security’s Office of
Inspector General (OIG) and through the Assistance to Firefighters Program Office
grant monitoring, it has become apparent that some Assistance to Firefighters Grant
(AFG) recipients have not adhered, or are not totally adhering, to the proper
procurement requirements when spending grant funds. Anything less than full
compliance with Federal procurement policies jeopardizes the integrity of the grant as
well as the grant program. Below, we have reiterated the Federal procurement
requirements for fire departments and emergency medical service (EMS) organizations
grantees when buying goods and services with Federal grant funds. DHS will include a
review of grantees’ procurement practices as part of the normal monitoring activities.

Competition: All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that
provides, to the maximum extent practical, open and free competition. Grantees are
expected to promote competition and ensure advantageous pricing by soliciting bids
from multiple vendors. Purchases shall be made from the vendor whose bid is
responsive to the solicitation and is most advantageous to the grantee when price,
quality, and other factors are considered. Grantees may use their own procurement
procedures, which reflect applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided that
the procurements conform to applicable Federal laws and standards. Grantees who fail
to adhere to their own procurement policy, or otherwise fail to fully “compete” any
purchase involving Federal funds, may find that their expenditures will be questioned
and subsequently disallowed.

Documentation: Grantees are required to maintain and retain backup documentation
such as bids, quotes, and cost/price analyses on file for review by Federal personnel.
The required documentation for federally funded purchases should include
specifications, solicitations, competitive quotes or proposals, basis for selection
decisions, purchase orders or contracts, invoices, and cancelled checks. Grantees who
fail to fully document their purchases may find that their expenditures will be questioned
and subsequently disallowed.

Specifications: Specifications developed for solicitations shall clearly set forth all
requirements that the bidder shall fulfill in order for the bid or offer to be evaluated by
the recipient. However, those specifications may not be so narrowly constructed or
contain features which unduly limit, restrict, or eliminate competition unnecessarily.
Grantees may, when developing their solicitations, list factors that will be used in their
evaluation of proposals that are submitted, as long as those evaluation factors are not
found to limit competition. Finally, grantees cannot impose in-State or local
geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals.

Applicants and grantees are encouraged to obtain product information from vendors in
order to be more informed about the items they plan to purchase. However, grantees
may not use specifications obtained from vendors for any solicitation with Federal grant
funds if the specifications would be found to be restrictive. It is the grantee’s

i



responsibility to assure that vendor specifications are not used in a manner which would
result in restricting or limiting competition from other vendors of similar products.
Additionally, if a vendor or manufacturer drafts, writes, edits, critiques, or provides any
direct consultation on a grant application, that vendor or manufacturer cannot submit a
bid for that purchase. Likewise, if a vendor or manufacturer drafts, writes, edits,
critiques, or provides any direct consultation on a specification to be used for the
solicitation for the purchase of a specific product, that vendor or manufacturer cannot
submit a bid for that purchase. See Conflicts of Interest below.

Grantees shall, on request, make available to DHS pre-award review and procurement
documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for bids, independent cost
estimates, efc., if 1) the purchase specifies a "brand name" product or 2) the proposed
award is to be awarded to other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed bid
process. Grantees found to be using proprietary, or otherwise limiting specifications,
may find their expenditures questioned and subsequently disallowed.

Personal and Organizational Conflicts of interest: In order to ensure objective
vendor performance and eliminate a real or apparent unfair competitive advantage,
vendors who develop or write bid specifications, requirements, statements of work
(including the grant application), and/or requests for proposals (RFP) shall be excluded
from competing for such procurements. Vendors may provide product information to
grantees for consideration and use during the grantees’ product evaluation and drafting
of solicitation specifications. However, it is the grantees’ responsibility to assure that the
specifications used are not proprietary or unduly limit competition. Additionally, no
employee, officer, or agent of the grantee shall participate in the selection, award, or
administration of a procurement supported by Federal funds if a real or an apparent
conflict of interest would be involved. A conflict of interest could arise when any of the
following conditions exists:

a) An officer, employee, or agent of the grantee has a financial or other interest in
the vendor selected for the procurement.

b) Any member of the grantee’s officers’, employees’, or agents’ immediate family
has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the procurement.

c) An organization which employs a grantee’s officer, employee, or agent is a
vendor or has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the
procurement.

For the purposes of this program, we consider volunteers of an organization and grant
writers to be employees, officers, and/or agents of the grantee. As such, no volunteer
or member of an organization or anyone involved in the application for funding can
participate in, or benefit from, the procurement if Federal funds are involved. Grantees
that purchase items with grant funds from vendors who employ any of their
volunteers/members will have to document how they avoided a conflict of interest during
the procurement process (i.e., specific details regarding how the members/volunteers
removed themselves, or how they were prevented from participating in the process).
Grantees who fail to fully document their purchases may find that their expenditures will
be questioned and subsequently disallowed.

il



CONTENTS

L0 1 YT i
Procurement Integrity........ccoevniiiii i
Lo 0 =Y o = 1
Part |. FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION........cccooiiiiierre e 3
A. Federal Strategy .........ccccommmmimiiiiis 3
B. Priority Development Process.........cccciiiiiniissmmmsssnrrnn s 4
C. Funding Priorities .......cccccemmimiiiiisncccsssssssss s 5
1. Fire Department Priorities...........ccooiimininsn s 5
2, Nonaffiliated EMS Organization Priorities ..........cccccccmrrrirerennnn. 15
Part Il. AWARD INFORMATION .......cooiiiiiiiiciccsssmmmmnnnrs s s s e s s e s s e e s s s s s s mmmmmnnns 24
A. Award Period of Performance .........cccommimmmmmmeeessssiininssss s 24
B. Available FUNING ... 24
C. Specific Funding Parameters..........ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiccicniiiiseeeseesnnnneeeee 24
D. AWAKAS ....... . s 26
Part lll. ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION .......eeeecmmrrer e rr e e e e e s s s s e s s s 28
A. Eligible Applicants..........ccooi s 28
B. Ineligible Applicants..........ceeeiiiiiii 288
C. Cost Sharing......cccceeeiiiiii e —————— 289
D. Allowable Expenses and Cost Restrictions for Fire Departments.....30
E. Allowable Expenses and Cost Restrictions for
Nonaffiliated EMS Organizations ..........cccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiissssnsnnnens 36
F. Other Allowable COStS...........ccccciiiiiiiiiiirrrr e 40
G Reasonableness of a Request............cccoiiiiiiiiiinie s 43
Part IV. APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION.........cocoiiiiiiiiiineene 45
A. Automated Grant Application.........cceeeeiiiiiiiiiir 44
B. Application ProCess ... 45
C. DUNS NUMDET ... e s s s e 45
D. Project Period.........ccooiiiiienrrrrrr e 46
E. Application Details..........ccoiiiiiiiiiii e ——————————— 46
F. Project Development...........cccmmimimiii s 47
1. Fire Department ... 47
2, Nonaffiliated EMS Organization............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisisnnnnnnnnes 49



3. Regional Projects ........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiseesen s 50

Part V. APPLICATION REVIEW INFORMATION ........miiiieeieeeeeesssse s msmmnnnnes 53
A. Prescreening ProCess ... 54
B. Peer ReVIeW ProCess.......ooiiiiieeeeesiis e s s 53
C. State Strategy and Communications Technical Review...................... 56
D. Anticipated Announcement and Award Dates.........cccceereeemmennnncininnnn, 56
Part V. AWARD ADMINISTRATION INFORMATION.........ccoemiiiiiiririecccnssmmnnnnees 57
A. Award Procedure............ciiiinnniesesss s 56
B. Grantee Responsibility..........cccoeiiiiiiii 57
C. MONItOriNg .ccceiiiiii e —————————— 61
D. Grant Closeout ProCess.........cccccuiiiiiiinimnnnnesssssssssss s sss s snssssnes 61
E. Financial Reporting Requirements ...........ccommimiimmicsccnscinnnnennnennens 61
Part VII. FEMA CONTACTS ....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiissssssssssssssssssssssnsss s s s s s sssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnnnnes 63
Part VII. OTHER INFORMATION — Excess FUNAS......ccccccvviiiiiiiiiiissccccscsmnneens 7



PART I.

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY
DESCRIPTION

Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG) provide financial assistance directly to fire
departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations to enhance their capabilities with
respect to fire and fire-related hazards. The authority for AFG is derived from the Federal
Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974 (15 U.S.C. §§ 2229 et seq.), as amended.
Congress appropriated a total of $390 million for the FY 2010 AFG (Public Law 110-329).
Our primary goal is to help fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations meet
their firefighting and emergency response needs. AFG seeks to support organizations
that lack the tools and resources necessary to more effectively protect the life and safety
of the public and their emergency response personnel with respect to fire and all other
hazards.

The purpose of this package is to provide an overview of the AFG, the formal grant
guidance, and the application materials needed to apply for funding under this program.
Also included is an explanation of DHS requirements for implementation of a successful
application. Our job at DHS is to provide clear guidance and application tools to assist
applicants. Our customers are entitled to effective assistance during the application
process and transparent, disciplined management controls to support grant awards. We
intend to be good stewards of Federal resources and common-sense partners with our
first responder colleagues.

A. Federal Strategy

The AFG Program is an important part of the Administration’s larger, coordinated effort to
strengthen homeland security preparedness. Of particular significance are the National
Preparedness Guidelines and their associated work products. The National
Preparedness Guidelines are an all-hazards vision regarding the Nation’s four core
preparedness objectives: prevent, protect, respond and recover from both terrorist
attacks and catastrophic natural disasters.

The National Preparedness Guidelines define a vision of what to accomplish and a set of
tools to forge a unified national consensus about what to do and how to work together at
all levels of government to effectively respond to all hazards. First responder participation
is integral to the Guidelines’ success. DHS expects its first responder partners to be
familiar with these national preparedness guidelines and to consider these guidelines
when assessing their needs and developing their grant requests.



B. Priority Development Process

Each year, DHS brings together a panel of fire service professionals representing nine
major fire service organizations to recommend funding priorities and other implementation
criteria for AFG. This criteria development panel is charged with making
recommendations to DHS regarding the creation and/or modification of previously
established funding priorities, as well as developing criteria for awarding grants. The nine
organizations are:

Congressional Fire Services Institute (CFSI);
International Association of Arson Investigators (IAAI);
International Association of Fire Chiefs (IAFC);
International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF);
International Society of Fire Service Instructors (ISFSI);
National Association of State Fire Marshals (NASFM);
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA);

National Volunteer Fire Council (NVFC); and

North American Fire Training Directors (NAFTD).

The Department considers each recommendation made to it by the criteria development
panel and this document reflects the Department’s implementation of those
recommendations with respect to the priorities, direction, and criteria for awarding grants.
All of the funding priorities for the FY 2010 AFG are designed to address the following:
first responder safety, enhancing national capabilities, risk, and/or interoperability.

The specific criteria for our highest priorities for each of the funding areas are set forth in
Part I. Section C. Funding Priorities of this guidance. No one funding area is considered
a priority over the others; therefore, the lists are not in any particular order.

C. Funding Priorities

AFG funding priorities differ for fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations.
Please read the guidance document with this in mind, and make sure that you are
researching the appropriate sections for your organization.

1. Fire Department Priorities

The AFG governing legislation requires DHS to take into account the benefit to be derived
from the costs of the grant activity when considering each application for award. DHS
has determined that a risk-based focus achieves this cost-benefit consideration and that
an applicant’s probable frequency of need and use (of the items or materials being
requested) as well as the level of population protected by the applicant are both
measures of risk as well as indicators of the benefit that could be derived from an award.
Therefore, for each activity below, DHS will provide a higher level of consideration to



applicants with significant levels of incidents and to applicants who protect large
populations relative to other applicants, regardless of the type of community served.

The criteria development panel has recommended that DHS make a distinction between
“‘new missions” and “new risks.” A department or organization takes on a “new mission”
when it expands services into areas not previously offered such as a fire department
seeking funding to provide emergency medical services for the first time. A “new risk”
presents itself when a department or organization must address risks that have
materialized in the department’s area of responsibility, for example, the construction of a
chemical plant. A department or organization taking on “new risks” will be afforded higher
consideration than departments or organizations taking on a “new mission.”

The criteria development panel recommended that the AFG continue to emphasize the
importance of training in the FY 2010 program with respect to fire departments. As such,
the FY 2010 application for fire departments will contain questions regarding the
applicant’s current training level and interest in attaining higher levels of proficiency. The
questions will not affect the preliminary screening of an application (the screening process
is discussed fully under Part V of this guidance) for the FY 2010 program, but the
questions and answers will be available for consideration by the peer review panelists in
their evaluation of the application.

Requests for Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear, and Explosive (CBRNE)
equipment and/or training will be evaluated by the peer review panelists relative to the
critical infrastructure the applicant protects. Critical infrastructure includes any system or
asset that, if attacked, would result in catastrophic loss of life or catastrophic economic
loss. Critical infrastructure includes the following: public water and power systems, major
business centers, chemical facilities, nuclear power plants, major rail and highway
bridges, petroleum and/or natural gas transmission pipelines and storage facilities,
telecommunications facilities, and facilities that support large public gatherings, such as
sporting events or concerts.

Additionally, training, equipment, or other initiatives that would have an immediate impact
on the life and safety of firefighters and the public will be provided higher consideration
than initiatives whose benefits will not be realized in the near-term. Specific rating criteria
and funding priorities for the FY 2010 AFG Grant activities are provided below following
the descriptions of this year’s eligible program areas. The rating criteria, in conjunction
with the program area description, will provide you with an understanding of what
information we are seeking about your proposed projects.

a. Fire Operations and Firefighter Safety

Five different fundable activities are included in this program area: firefighter training,
firefighting equipment acquisition, firefighter Personal Protective Equipment (PPE),
firefighter wellness and fitness, and modifications to fire stations and facilities. You may
apply for as many of the activities within this program area as you deem necessary.
There are no bonuses or penalties for applying for only one activity or for multiple



activities; however, applicants requesting multitude activities may have a more difficult
time providing a succinct justification for all the projects. Among other considerations
iterated below, all applications submitted under Fire Operations and Firefighter Safety will
be assessed based on the frequency of use (call volume), the effect on the community
(population protected), and the effect on firefighter safety. Applicants that demonstrate
that their requests will have an immediate effect on life and safety of the firefighters or the
community will receive the highest consideration.

All fire department activities must be applied for under the Fire Operations and Firefighter
Safety program area, including fire-based EMS training or equipment. Fire-based EMS
training and equipment are eligible under the appropriate activity, e.g., firefighter training,
firefighter equipment, etc. — NOT under EMS.

Equipment requested under AFG must meet all mandatory regulatory requirements, as
well as any national and/or DHS-adopted standards, in order to be eligible for purchase
with grant funds. The Responder Knowledge Base (RKB), which can be accessed at
http://www.rkb.us, includes relevant information on first responder standards and allows
‘guest users” to ask any questions they may have on applicable standards.

Equipment/technology requests should have the goal of achieving compliance with
nationally applicable standards and of solving interoperability or compatibility problems.
Therefore, applicants should describe in their narrative sections how the purchase of
equipment would comply with standards and/or facilitate solving interoperability or
compatibility problems.

i. Firefighter Training

Assistance to Firefighter Grants (AFG) are available to train firefighting personnel.
Examples of training activities include, but are not limited to the following: Firefighter |
and Il certifications; First Responder EMS; driver/operator; fire officer; HAZMAT
(hazardous materials) response; alternative fuel firefighting; incident command;
supervision and safety; CBRNE awareness, performance, planning and management; or
train-the-trainer courses in any of these areas.

In implementing the fire service’s recommendations concerning AFG, DHS has
determined that the most benefit is derived from training that is instructor-led and hands-
on and that leads to a nationally sanctioned or State certification. Therefore, applications
focused on national or State certification training, including train-the-trainer initiatives, will
receive a higher competitive rating. Training that involves instructors, that requires the
students to demonstrate their grasp of knowledge of the training material via testing, and
that is integral to a certification, will receive a high competitive rating. Instructor-led
training that does not lead to a certification and any self-taught courses are of lower
benefit and, therefore, will not be a high priority.

A high competitive advantage is provided to proposed training projects that benefit the
highest percentage of applicable personnel (such as the hazardous materials handling



team) within a fire department or that will be open to other departments in the region.
Large departments with a high number of active firefighters will receive additional
consideration when applying under the Firefighter Training Activity. Training designated
to enhance multi-jurisdictional capabilities will receive a higher rating.

Training that brings the department into statutory or Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) compliance or compliance with federally mandated initiatives
(such as knowledge and understanding of the National Incident Management System
(NIMS) and/or Incident Command Systems (ICS)) or training that would bring an applicant
into compliance with national standards would provide the highest benefit relative to
training that is not required. Therefore, requests to meet federally mandated or national
standard compliance would receive the highest consideration. Training that is meant to
address a local risk is secondary to training that leads to departments meeting statutory
compliance or compliance with national standards. Training that does not have statutory
compliance or does not meet a national standard will receive a low competitive rating.

Due to the inherent differences among urban, suburban, and rural firefighting
conventions, there are different priorities under the Training Activity for departments
servicing the different types of communities. However, CBRNE awareness training and
Improvised Explosive Device (IED) response awareness training have a high benefit and
will receive the highest consideration regardless of the type of community served.

For departments serving rural communities, requests for basic operational-level
firefighting training; safety officer training; operational-level rescue; driver training; or first
responder EMS, Emergency Medical Technician-Basic (EMT-B), and Emergency Medical
Technician-Intermediate (EMT-I) (i.e., training in basic firefighting or EMS duties) has
greater benefit than funding officer training, airport rescue and firefighting (ARFF), or
other specialized training. In rural communities, after basic training, officer training and
ARFF training will receive a lower cost-benefit rating. The lowest consideration will be
provided to departments that serve rural communities but are seeking assistance for other
specialized types of training, such as mass-casualty, HAZMAT, advance rescue and

EMT, or inspector training.

With respect to AFG training priorities for departments serving urban or suburban
communities, the criteria development panel recommended that any training requested by
an urban or suburban department should be given the highest level of consideration.
When considering the relative merit of applications for training from departments serving
urban and suburban communities, DHS will give higher priority to training proposals that
improve coordination capabilities across first responder disciplines (fire, EMS, and law
enforcement) and jurisdictions (local, State, and Federal). Training such as NIMS and
ICS related to coordinated incident response (e.g., weapons of mass destruction (WMD)
awareness and incident operations, chemical or biological operations, or bomb threats),
tactical emergency communications procedures, or similar types of inter-disciplinary,
inter-jurisdictional training will receive the highest competitive rating.



ii. Firefighting Equipment Acquisition

AFG funds are available for equipment to enhance the safety or effectiveness of
firefighting, rescue, and fire-based EMS functions. Grants also are available for
equipment necessary for response to CBRNE incidents.

DHS has determined that the greatest benefits of AFG funding will be achieved by
enabling fire departments to purchase firefighting equipment (including rescue, EMS, and
CBRNE) that supports a department’s existing mission or that replaces used or obsolete
firefighting equipment. Our second priority will be to fund departments seeking to expand
their functional capabilities within their existing mission areas or to appropriately equip
themselves to meet a new risk. The lowest priority is funding equipment to increase a
department’s reserve supply or to expand a department’s services into new mission
areas. For departments replacing old or damaged equipment, departments with the
oldest equipment will receive the highest priority, and departments with the newest
equipment will receive a low priority.

For the FY 2010 AFG, the purchase of equipment that brings the department into
compliance with nationally recommended standards (such as the NFPA) or statutory
compliance (such as OSHA) will provide the highest benefit to the applicant and,
therefore, will receive the highest consideration. The purchase of equipment that brings a
department into voluntary compliance with OSHA standards will also receive a high
competitive rating but secondary to equipment that leads to a department’s statutory
compliance. Equipment that brings a department up to a State or local standard or that
does not have an effect on statutory compliance or voluntary compliance with a national
standard will receive a lower competitive rating. Applicants should designate which
compliance standards would be achieved with this activity.

Training is of critical importance to any first responder organization. DHS believes that
equipment is of no use if the operator is not trained to use it. As such, applicants must
demonstrate that users of equipment purchased with the grant either are, or will be,
sufficiently trained to use the equipment. Inability to demonstrate and fulfill this training
requirement will result in ineligibility for equipment funding.

AFG’s purpose is to protect the life and safety of the public and firefighters from fire and
fire-related hazards; therefore, equipment that has a direct effect on firefighters’ lives and
safety will receive a higher competitive rating over equipment that has no such effect.
Equipment promoting interoperability with neighboring jurisdictions will receive additional
consideration in the cost-benefit assessment.

iii. Firefighter Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

AFG funds are available to acquire primarily OSHA-required PPE for firefighting
personnel. The primary purpose of AFG is to protect the life and safety of the public and



of firefighters. To achieve this goal and maximize the benefit to the firefighting
community, the FY 2010 AFG will give higher priority to funding applicants who need to
purchase PPE for the first time (i.e., for new firefighters) over departments replacing old,
obsolete, or substandard equipment (e.g., equipment not meeting current NFPA and
OSHA standards). In applications that request funding to replace equipment, the age and
condition of the PPE that is to be replaced will be the primary consideration with the
replacement of older or worn-out equipment receiving higher consideration than requests
for replacement of newer equipment.

For departments replacing equipment such as “turnout gear,” the condition of the
equipment to be replaced will be factored into the score with a higher priority given to
replacing equipment that is damaged, torn, or contaminated over equipment that is worn
but usable. For departments replacing old or damaged equipment, departments with the
oldest equipment will receive the highest priority, and departments with the newest
equipment will receive a low priority.

For departments replacing Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA), the specific
Edition of NFPA 1981 (Standard on Open-Circuit Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus for
Emergency Services) to which the existing equipment is compliant (2007 Edition, 2002
Edition, 1997 Edition, efc.) will be factored into the score with a higher priority given to
replacing equipment that is older. For departments replacing old or damaged equipment,
departments with the oldest or most worn-out equipment will receive the highest priority,
and departments with the newest, most functional equipment will receive a low priority.

The criteria development panel recommended that DHS only consider replacing old,
inoperable SCBA and/or upgrading older SCBAs to the new standard within a region if
proper justification was provided. Specifically, they recommended that DHS not consider
replacement of SCBA that is compliant to the 1997 Edition of NFPA 1981 or the 2002
Edition of NFPA 1981. The criteria development panel also recommended, and DHS
agreed, that due to the limited funding available for grants and the recent change in
SCBA standards (the 2007 Edition of NFPA 1981), DHS will not consider requests for
regional projects that involve wholesale replacement of SCBA within a region.

In concurrence with the recommendations of the criteria development panel, large
departments with a high number of firefighters will receive additional consideration. We
will also give a high competitive rating to departments that want to purchase enough PPE
to bring their compliance up to 100 percent. If the request is for SCBA, the percentage of
compliance should be determined from the number of seated positions rather than the
number of firefighters. Departments seeking to purchase PPE for a new mission will
receive a low rating. Departments seeking to purchase PPE to have for an extra reserve
supply will receive the lowest priority.

DHS believes that training is of critical importance to any first responder organization.
Applicants who are not, or will not be, sufficiently trained to use the equipment requested
under this activity will be ineligible for funding.



iv. Firefighter Wellness and Fitness

For the FY 2010 AFG, fire department wellness/fitness activities must offer periodic health
screenings, entry physical examinations, and immunizations. Applicants for grants in this
activity must currently offer, or plan to use grant funds to provide all three benefits in
order to receive consideration for funding for any other initiatives under this activity.

In accordance with the recommendations of the criteria development panel, the greatest
benefit will be realized by supporting applications for new wellness/fitness programs.
Therefore, higher competitive ratings will be given to applicants who lack wellness/ fitness
programs. Applicants who already provide the three requisite benefits and wish to
expand their wellness/fitness program will receive lower consideration than departments
who are seeking to initiate a wellness/fitness activity. Because participation is critical to
achieving any benefits from a wellness/fitness activity, we will give higher competitive
ratings to departments whose wellness/fitness activities mandate participation and are
open to all personnel.

After the provision of the three requisite benefits, the criteria development panel
recommended providing the highest consideration to candidate physical agility
evaluations. Lower priority is given to formal fithess and injury prevention projects,
behavioral health management, injury/iliness rehabilitation, and employee assistance.

v. Modifications to Fire Stations and Facilities

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Public Law 111-5) provided $210
million in funding to DHS to construct new fire stations or modify existing fire stations.
The construction of fire stations is NOT eligible under AFG. Additionally, modifications to
fire stations not specifically listed in this section as eligible (see list below) are NOT
eligible under AFG.

FY 2010 AFG Grants may be used to modify fire stations and other facilities to protect the
life and safety of firefighting personnel. Eligible projects under this activity must have a
direct effect on the life and safety of firefighters. Therefore, we will NOT fund any
requests for modifications other than those listed below:

1) Installation of sprinkler systems;

2) Installation of smoke and fire alarm notification systems;
3) Installation of vehicle exhaust evacuation systems;

4) Installation of vehicle mounted exhaust filtration systems;
5) Installation of air improvement systems; and/or

6) Installation of emergency power generators.

From the list of eligible activities above, the highest priority has been assigned to sprinkler
systems and fire/smoke alarm systems. DHS does not distinguish between the many

10



technologies for vehicle exhaust extraction systems. Source capture exhaust extraction
systems (vehicle mounted and hose-connected systems) are afforded the same
consideration as air quality improvement systems or any other vehicle exhaust extraction
system under the 2010 grant opportunity.

Grant funds are to be used only to retrofit existing structures that do not have the eligible
safety features or to upgrade facilities whose features are outdated. Grant funds under
this funding opportunity may not be used for new construction including new additions to
existing structures. When requesting funds for modifications to facilities, older structures
will receive the highest consideration for funding.

More benefit would be derived from modifying fire stations than from modifying dispatch
centers, fire training facilities, or other fire department facilities. The frequency of use
would have a direct bearing on the benefits to be derived from grant funds. In addition,
the frequency and duration of a facility’s occupancy have a direct relationship to the
benefits to be realized from awards made under this activity. As such, facilities occupied
or otherwise in use, 24-hours-per-day and 7-days-per-week will receive the highest
competitive rating. Requests involving facilities that have sleeping quarters will receive a
higher competitive rating. Facilities that do not have sleeping quarters and facilities that
are used less than full time will receive lower consideration. Facilities used only
occasionally, or on an irregular or part-time basis, will receive the lowest consideration.

Activities involving modifications to facilities are subject to all applicable environmental
and historic preservation requirements. Applicants seeking assistance to modify their
facilities may undergo additional screening. DHS is required to ascertain to what degree
the proposed modifications to fire stations or facilities might affect an applicant’s
structures relative to the National Environmental Policy Act; National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended; National Flood Insurance Program regulations; and, any other
applicable laws and Executive Orders. No project can proceed — except for project
planning — prior to formal DHS approval. Noncompliance with this provision may
jeopardize an applicant’s award and subsequent funding.

b. Firefighting Vehicle Acquisition

AFG provides grants for new firefighting vehicles, used fire apparatus originally designed
for firefighting, or refurbished apparatus originally designed for firefighting. Funds may
also be used to refurbish a vehicle the department currently owns, but only if it is a vehicle
originally designed for firefighting. Converted vehicles not originally designed for
firefighting are not eligible for refurbishment. New vehicles purchased with AFG funds
must be compliant with NFPA 1901 (Standard for Automotive Apparatus) or NFPA 1906
(Standard for Wildland Fire Apparatus). Used apparatus must be compliant with NFPA
1901 or 1906 for the year the vehicle was manufactured. Refurbished apparatus must
meet NFPA 1912 (Standard for Fire Apparatus Refurbishing).

In FY 2010, applicants that serve urban or suburban communities may apply for more
than one vehicle. However, awards will be limited to only one vehicle per station.

11



Applicants that serve rural communities are limited to one vehicle per application. If a
rural applicant submits an application requesting more than one vehicle, the application
will be deemed ineligible. Applicants awarded vehicle grants under AFG in previous
years are eligible for another vehicle award this program year.

As required in the two previous grant years, FY 2010 AFG vehicle awardees are required
to obtain a prepayment-bond if the grantee advances funds to a manufacturer. Also, the
grantee must include in their vehicle purchase contract specific performance
requirements and penalties for noncompliance with the requirements. Extensions to a
grant’s period of performance may not be considered if the requisite prepayment-bond is
not obtained and/or if the performance penalties are not included in the purchase
contract. Also, extensions to a grant’s period of performance will not be considered if the
grantee is not diligent in their implementation of the grant activities.

Due to inherent differences among urban, suburban, and rural firefighting conventions,
AFG has different priorities in the vehicle program area for departments that serve
different types of communities. As stated above, applications from departments that
serve urban and suburban communities may submit an application for multiple vehicles.
The urban or suburban application may include requests for vehicles from any or all of the
three priorities; however, applications that include lower priority vehicles will receive lower
consideration. The following table lists the funding priorities for this program area by each
type of community.

12



Firefighting Vehicle Program Priorities
L. Urban Suburban Rural
Priority Communities Communities Communities
Pumper Pumper Pumper
Aerial Aerial Brush/Attack
Priority One | Quint (Aerial < 76’) Quint (Aerial < 76’) | Tanker/Tender
Quint (Aerial > 76’) Quint (Aerial >76’) Quint (Aerial <76’)
Rescue
Command Command HAZMAT
HAZMAT HAZMAT Rescue
I Light/Air Rescue Aerial
Priority Two | o chab Tanker/Tender Quint (Aerial > 76')
Foam Truck Brush/Attack
Foam Truck
Foam Truck
ARFFV' ARFFV' ARFFV'
Brush/Attack Rehab Command
Priority Three| Fire Boat Light/Air Rehab
Tanker/Tender Fire Boat Fire Boat
Ambulance Ambulance Ambulance
Light/Air

The vehicles listed in this matrix will appear on a dropdown menu in the automated
application. Included in the menu is an option “other” which is to be used if the type of
vehicle to be requested is not on the list. All vehicles requested under “other” will receive
the lowest priority.

As with any request, DHS reserves the right to reduce any vehicle request for assistance,
in whole or in part, that DHS deems to be excessive or otherwise contrary to the best
interests of this program. AFG funding is meant to supplement, rather than replace, an
organization’s funding. Grantees must maintain their level of operating expenditures
during the grant period at a level equal to, or greater than, the average of their operating
expenditures in the two years preceding the year in which assistance is received. (See
Part VI. Section B. Grantee Responsibilities.) This means that if an organization has a
vehicle replacement program where it purchases three new vehicles every year, and that
organization is awarded a vehicle grant, that organization will have to maintain its practice
of purchasing three new vehicles in the year of the grant in addition to the vehicle(s)
awarded under the grant. The vehicle grantee CANNOT use AFG funding as a substitute
for its vehicle replacement budget. In order to assure that this requirement is met, DHS
may require detailed documentation regarding an applicant’s or grantee’s vehicle
purchasing practices and policies.

" ARFFV is an Airport Rescue Firefighting Vehicle.

13



As with other eligible AFG activities, the primary goal in the Firefighting Vehicle
Acquisition program is firefighter safety. Applicants seeking to replace unsafe vehicles
(i.e., open cab engines or converted tankers) will receive higher consideration than
applicants seeking to replace vehicles that have these safety features. The highest
consideration is provided to applicants wanting to replace vehicles that have been
converted for use as firefighting vehicles, but were not originally designed for firefighting.
However, replacement of an unsafe vehicle will still have to be justified in the narrative.
Converted vehicles not originally used, nor intended to be used, in emergency operations
will not be favorably reviewed merely because they are converted. We will give high
consideration to applicants with firefighting vehicles that had an “open-cab” configuration
in their original design.

Applicants wanting to benefit from this consideration must certify that the unsafe vehicle
will be permanently removed from emergency service if awarded a grant. “Permanently
removed from emergency service” means that the grantee cannot use the vehicle for
emergency service, nor may the grantee sell or otherwise transfer title to any individual or
organization that will use the unsafe vehicle for emergency service. The grantee may
NOT sell an unsafe vehicle to another fire department under any circumstances. A
grantee that certifies that it will remove the unsafe vehicle from service but then sells the
unsafe vehicle to another fire department, or otherwise does not remove the unsafe
vehicle from service, is considered to be in default of the grant agreement. Acceptable
uses of unsafe vehicles include farm or nursery use, scrap metal, salvage, construction,
etc.

DHS believes that a greater benefit will be derived from funding an additional vehicle(s) to
departments that own few vehicles like the type requested. As such, DHS assigns a
higher competitive rating in the apparatus category to fire departments that own fewer
firefighting venhicles relative to other departments serving similar types of communities
(i.e., urban, suburban, and rural). DHS assesses all vehicles with similar functions when
assessing the number of vehicles a department possesses within a particular type. For
example, the “pumper” category includes: pumpers, engines, pumper/tankers (apparatus
that carries a minimum of 300 gallons of water and has a pump with a capacity to pump a
minimum of 750 gallons per minute), rescue-pumpers, quints (with aerials less than 76
feet in length), and urban interface vehicles (Type I). Apparatus that has water capacity
in excess of 1,000 gallons and a pump with pumping capacity of less than 750 gallons per
minute are considered to be a tanker/tender.

DHS will evaluate the marginal value derived from an additional vehicle of any given type
on the basis of call volume. As a result, departments with fewer vehicles of a given type
than other departments that service comparable call volumes are more likely to score
competitively than departments with more vehicles of that type and comparable call
volume unless the need for an additional vehicle of similar type is made apparent in the
application.

Urban and suburban applicants may submit requests for more than one vehicle; however,
application requests are limited to one vehicle per station as well as by the statutory

14



funding limits. Applicants must supply sufficient justification for each vehicle included in
the request. For those applications with multiple vehicles, the panelists will be instructed
to evaluate the marginal benefit to be derived from funding the additional vehicle(s) given
the potential use and the population protected. DHS anticipates that the panels will only
recommend an award for a multiple vehicles application when the cost-benefit justification
is adequately compelling.

DHS assigns a higher competitive rating to departments possessing an aged fleet of
firefighting vehicles. In evaluating the age of an applicant’s fleet, DHS will take into
account the oldest vehicle in the class requested as well as the youngest vehicle in the
class requested. DHS will also take into account the average age of the applicants’ fleet.
In each of these instances, applicants with older vehicles or with an aging fleet will
receive higher consideration than applicants with relatively younger vehicles.

DHS will also assign a higher competitive rating to departments that respond to a high
volume of incidents. DHS will give higher priority to departments that are seeking
vehicles to support existing missions. Conversely, a lower priority will be given to
departments that are seeking apparatus with the goal of expanding into new mission
areas.

No competitive advantage will be given for the purchase of standard model commercial
vehicles relative to custom vehicles or the purchase of used vehicles relative to new
vehicles in the preliminary evaluation of applications. DHS has noted that given the size
of the department and the size of the community that the department serves, the peer
review panelists often prefer low-cost vehicles when evaluating the cost-benefit section of
the project narratives. DHS also reserves the right to consider current vehicle costs
within the fire service vehicle manufacturing industry when determining the level of
funding that will be offered to the potential grantee, particularly if those current costs
indicate that the applicant’s proposed purchase costs are excessive.

Departments that have formal automatic aid agreements with neighboring departments
will receive additional consideration. Departments with formal mutual aid agreements will
receive more consideration than departments without formal agreements, but not as
much consideration as departments with automatic aid agreements.

Finally, due to the inherent safety benefits to be realized in departments using a
comprehensive driver training program meeting NFPA standard 1002 (Standard for Fire
Apparatus Driver/Operator Professional Qualifications) or its equivalent, we will provide a
competitive advantage to requests where the applicant has a comprehensive driver
training program. Applicants seeking driver training with their vehicle request will receive
a slightly lower competitive rating than departments with a driver training program already
in place. Applicants without a comprehensive driver training program that will not
implement appropriate driver training in conjunction with their AFG awards or through
other resources will NOT be considered for a vehicle award.

15



For the FY 2010 program year, vehicle grantees will be required to certify that they have
in place, or that they will adopt policies and standard operating procedures (SOPs) that
comply with Chapter 6 of NFPA 1500 (Standard on Fire Department Occupational Safety
and Health Program). Specifically, the SOPs should require at a minimum: 1) all
occupants of the grantee’s apparatus to use seatbelts or restraints and 2) all drivers of the
grantee’s apparatus adhere to all traffic signs, signals, and laws.

2. Nonaffiliated EMS Organization Priorities

AFG funding priorities differ for fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations.
Please read the guidance document with this in mind and make sure you are researching
the appropriate sections for your organization. Equipment requested under AFG must
meet all mandatory regulatory requirements, as well as any national and/or DHS-adopted
standards in order to be eligible for purchase with grant funds. The RKB, which can be
accessed at http://www.rkb.us, includes relevant information on first responder standards
and allows “guest users” to ask any questions they may have regarding applicable
standards.

AFG may be used to enhance emergency medical services provided by nonaffiliated EMS
organizations. EMS funding is limited to no more than 2 percent of the AFG
appropriation.

The AFG authorizing legislation requires DHS to take into account the benefit to be
derived from the costs of the grant activity when considering each application for award.
DHS has determined that the frequency of use and the size of population protected are
both a measure of benefit that could be derived from an award. Therefore, for each
activity below, DHS will provide a higher level of consideration to organizations with
significant levels of incidents and to organizations that protect large populations relative to
other applicants, regardless of the type of community served. Organizations with low call
volume and/or that serve small communities will receive lower consideration.

The criteria development panel recommended that it is more cost-effective to enhance or
expand an existing EMS organization by providing training or equipment than it would be
to create a new service. As such, communities that are attempting to initiate EMS
services will receive the lowest competitive rating.

Equipment/technology requests should have the goal of solving interoperability or
compatibility problems. Therefore, applicants should describe in their narrative sections
how the purchase of equipment would comply with standards and/or facilitate solving
interoperability or compatibility problems.

Requests for equipment and training to prepare for response to incidents involving
CBRNE are available under the applicable equipment and training activities. Applications
that include requests for CBRNE equipment or training will be evaluated by the peer
review panelists relative to the critical infrastructure the applicant protects. Critical
infrastructure includes any system or asset that, if attacked, would result in catastrophic

16



loss of life or catastrophic economic loss. Critical infrastructure includes the following:
public water and power systems, major business centers, chemical facilities, nuclear
power plants, major rail and highway bridges, petroleum and/or natural gas transmission
pipelines and storage facilities, telecommunications facilities, and facilities that support
large public gatherings, such as sporting events or concerts.

Specific rating criteria and funding priorities for AFG FY 2010 grant activities are provided
below following the descriptions of eligible program areas. The rating criteria, in
conjunction with the program area description, will provide you with an understanding of
what information we are seeking about your proposed projects.

a. EMS Operations and Safety

Five different activities are available for funding under this program area: EMS training,
EMS equipment acquisition, EMS PPE, EMS wellness and fithess, and modifications to
EMS stations and facilities. You may apply for as many of the activities within this
program area as you deem necessary. There are no bonuses or penalties for applying
for only one activity or for multiple activities; however, we believe that applicants
requesting multiple activities have a more difficult time providing a succinct justification for
all the projects. Among the other considerations iterated below, all applications submitted
under EMS Operations and Safety will be assessed based on the frequency of use (call
volume), the affect on the community (population protected), and the affect on the safety
of the first-responders. Applicants that demonstrate that their requests will have an
immediate effect on life and safety of the first-responders or the community will receive
the highest consideration.

If you are a fire-based EMS, you are NOT eligible to apply as a nonaffiliated EMS
organization.

Applicants should ensure that all projects applied for under the grant program are
consistent with national standards and address the goals of interoperable
communications and equipment compatibility.

i. EMS Training

AFG provides grants to train EMS personnel. Examples of training activities include, but
are not limited to, first responder, basic life support, advanced life support, Paramedic,
HAZMAT Operations, or Rescue Operations.

Because training is a prerequisite to the effective use of EMS equipment, organizations
whose requests are more focused on training activities will receive a higher competitive
rating than organizations whose requests are more focused on equipment. A higher
competitive rating will be given to nonaffiliated EMS organizations that are planning to
upgrade services to ALS level of response. Specifically, organizations that are seeking to
elevate their response level from EMT-B to EMT-I will receive the highest priority and
organizations that are seeking to elevate their response level from EMT-I to Emergency

17



Medical Technician-Paramedic (EMT-P) will receive a high priority. Our second priority is
to elevate emergency responders’ capabilities from first responder to a BLS level of
response (i.e. EMT-B). Due to the time and cost, upgrading an organization’s response
level from EMT-B to EMT-P is a lower priority. Organizations seeking training in rescue
or HAZMAT operations will receive lower consideration than organizations seeking
training for medical services. Our lowest priority is to fund first responder training.
Organizations that are seeking to train a high percentage of their active first responders
will receive additional consideration when applying under the EMS Training Activity.

ii. EMS Equipment Acquisition

Because training is a prerequisite to the effective use of EMS equipment, organizations
whose requests are more focused on training activities will receive a higher competitive
rating than organizations whose requests are more focused on equipment. Training is of
critical importance to any first responder organization. DHS believes that equipment is of
no use if the operator is not trained to use it. As such, applicants must demonstrate that
users of equipment purchased with the grant either are, or will be, sufficiently trained to
use the equipment. Inability to demonstrate and fulfill this training requirement will result
in ineligibility for equipment funding.

Organizations that are seeking ALS-level capability are the AFG’s highest priority.
However, organizations that request ALS-support equipment but that are not trained to
the ALS level or are not requesting training to the ALS level of response will receive a low
priority. Requests seeking assistance to purchase equipment to support BLS level of
response are a secondary priority. Organizations seeking equipment for rescue or
HAZMAT operations will receive lower consideration than organizations seeking
equipment used to provide medical services. Our lowest priority is to fund first responder
training.

DHS makes a distinction between “new missions” and “new risks.” According to the
criteria development panel, an organization takes on a “new mission” when it expands
services into areas not previously offered, such as an EMS organization seeking funding
to provide water rescue capability for the first time. A “new risk” is when an organization
is forced to address risks that have materialized in the organization’s area of
responsibility; for example, construction of a chemical plant could constitute a “new risk.”

Organizations upgrading their equipment for existing services will receive the highest
consideration. Organizations taking on “new risks” will be considered the second priority.
Organizations taking on a “new mission” will receive a lower priority, due to the risk that
an applicant will not be able to financially support and sustain the “new mission” beyond
the grant performance period. Organizations that are replacing used or obsolete
equipment will receive lower consideration compared to organizations that are upgrading
their equipment for existing services. This is because the criteria development group
believes that an organization that is merely replacing equipment is not improving their
services when compared to organizations that are upgrading their equipment. The lowest
priority is funding equipment to increase an applicant’s available supply (reserve
equipment) or to expand an applicant’s services into new mission areas. Finally,

18



equipment that will bring an organization into compliance with State or Federal
regulations will receive higher consideration than equipment that has no statutory basis.

iii. EMS Personal Protective Equipment

AFG allows grant funds to be used to acquire PPE for active EMS first responder
personnel, particularly PPE required by OSHA. One of AFG’s goals is to protect the life
and safety of the public and first responders. To achieve this goal and to maximize the
benefit to the EMS community, in FY 2010 AFG will prioritize funding for organizations
needing to purchase PPE for the first time. We also will give very high consideration to
organizations replacing obsolete or substandard equipment. In these cases, the condition
of the equipment to be replaced will be factored into the score, with a higher priority given
to replacing equipment that is damaged, torn, or contaminated over equipment that is
worn but usable. For organizations replacing old or damaged equipment, those
organizations with the oldest equipment will receive the highest priority, and organizations
with the newest equipment will receive the lowest priority. In addition, we will give a high
competitive rating to EMS organizations with a large percentage of active staff without
compliant EMS PPE. However, large organizations with a high number of first
responders will receive additional consideration irrespective of their percentage of
noncompliant PPE. We will also give a high competitive rating to organizations that want
to purchase enough PPE to bring their compliance up to 100 percent. Organizations
seeking to purchase PPE for a new mission or to have equipment for a reserve supply will
receive the lowest funding priority.

DHS believes that training is of critical importance to any first responder organization, and
that equipment is of no use if the operator is not trained to use it. As such, applicants
who are not, or will not be, sufficiently trained to use the equipment requested under this
activity will not be eligible for funding.

iv. EMS Wellness and Fitness

For the FY 2010 AFG, effective EMS wellness/fitness activities must offer periodic health
screenings, entry-level physical examinations, and immunizations. Applicants for grants
in this activity must currently offer, or plan to use grant funds to provide all three benefits
in order to receive consideration and funding for any other initiatives under this activity.

After the provision of the three requisite benefits, the criteria development panel
recommended providing the highest consideration to candidate physical agility
evaluations. Lower priority is given to formal fithess and injury prevention projects,
behavioral health management, injury/iliness rehabilitation, and employee assistance.

We will afford higher competitive ratings to applicants lacking wellness/fitness programs
over applicants who already employ a wellness/fithess program. Applicants already
providing the three requisite benefits that wish to expand their wellness/fitness program
will receive a slightly lower consideration than applicants seeking to initiate a

19



wellness/fithess program. Finally, since participation is critical to achieving any benefits
from a wellness/fitness program, we will give higher competitive ratings to organizations
whose wellness/fitness programs mandate participation and are open to all personnel.

v. Modifications to EMS Stations and Facilities

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Public Law 111-5) provided $210
million in funding to DHS to construct new fire stations or modify existing fire stations.
The construction of EMS stations or facilities is NOT eligible under AFG. Additionally,
modifications to EMS stations or facilities not specifically listed in this section as eligible
(see list below) are NOT eligible under AFG.

FY 2010 AFG Grants may be used to modify EMS stations and other facilities to protect
the life and safety of first responder personnel. Eligible projects under this activity must
have a direct effect on the life and safety of first-responders. Therefore, we will NOT fund
any requests for modifications other than the initiatives listed below:

1) Installation of sprinkler systems;

2) Installation of smoke and fire alarm notification systems;
3) Installation of vehicle exhaust evacuation systems;

4) Installation of vehicle mounted exhaust filtration systems;
5) Installation of air improvement systems; and/or

6) Installation of emergency power generators.

From the list of eligible activities above, the highest priority has been assigned to sprinkler
systems and fire/smoke alarm systems. DHS does not distinguish between the many
technologies for vehicle exhaust extraction systems. Source capture exhaust extraction
systems (vehicle mounted and hose-connected systems) are afforded the same
consideration as air quality improvement systems or any other vehicle exhaust extraction
system under the 2010 grant opportunity.

Grant funds are to be used only to retrofit existing structures that do not have the eligible
safety features or to upgrade facilities whose features are outdated. Grant funds under
this funding opportunity may not be used for new construction including new additions to
existing structures. When requesting funds for modifications to facilities, older structures
will receive the highest consideration for funding.

More benefit would be derived from modifying EMS stations than from modifying dispatch
centers, training facilities, or other EMS facilities. The frequency of use would have a
direct bearing on the benefits to be derived from grant funds. In addition, the frequency
and duration of a facility’s occupancy have a direct relationship to the benefits to be
realized from awards made under this activity. As such, facilities occupied or otherwise in
use 24-hours-per-day and 7-days-per-week will receive the highest competitive rating.
Requests involving facilities that have sleeping quarters will receive a higher competitive
rating. Facilities that do not have sleeping quarters and facilities that are used less than

20



full time will receive lower consideration. Facilities used only occasionally, or on an
irregular or part-time basis, will receive the lowest consideration.

Activities involving modifications to facilities are subject to all applicable environmental
and historic preservation requirements. Applicants seeking assistance to modify their
facilities may undergo additional screening. DHS is required to ascertain to what degree
the proposed modifications to stations or facilities might affect an applicant’s structures
relative to the National Environmental Policy Act; National Historic Preservation Act of
1966, as amended; National Flood Insurance Program regulations; and any other
applicable laws and Executive Orders. No project can proceed — except for project
planning — prior to formal DHS approval. Noncompliance with this provision may
jeopardize an applicant’s award and subsequent funding.

b. EMS Vehicle Acquisition

FY 2010 AFG may be used to acquire new, used, or refurbished EMS vehicles. Funds
may also be used to refurbish a vehicle the organization currently owns. New vehicles
purchased with AFG funds must be compliant with current General Services Administration
standards, specifically KKK-A-1822E (Guide for Emergency Medical Services and
Systems), found at http://apps.fss.gsa.gov/vehiclestandards/assocDocs.cfm#.

Used apparatus must be compliant with Federal or industry standards for the year the
vehicle was manufactured. Refurbished apparatus must also meet applicable standards.

In FY 2010, applicants who serve urban or suburban communities may apply for more
than one vehicle. However, awards will be limited to only one vehicle per station.
Applicants serving rural communities are limited to one vehicle per application. If a rural
applicant submits an application requesting more than one vehicle, we will deem the
application ineligible. Applicants awarded vehicle grants under AFG in previous years are
eligible for another vehicle award this program year.

Due to the inherent benefits of an ambulance, or any transport vehicle, to an EMS service
provider, these types of vehicles are the highest priority compared to non-transport
vehicles. Due to the costs associated with obtaining and outfitting non- transport rescue
vehicles, non-transport rescue vehicles will receive a lower competitive rating than
transport vehicles. Because of the very limited funding for EMS vehicle awards, we
anticipate that this program will be very competitive. Therefore, it is unlikely we would
fund any vehicles not listed as a “Priority One” this year. Priorities in this year's EMS
vehicle program are the same for all communities. The following chart lists priorities in
this program area.

21



EMS Vehicle Program Priorities
Priority One Priority Two Priority Three

* First responder
non-transport

* Ambulances or vehicles .
transport units to * Operations Command vehicles
. » Hovercraft
support EMS vehicles » Other specialty vehicles
functions (HAZMAT, pecialty
rescue)

As with any request, DHS reserves the right to reduce any vehicle request for assistance,
in whole or in part, that DHS deems to be excessive or otherwise contrary to the best
interests of this program. AFG funding is meant to supplement, rather than replace, an
organization’s funding. Grantees must maintain their level of operating expenditures
during the grant period at a level equal to, or greater than, the average of their operating
expenditures in the two years preceding the year in which assistance is received. (See
Part VI. Section B. Grantee Responsibilities.) This means that if an organization has a
vehicle replacement program where it purchases three new vehicles every year, and that
organization is awarded a vehicle grant, that organization will have to maintain its practice
of purchasing three new vehicles in the year of the grant in addition to the vehicle(s)
awarded under the grant. The vehicle grantee CANNOT use AFG funding as a substitute
for its vehicle replacement budget. In order to assure that this requirement is met, DHS
may require detailed documentation regarding an applicant’s or grantee’s vehicle
purchasing practices and policies.

As with other eligible AFG activities, one priority of the vehicle acquisition program is the
safety of first responders. Therefore, we will give the highest consideration to applicants
wanting to replace vehicles that have been converted to use as EMS vehicles, but were
not originally designed for EMS and to replace vehicles that did not include seatbelts in
their original design. Applicants with these unsafe vehicle characteristics will receive
higher consideration over applicants seeking to replace vehicles having these safety
features.

Applicants wanting to benefit from this consideration must certify that the unsafe vehicle
will be permanently removed from emergency service if awarded a grant. By
“‘permanently removed from emergency service,” we mean that the grantee cannot use
the vehicle for emergency service, nor may the grantee sell or otherwise transfer title to
any individual or organization that will use the unsafe vehicle for emergency service. The
grantee may NOT sell an unsafe vehicle to another first responder organization under any

22



circumstances. A grantee that certifies that it will remove the unsafe vehicle from service
but then sells the unsafe vehicle to another response organization or otherwise does not
remove the unsafe vehicle from service, is considered to be in default of the grant
agreement. Acceptable uses of unsafe vehicles include farm or nursery use, scrap metal,
salvage, construction, efc.

In addition, more benefit will be realized by funding applicants owning few or no vehicles
of the type they are seeking than there would be by providing vehicle funding to an
organization with numerous vehicles of the type they are seeking. In assessing the
number of vehicles an organization has within a particular class, we will include all
vehicles with similar functions. For example, we will include transport vehicles in the
same class as ambulances. We will also give a higher competitive rating to applicants
who have an aged fleet of emergency vehicles. DHS also reserves the right to consider
current vehicle costs within the fire service vehicle manufacturing industry when
determining the level of funding that will be offered to the potential grantee, particularly if
those current costs indicate that the applicant’s proposed purchase costs are excessive.

This grant program will achieve the greatest benefits if we provide vehicles to EMS
organizations purchasing basic response vehicles (categorized above in priority order) to
meet their existing missions. The highest consideration will be given to EMS
organizations that have never owned the vehicles they are requesting or to organizations
seeking to replace used or obsolete vehicles. A secondary priority will be to fund EMS
organizations seeking to add more vehicles to their existing fleets within their existing
mission areas. The lowest priority is funding new apparatus to expand an applicant’s
services into “new mission” areas. An organization takes on a “new mission” when it
expands its services into areas not previously offered, such as an EMS organization
seeking funding to create a HAZMAT response team for the first time.

A higher competitive rating will be given to an EMS organization owning few or no
response vehicles relative to other organizations serving similar types of communities. A
higher competitive rating is also given to organizations that have an aged fleet of vehicles
and to organizations with high-mileage vehicles. Organizations with a newer fleet of
vehicles, or with vehicles that are not driven extensively, will receive lower consideration.
EMS organizations that have formal automatic aid agreements with neighboring
departments will receive additional consideration. Organizations with formal mutual aid
agreements will receive more consideration than organizations without such
arrangements, but not as much consideration as organizations with automatic aid
agreements.

Finally, due to the inherent safety benefits to be realized in organizations that utilize a
comprehensive driver training program meeting NFPA 1002 or equivalent, we provide a
high competitive advantage for applicants who have an established comprehensive driver
training program. Applicants seeking driver training with their vehicle request will receive
a slightly lower competitive rating. Applicants without a comprehensive driver training
program who are not seeking funding for driver training in this application or through other
resources will NOT be considered for a vehicle award.

23



No competitive advantage has been assigned to the purchase of standard model
commercial vehicles versus custom vehicles, or the purchase of used vehicles versus
new vehicles in the preliminary evaluation of applications. The peer review panelists
often prefer low-cost vehicles when evaluating the cost-benefit section of the project
narratives. We also reserve the right to impose funding limits on requests for vehicles
whose costs we deem excessive or otherwise not in the best interest of the program.

24



PART II.

AWARD INFORMATION

This section identifies the award period of performance and the total amount of funding
available under the FY 2010 Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG). It also describes
the basic distribution method used to determine final grants awards, and identifies all
eligible applicants for FY 2010 funding.

Authorizing Statutes

The authority for AFG is derived from the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974
(15 U.S.C. §§ 2229 et seq.), as amended.

Period of Performance

The period of performance of an AFG award is 12 months from the date of award.
Extensions to the period of performance will be considered only through formal requests
to FEMA with specific and compelling justifications as to why an extension is required.
Extensions will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

Available Funding

Congress appropriated a total of $390 million for the FY 2010 AFG. From this amount,
$339.4 million will be made available for AFG grants. We have allocated $35 million for
Fire Prevention and Safety and $15.6 million for administrative costs. Funds appropriated
for the FY 2010 AFG (via P.L. 111-83) are available for obligation and award until
September 30, 2011. DHS anticipates that between 20,000 and 22,000 applications for
assistance will be received during the FY 2010 AFG application period. DHS also
anticipates that it will receive over $3.0 billion in requests. Finally, DHS anticipates that it
will award approximately 4,000 grants with the funding available for grants.

Specific Funding Parameters

This section describes departments and organizations that are eligible to apply for funding
under the FY 2010 AFG, the total available funding in FY 2010, and how those funds are
allocated. Congress appropriated a total of $390 million to carry out the activities of the
FY 2010 AFG Program. Congress directed DHS to administer these funds as indicated
below:

* Up to 5 percent of appropriated funds may be used for program administration;

however, FEMA will use only 4 percent of the funds for administration of the
grant program ($15.6 million).

25



Up to 2 percent of appropriated funds ($7.8 million) may be used for awards to
nonaffiliated EMS organizations.

No more than 25 percent of appropriated funds ($97.5 million) may be used for
vehicle awards.

No less than 3.5 percent of appropriated funds ($13.65 million) must be
awarded for equipment and training grants for both fire-based EMS and
nonaffiliated EMS.

No less than 5 percent of appropriated funds ($19.5 million) must be made
available to make grants that support the conduct of eligible fire prevention
activities (Fire Prevention and Safety (FP&S) Grants) and the conduct of
research and development activities that improve firefighter safety. However,
due to the importance of mitigation activities, the FY 2010 FP&S will be
allocated $35 million for grants. The FP&S program is not part of this AFG
solicitation. The FP&S program’s application period is expected to commence
in the fall of 2010.

When making awards, FEMA must assure that the combined percentage of awards to
combination and volunteer departments is equal to, or greater than, the percentage of the
Nation’s population that these types of departments serve. The National Fire Protection
Association has reported (U.S. Department Profile Through 2008, issued October 2009?)
that combination departments protect 33 percent of the Nation’s population and volunteer
departments protect 22 percent. As such,

No more than 45 percent of the $339.4 million available for AFG awards
($152,730,000) may be granted to career organizations and departments.

No less than 33 percent of the $339.4 million available for AFG awards
($112,002,000) must be granted to combination organizations (organizations
and departments with both paid career and volunteer active duty members).

No less than 22 percent of the $339.4 million available for AFG awards
($74,668, 000) must be granted to all-volunteer organizations (organizations
and departments with no active duty paid career members).

Awards will be limited based on population protected by the applicant, as indicated below.

Applicants who serve a jurisdiction with a population of 500,000 people or less
may not receive grant funds in excess of $1,000,000 for any fiscal year.

* At the time of this writing, the 2009 figures were not available from NFPA.

26



* Applicants who serve a jurisdiction with more than 500,000, but not more than
1,000,000, people may not receive grant funds in excess of $1,750,000 for any
fiscal year.

* Applicants who serve a jurisdiction of more than 1,000,000 people may not
receive grant funds in excess of $2,750,000 for any fiscal year.

The cumulative total of the Federal share of awards in Operations and Safety, Vehicle
Acquisition, and Fire Prevention and Safety will be factored when assessing award
amounts and any limitations thereto. Applicants may request funding up to the statutory
limit on each of their applications (i.e., an applicant that serves a population of less than
500,000 may request up to $1,000,000 on their Operations and Safety application and up
to $1,000,000 on their vehicle request); however, the applicant would have to choose
which application to accept, if the cumulative value of both applications would exceed the
statutory limits if awarded.

For the purposes of this program, applications for regional projects will not be included in
the host applicant’s funding limitations detailed above. Regional applications will be
considered independent of, and unrelated to, any other applications that the host
applicant may submit and thus will not be included when assessing the host applicant’s
Federal funding limits. Regional applications, however, will be subject to their own
limitation based on the total population that the regional project will serve. For example, a
regional project that serves a population of fewer than 500,000 people will be limited to
$1,000,000.

DHS will also continue to separate FP&S Grants from AFG, and will have a separate

application period devoted solely to FP&S Grants. The FP&S application period is
planned for fall 2010.

27



PART III.

ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION

This section provides information and summaries on the eligibility of applicants, the cost
sharing requirements that are connected with each grant award, and the eligible costs
under each activity funded by the grants

A. Eligible Applicants

Eligible applicants for AFG are limited to fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS
organizations. Fire departments or nonaffiliated EMS organizations operating in any of
the 50 States plus the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and Puerto Rico are eligible for
funding.

A “fire department” is defined as an agency or organization that has a formally recognized
arrangement with a State, territory, local, or tribal authority (city, county, parish, fire
district, township, town, or other governing body) to provide fire suppression to a
population within a fixed geographical area on a first-due basis.

A “nonaffiliated EMS organization” is defined as a public or private nonprofit emergency
medical services organization that provides direct emergency medical services, including
medical transport, to a specific geographic area on a first-due basis but is not affiliated
with a hospital and does not serve a geographic area where emergency medical services
are adequately provided by a fire department.

In making the determination regarding “adequately provided,” DHS will conclude that any
nonaffiliated EMS organization would be eligible if it is “adequately providing” direct
emergency medical services at the time of application submission and is in good standing
with the community, (i.e., licensed and/or chartered to provide EMS services to the
community). Rescue squads that provide direct emergency medical services, including
medical transport, to the community they serve are eligible to apply as a nonaffiliated
EMS organization.

By “affiliated” we mean an EMS organization that is receiving any kind of direct support
from a hospital in the form of funding, facilities, staff, equipment, or apparatus.
Contracting with a hospital on a fee-for-service basis would not constitute an “affiliation” in
the context of AFG. Also, for the purpose of these grants, a “hospital” is defined as an
organization, clinic, medical center, medical college or university, infirmary, surgery
center, or any other institution, association, or foundation that provides medical, surgical,
or psychiatric care and/or treatment for the sick or injured.

28



A municipality (such as a fire district) may submit an application on behalf of a fire or EMS
organization when the organization, defined as a fire department or nonaffiliated EMS
organization, lacks the legal status to do so, e.g., when the organization falls within the
auspices of the municipality or district. The Alaska Village Initiative, a nonprofit
organization incorporated in the State of Alaska, will also be considered eligible for
purposes of receiving assistance under this program on behalf of any Alaskan Native
village.

For the FY 2010 program year, each eligible applicant may submit one application for
each of the program areas, (i.e., one application for the Vehicle Acquisition program area,
one application for Operations and Safety program area, and one application for a
regional project). However, if an eligible applicant submits multiple applications in a
single program area (for example two regional project applications for which they are a
host or two Operations and Safety applications) we will deem all of the applications in that
same program area to be ineligible.

For the purposes of these grants, we consider two or more separate fire departments or
nonaffiliated EMS organizations that share facilities as being one organization. This
determination is designed to avoid duplication of benefits. For example, it would not be
cost-beneficial to purchase two firefighting vehicles for two fire departments that share a
facility to serve the same community when so many other communities need new
apparatus; nor would it be cost-beneficial to buy two sets of equipment for the same
firefighters. We believe that two or more organizations that share facilities should be able
to satisfy all of their operational needs with one program area application. Thus, if two or
more organizations that share facilities each submit an application in the same program
area, we will deem all of those program area applications as ineligible.

A fire department can apply for assistance for its EMS unit, provided the unit falls
organizationally under the auspices of the fire department. Fire departments may NOT
apply for assistance as a “nonaffiliated EMS organization” under the AFG Program. Fire
departments that apply as a nonaffiliated EMS organization will have their application
deemed ineligible. Likewise, a nonaffiliated EMS organization may NOT apply for
assistance as a fire department. If a nonaffiliated EMS organization submits an
application as a fire department, we will deem that application to be ineligible.

Non-Federal airport and/or port authority fire or EMS organizations are eligible only if they
have a formally recognized arrangement with the local jurisdiction to provide fire
suppression or emergency medical services on a first-due basis outside the confines of
the airport or port facilities. Airport or port authority fire and EMS organizations whose
sole responsibility is suppression of fires or EMS response on the airport grounds or port
facilities are not eligible for funding under AFG.

29



B. Ineligible Applicants

Fire departments that are Federal, or contracted by the Federal Government, and
are solely responsible under a formally recognized agreement for suppression of
fires on Federal installations or land are ineligible for funding.

Fire stations that are not independent entities, but are part of, controlled by, or
under the day-to-day operational direction of a larger fire department or agency are
not eligible for funding.

Fire departments that are for-profit departments (i.e., do not have specific nonprofit
status or are not municipally based) are not eligible for funding.

Auxiliaries, fire service organizations or associations, and State/local agencies
such as a forest service, fire marshals, hospitals, and training offices are not
eligible for funding.

Dive teams and search and rescue teams, or any similar organizations that do not
provide medical transport, are not eligible for assistance as nonaffiliated EMS
organizations.

C. Cost Sharing

Cost sharing under AFG is based on the population protected by the grantee. The cost-
share breakdown is as follows:

Fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving populations of over
50,000 or more must match the Federal grant funds with an amount of non-Federal
funds equal to 20 percent of the total project cost.

Fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving populations
between 20,000 and 50,000 must agree to match the Federal grant funds with an
amount of non-Federal funds equal to 10 percent of the total project cost.

Fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving areas with a
population of 20,000 or fewer must match the Federal grant funds with an amount
of non-Federal funds equal to 5 percent of the total project cost.

Regional projects’ cost-share will be based on the total population and demographics of
the entire region — not the population of the host applicant. All non-Federal match funds
must be in cash; in-kind contributions are not acceptable. No waivers of this requirement
will be granted except for applicants located in Insular Areas as provided for in 48 U.S.C.
§ 1469a (which limits the waiver to grants under $200,000).

The grantee is not required to have the cash match in hand at the time of application, nor
at the time of award. But, before a grant is awarded, DHS will contact potential awardees

30



to determine whether the grantee has the funding in hand or if the grantee has a viable
plan to obtain the funding necessary to fulfill the matching requirement.

FEMA administers cost sharing requirements in accordance with 44 CFR §13.24. To
meet matching requirements, the grantee contributions must be reasonable, allowable,
allocable and necessary under the grant program and must comply with all Federal
requirements and regulations.

D. Allowable Expenses and Cost Restrictions for Fire Departments
1. Firefighter Training

For FY 2010, eligible uses of training funds include, but are not limited to, tuition, exam
and course fees, certification and/or recertification expenses, purchase of training
curricula, training equipment (including training trailers and other mobile simulators),
training props, and training services (such as instructors). Tow-vehicles may be eligible
as an expense under this activity if adequately justified; however, we will limit such
expenses to $6,000 per year per application. Compensation to volunteer firefighters for
wages lost due to attending training under this activity is an eligible expense if reasonable
and justified in the narrative. Overtime expenses paid to career firefighters to attend
training, or overtime expenses paid to career firefighters to cover for colleagues who are
in training, are eligible expenses if reasonable and justified in the narrative. Although
compensation and overtime/backfill expenses are eligible, proposals that contain these
costs may be scored less favorably than similar proposals without compensation
expenses, due to the cost-benefit element in the evaluation process. Applicants are
encouraged to take this into account when formulating their application budget, as it may
be better to have a more competitive application than to cover every last expense.

Ineligible activities in this area include the following:

Construction of facilities, such as classrooms, buildings, towers efc.;
Video-conferencing equipment;

Firefighting equipment or PPE such as SCBA (for use in training exercises);
Modular training units that are not trailer-mounted or are otherwise immobile;
Site preparation to accommodate any training activity, facility, or prop;
Purchase or lease of real estate; or

Remodeling that is not directly related to other grant activities.

The necessary remodeling or renovation of an existing facility to accomplish training
activities is allowable, if the remodeling or renovation is minor in nature (e.g., limited to
minor interior alterations costing less than $10,000), justified in the narrative, and integral
to the completion of the training activities funded by the grant. Remodeling or renovation
expenses should be included in the application as an “Other” line-item expense and
clearly explained in the narrative.

31



DHS funds the direct delivery of a variety of classes that can be requested through the
State to meet first responders’ training needs. These classes are listed in the course
catalog found at http://www.firstrespondertraining.gov/odp webforms.

2. Firefighting Equipment Acquisition

Eligible expenses include expenses necessary to acquire, assemble, and install the
requested equipment. Foam and associated equipment used to fight conventional fuel
and alternative fuel fires are eligible. Hazardous materials response equipment is eligible.
The cost of training department personnel on the use of the new equipment is eligible, but
should be requested under the Training Activity. Compressor systems, cascade systems,
or similar SCBA refill systems are eligible expenditures in this area. Remodeling or
renovation to an existing facility to accommodate equipment purchased with grant funds
are allowable if justified in the narrative, and if the remodeling or renovation is minor in
nature (i.e., limited to minor interior alterations costing less than $10,000). Remodeling
that is not directly related to other grant activities is not eligible. Traffic signal preemption
systems are eligible. The costs of shipping equipment purchased under this program and
applicable sales taxes are also eligible expenses.

Individual communications equipment (portable radios) and mobile communications
equipment (including mobile repeaters) are eligible, but telephones and cell phones are
not eligible. Under the AFG, DHS will limit funding for portable radios to the number of
seated positions based on the applicant’s firefighting vehicle fleet unless otherwise
justified in the narrative, and will only fund the number of mobile radios required to equip
the vehicle inventory listed in the application. We will not fund mobile radios for
personally owned vehicles, with the exception of the chief fire officer’s personal vehicle if
adequately justified in the application. Mobile data systems (MDTs) are eligible.
Integrated communications systems such as base stations, computer-aided dispatch,
fixed-site repeaters, and wireless and broadband mobile data systems are eligible under
this activity.

The purchase of any communications systems or equipment under this activity should
have the intent or goal of solving interoperability problems, as applicable. Each State will
have the opportunity to review requests for communications equipment, with respect to
conformity with the State Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP). The State
representative will certify that such requests are consistent with the State Homeland
Security Strategy and do not duplicate or conflict with assistance already provided or
imminent. If a State representative determines that an application is either inconsistent
with the State strategy or duplicates the State’s assistance, that portion of the AFG
application will not be funded. Further, applicants within States that have not submitted
their SCIP to DHS for review and approval will not be eligible for interoperable
communications funding. Any applicant seeking funding for eligible equipment should
provide details in the narrative section of the application regarding their local plan to
enable or enhance interoperable communications within their jurisdiction as well as their
efforts to ensure consistency with their State’s interoperability plan.

32



Equipment used in response to CBRNE incidents is also eligible. Equipment exclusively
designed for use in CBRNE incidents is eligible this year and includes special monitoring
equipment (biological, radioactive, etc.) and CBRNE-related pharmaceuticals for first
responders, such as auto-injectors.

Requests for EMS equipment are eligible under this Equipment Acquisition Activity.
Eligible expenses for EMS equipment in this activity may include, but are not limited to,
defibrillators, basic and advanced life support equipment, universal precaution supplies
(i.e., personal protective equipment), computers, and infectious disease control and
decontamination systems.

Items NOT eligible for funding under Firefighter Equipment Acquisition include the
following:

* Construction of facilities, such as buildings, sheds to house communications,

towers, or other equipment;

Repeaters that will not be installed or attached to existing infrastructure;

Sirens or other outdoor warning devices;

Signage of any kind;

Telephones, satellite phones, and cell phones;

Video-conferencing equipment;

Bomb disposal equipment and robots;

Vehicles;

Vehicle exhaust extraction systems (These systems are only eligible when

applied for under Modifications to Fire Stations and Facilities below.);

ATVs;

Boats that do not have firefighting capability;

Personal watercraft;

Medication, and disposable or otherwise expendable supplies (such as gloves,

syringes, and cervical collars); or

* PPE, including clothing for structural and wildland fire suppression, such as
“turnout gear” or “bunker gear” (including boots, pants, coats, gloves, hoods,
goggles, vests, helmets, coveralls, and fire shelters), SCBAs, spare cylinders,
and Personal Alert Safety Systems (PASS).

The purchase of PPE is not eligible under Firefighting Equipment Acquisition. The
purchase of Personal Protective Equipment is an eligible grant expense, but only when
requested under the Personal Protective Equipment Activity. See below.

3. Firefighter Personal Protective Equipment

Application requests for PASS devices will only be considered if the equipment requested
meets current national standards, i.e., integrated and/or automatic or auto-on PASS. This
is because of the safety benefits automated PASS devices provide firefighters. Eligible
PPE includes clothing for structural or wildland fire suppression, such as “turnout gear” or
“‘bunker gear” (including boots, pants, coats, gloves, hoods, goggles, retro-reflective

33



highway apparel, vests, helmets, coveralls, and fire shelters), SCBAs, spare cylinders,
and PASS (within the limits noted above).

If awarded, SCBA replacement will be based on the number of seated positions in the
applicant’s fleet (unless the applicant can adequately justify more than one ensemble per
seat) and the age of the applicant’s SCBA inventory. Specifically, the criteria
development panel recommended that DHS not consider replacement of SCBA that is
compliant to the 1997 Edition of NFPA 1981 nor the 2002 Edition of NFPA 1981.
Applicants requesting replacement of newer SCBA will have to provide justification for
such a request. If awarded, DHS will limit the number of spare cylinders funded to one
spare cylinder for each SCBA requested, unless the applicant can adequately justify more
than one spare per unit.

In addition to “turnout gear” and SCBA, protective clothing for response to hazardous
materials incidents and other specialized incidents is eligible under this activity.

Protective clothing designed for EMS activities or for response to CBRNE incidents is also
eligible in this activity. Eligible PPE for EMS activities includes PPE ensembles (coats
and trousers) that afford universal precautions against exposure to infectious diseases,
etc.

Ineligible expenditures under the PPE Activity include the following:

* Three-quarter length rubber boots;

*  Bomb disposal suits;

* Uniforms (formal/parade or station/duty) and uniform items (hats, badges, efc.); or

* Firefighting equipment or personal communications equipment such as radios, cell
phones, and pagers (See Firefighting Equipment Acquisition above).

4. Firefighter Wellness and Fitness
Eligible expenditures in the Firefighter Wellness and Fitness Activity include the following:

* Procurement of medical services from trained medical professionals (MDs or RNs);
to ensure the firefighting personnel are physically able to carry out their duties

* Medical examinations that meet NFPA 1582 (Standard on Comprehensive
Occupational Medical Program for Fire Departments) as adopted by DHS or that
meet the IAFC/IAFF wellness and fitness initiative;

* Implementation of IAFC/IAFF peer fitness trainer programs; or

* Costs for personnel, medical physicals, physical fithess equipment (including
shipping charges and sales tax as applicable), and supplies directly related to
performance of physicals or physical fitness activities.

Ineligible expenditures include the following:

* Transportation expenses;

34



* Contractual services with anyone other than medical professionals listed above
(e.g., health-care consultants, trainers, and nutritionists);

* Fitness club memberships for firefighters or their families;

e (Cash incentives;

* Non-cash incentives (t-shirts or hats of nominal value, vouchers to local
businesses, or time-off);

* Purchase of medical equipment;

* Purchase of medical examinations that do not meet NFPA 1582 requirements or
the IAFC/IAFF wellness and fitness initiative;

* Construction of facilities to house a fitness activity, such as exercise or fitness
rooms, showers, efc.; or

* Purchase of real estate.

Minor remodeling or renovation to an existing facility are allowable if justified in the
narrative, if minor in nature (i.e., limited to minor interior alterations costing less than
$10,000), and integral to the completion of the Wellness and Fitness Activity (See Part Ill,
Section F. Other Allowable Costs for more details). Remodeling that is not directly related
to other grant activities is not eligible. Remodeling expenses should be included in the
budget as an “Other” line-item expense and explained in the narrative.

5. Modifications to Fire Stations and Facilities

Grant funds are to be used only to retrofit existing structures that do not have the eligible
safety features or to upgrade facilities whose features are outdated. Under no
circumstances may grant funds be used to supplement new construction. Additionally, no
modification may change the footprint or the profile of a structure.

When requesting funds for modifications to facilities, older structures will receive the
highest consideration for funding. NFPA 1500, Standard on Fire Department
Occupational Safety and Health Program, was first adopted in 1987. In the 2002 Edition
of NFPA 1500 (1500 §§ A.9.1.6), NFPA provided extensive guidance concerning
exposures to potential carcinogens. Therefore, it is the position of the criteria
development panel that fire departments should have taken the standard into
consideration when planning the construction of new facilities; as such they recommend
that requests to upgrade any structures that were built subsequent to 2003 receive the
lowest consideration. Under no circumstances may grant funds be used to supplement
new construction.

When requesting funding for emergency power generators, it is the AFG Program’s
expectation that departments will request generators sufficient to provide power for only
those functions that are operationally imperative (i.e., bay doors, communications
equipment, emergency lighting, heat, etc.) and no more (i.e., banquet facilities).

There are no monetary limits on the individual initiatives under this activity, but no

applicant can request more than $100,000 per fire station under its authority. Applicants
may request funding for modifications for each station if they have multiple stations, up to

35



the $100,000 per station limit, as long as the entire request does not exceed the Federal
share limit (see Part |l Section C).

The necessary remodeling or renovation of an existing facility to accomplish modification
activities is allowable if the remodeling or renovation is minor in nature (i.e., limited to
minor interior alterations costing less than $10,000 and/or requisite activities associated
with installation of equipment when 1) occurring immediately adjacent to the facility and 2)
the project area has been previously disturbed), justified in the narrative, and integral to
the completion of the requested activities. Remodeling or renovation expenses should be
included in the application as an “Other” line-item expense and clearly explained in the
narrative. Maintenance expenditures such as cleaning or painting of apparatus bays are
not eligible under the AFG. Modifications are also effected by environmental and historic
laws and regulations, see page 67 for more information on these requirements.

6. Firefighting Vehicle Acquisition

Eligible expenditures under this program include the cost of the vehicle and associated
equipment necessary to conform to applicable national standards (NFPA 1901 or 1906).
New, used, or refurbished vehicles are eligible; however, any used or refurbished vehicles
must conform to the national standards that were in effect the year the vehicle was
manufactured. DHS also reserves the right to consider current vehicle costs within the
fire service vehicle manufacturing industry when determining the level of funding that will
be offered to the potential grantee, particularly if those current costs indicate that the
applicant’s proposed purchase costs are excessive.

An allowance for transportation to inspect a vehicle under consideration or during a
vehicle’s production would be eligible if reasonable and justified in the grant narrative.
Any additional costs associated with the purchase and installation of a vehicle-mounted
exhaust filtration system for any vehicle purchased with grant funds would also be
eligible. The costs associated with driver-operator training may be eligible for any vehicle
award if justified in the narrative.

Applicants will NOT be allowed to modify the scope of work of a vehicle award (i.e.,
change the type of vehicle to be purchased after the application is submitted). Vehicles
contracted for or otherwise purchased prior to the end of the established application
period are not eligible for funding. Vehicles contracted for prior to award are not eligible.
However, if an applicant is forced, due to unforeseen circumstances, to purchase the
same vehicle requested in an application and that vehicle is placed into service prior to
award, that expense may be eligible if the purchase meets all the conditions of a pre-
award expense (See the section on Pre-award Costs under “Other Allowable Costs” on
page 42 below). ATVs and other specialty access vehicles are eligible, but must be
requested as an “other” vehicle in the application’s drop-down menu. Aircraft, bulldozers,
and construction-related equipment are not eligible for purchase with AFG funds.

36



E. Allowable Expenses and Cost Restrictions for Nonaffiliated EMS Organizations
1. EMS Training
Eligible uses of EMS training funds include, but are not limited to:

* Tuition, exam, and course fees;

* Certification or recertification expenses;

* Purchase of training curricula, training equipment, training props, and training
services (such as instructors); and

* Attendance at formal training forums or conferences that provide continuing-
education credits.

Compensation to volunteer emergency responders for wages lost due to attending
training under this activity is an eligible expense if reasonable and justified in the grant
narrative. Overtime expenses paid to emergency responders to enable them to attend
training, or overtime expenses paid to emergency responders to cover for colleagues in
training, are eligible expenses if reasonable and justified in the grant narrative. Although
compensation and overtime/backfill are eligible expenses, proposals containing this type
of compensation expense may be scored less favorably than similar proposals without
compensation expenses due to the cost-benefit element in the evaluation process.

Ineligible activities in this area include the following:

* Construction of facilities, such as classrooms, buildings, and towers;
* Site preparation to accommodate any training activity, facility, or prop; or
* Purchase or lease of real estate.

The necessary remodeling or renovation of an existing facility to accomplish training
activities funded by the grant is allowable if the remodeling or renovation is minor in
nature (e.g., limited to minor interior alterations costing less than $10,000), justified in the
narrative, and integral to the completion of the training activities funded by the grant.
Remodeling that is not directly related to other grant activities is not eligible under this
program (See Part Ill, Section F. Other Allowable Costs). Remodeling expenses should
be included in the application as an “Other” line-item expense and clearly explained in the
narrative.

DHS funds the direct delivery of a variety of classes that can be requested through the
State to meet first responders’ training needs. These classes are listed in the course
catalog found at http://www.firstrespondertraining.gov/odp webforms.

2. EMS Equipment Acquisition

Eligible expenses for equipment acquisition include basic and advanced life support
equipment (ALS) to support first responders through paramedics, with higher priority
given to organizations requesting equipment to support service at the advance life

37



support level. Examples of eligible items available under this section include, but are not
limited to the following:

Basic life-support equipment;

Advanced life-support equipment;

Rescue tools;

Communications equipment (mobile and portable radios);
HAZMAT and decontamination equipment;

Computers;

Automated external defibrillators; or

Infectious disease control and decontamination systems.

Items that are eligible for funding, but a lower priority, include tents, shelters, generators,
lights, and heating and cooling units.

Protective clothing is NOT eligible under this equipment category, but is eligible under the
PPE Activity below.

For FY 2010, individual communications equipment (portable radios) and/or mobile
communications equipment (including mobile repeaters) are eligible; but, telephones, cell
phones, satellite phones, repeaters that will not be installed or attached to existing
infrastructure are not eligible. Sirens or other outdoor warning devices are not eligible.
Signage of any kind is not eligible.

We will only fund the number of mobile radios required to equip the vehicle inventory
listed in the application. We will not fund mobile radios for personally owned vehicles
under EMS. Mobile data systems are eligible. Integrated communications systems such
as base stations, computer-aided dispatch, fixed-site repeaters, and wireless and
broadband mobile data systems are eligible under this activity. The purchase of any
communications systems or equipment under this activity should have the intent or goal
of solving interoperability problems. Each State will have the opportunity to review
requests for communication systems to ensure compliance with statewide interoperable
communications plans and the State Homeland Security Strategy. Applicants seeking
funding for EMS equipment should provide details in the application’s narrative section
regarding their local plan to enable jurisdiction-wide interoperable communications.

Any equipment requested under this section, particularly decontamination and HAZMAT
equipment, is fundable to the current level of your capabilities (i.e., we will not fund level-
A equipment for organizations only trained to the HAZMAT operations level, unless the
application also includes a request for training compatible with the equipment request).
The costs of shipping any equipment purchased under this program and applicable sales
taxes are also eligible expenses.

Other items that are not eligible under the EMS Equipment Acquisition Activity include:
vehicles (such as ambulances), vehicle exhaust extraction systems (these systems are
only eligible when applied for under Modifications to Fire Stations and Facilities below),
ATVs, boats, personal watercraft, equipment used for firefighting, medications, disposable

38



or otherwise expendable supplies (such as gloves, syringes, and cervical collars), body
armor, uniforms, and new construction such as communications towers or facilities. The
purchase of Personal Protective Equipment is not eligible under EMS Equipment
Acquisition. The purchase of PPE is an eligible grant expense, but only when requested
under the Personal Protective Equipment Activity. See below.

3. EMS Personal Protective Equipment

Examples of eligible clothing include EMS “turnout gear,” non disposable universal
precautionary supplies (i.e., medical PPE), extrication jumpsuits, rescue helmets, gloves,
and boots. Protective clothing must meet national standards or local EMS protocols. The
purchase of SCBA may also be eligible if the EMS organization has a formally adopted
standard operating procedure that requires SCBA availability and adequately justifies the
request. If you apply for funding for SCBA, you may be required to submit documentation
to support the eligibility of SCBA.

Any equipment requested under this section, particularly decontamination and HAZMAT
suits, are fundable to the current level of your training (i.e., we will not fund level-A suits
for organizations only trained to the HAZMAT operations level unless the application also
includes a request for training compatible with the equipment request). Uniforms
(formal/parade or station/duty) and uniform items (hats, badges, efc.) are not eligible
expenses under this activity. In addition, nonaffiliated EMS organizations may not apply
for non-EMS PPE such as body armor, wildland firefighting gear, and firefighting “turnout
gear.” Personal communications equipment, such as radios and pagers, are not eligible
under this activity, but are eligible under the EMS Equipment Acquisition Activity.

4. EMS Wellness and Fitness

Eligible expenditures in the Wellness and Fitness Activity for EMS personnel may include
the procurement of medical services from trained medical professionals (MDs or RNs) to
ensure that EMS personnel are physically able to carry out their duties. The purchase of
medical equipment is not an eligible expenditure under this category. Eligible
expenditures to carry out wellness/fitness activities may include costs for personnel
physicals, physical fithess equipment (including shipping charges and sales tax, as
applicable), and supplies directly related to the performance of physicals or physical
fitness activities.

Ineligible expenses include the following:

* Transportation expenses;

* Contractual services with anyone other than medical professionals listed above
(e.g., health care consultants, trainers, and nutritionists);

* Fitness club memberships for EMS personnel and their families;

e (Cash incentives;

* Non-cash incentives (t-shirts or hats of nominal value, vouchers to local
businesses, or time-off);

39



» Construction of facilities to house a fitness program (exercise or fithess rooms,
showers, efc.); or
* Purchase of real estate.

Minor remodeling or renovation to an existing facility are allowable if justified in the
narrative if the remodeling or renovation is minor in nature (i.e., limited to minor interior
alterations costing less than $10,000), and if the remodeling is integral to the completion
of the wellness and fitness activities funded by the grant. Remodeling that is not directly
related to other grant activities is not eligible. Remodeling expenses should be included
in the budget as an “Other” line-item expense and explained in the narrative.

5. Modification to EMS Stations and Facilities

When requesting funding for emergency power generators, it is the AFG Program’s
expectation that EMS organizations will request generators sufficient to provide power for
only those functions that are operationally imperative (i.e., bay doors, communications
equipment, emergency lighting, heat, etc.) and no more (i.e., banquet facilities).

There are no monetary limits on individual initiatives under this activity. However, no
applicant may request more than $100,000 in modifications per station under its authority.
If you have multiple stations, you may request funding for modifications for each station
up to this $100,000 per station limit, as long as the entire request does not exceed the
Federal share limit.

The necessary remodeling or renovation of an existing facility to accomplish modification
activities is allowable, if the remodeling or renovation is minor in nature (i.e., limited to
minor interior alterations costing less than $10,000 and/or requisite activities associated
with installation of equipment when 1) occurring immediately adjacent to the facility and 2)
the project area has been previously disturbed); justified in the narrative; and integral to
the completion of the requested activities. Remodeling or renovation expenses should be
included in the application as an “Other” line-item expense and clearly explained in the
narrative. Maintenance expenditures such as cleaning or painting of apparatus bays are
not eligible under the AFG. Modifications are also effected by environmental and historic
laws and regulations; see page 67 for more information on these requirements.

6. EMS Vehicle Acquisition

EMS vehicle awardees will be required to obtain a bond if funds are advanced to the
manufacturer and include specific performance requirements and penalties for
noncompliance with the requirements as part of the contract with the vehicle
manufacturer. Extensions to a grant’s period of performance may not be considered if the
requisite bond is not included in the purchase contract.

Eligible expenses under this program area would include ONLY the cost of the vehicle

and requested driver training. We will NOT provide funding for associated equipment.
New, used, or refurbished vehicles are eligible; however, all used or refurbished vehicles

40



must conform to the national standards that were in effect the year the vehicle was
manufactured. ATVs, Gators™, and similar equipment are NOT vehicles and are not
eligible under this category. DHS also reserves the right to consider current vehicle costs
within the fire service vehicle manufacturing industry when determining the level of
funding that will be offered to the potential grantee, particularly if those current costs
indicate that the applicant’s proposed purchase costs are excessive.

An allowance for transportation to inspect a vehicle under consideration, or during a
vehicle’s production, would be eligible if reasonable and justified in the grant narrative.
Additionally, operator training may be eligible for any vehicle award if reasonable and
justified in the narrative.

Applicants will not be allowed to modify the scope of work of a vehicle award, (i.e.,
change the type of vehicle requested after award). Vehicles contracted for, or otherwise
purchased, prior to the end of the established application period are not eligible for
funding. Vehicles contracted for prior to award are not eligible. However, if an applicant
is forced, due to unforeseen circumstances, to purchase the same vehicle requested in
an application and that vehicle is placed into service prior to award, that expense may be
eligible if the purchase meets all the conditions of a pre-award expense (See the section
on Pre-award Costs under “Other Allowable Costs” on page 42 below). Aircraft,
bulldozers, and construction-related equipment are not eligible.

F. Other Allowable Costs
This section describes additional costs that may be paid using AFG Grant funds.

1. Administrative Costs: Administrative costs are allowable under any of the
program areas listed above in accordance with 2 CFR Part 225, Cost Principles for State,
Local, and Indian Tribal Governments (OMB Circular A-87) or 2 CFR Part 230, Cost
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations (OMB Circular A-122), as applicable. Applicants
may apply for administrative costs if the costs are directly related to the implementation of
the program for which they are applying. Administrative costs are identifiable costs
directly associated with the implementation and management of the grant and cannot
exceed 3 percent of the award.

If you are requesting administrative expenses, you must list the costs under the “Other”
category in the budget, and explain the purpose for the administrative costs in your
project narrative. Administrative costs should be based on actual expenses, not a
percentage of the overall grant. We will reimburse actual expenses only. Examples of
eligible administrative costs include shipping, office supplies, and computers associated
with the National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reporting requirements. Grant
funds may not be used for insurance, Internet service provider fees, or any similar
monthly service fees. The cost of a grant writer (if specifically listed on your application)
is eligible and can be charged to the grant as administrative costs in accordance with the
provisions outlined in Item 7. below. We will assess the reasonableness of the

41



administrative costs requested in each application and determine if they are reasonable
and in the best interest of the program.

2. Indirect Costs: Indirect costs are those incurred for common or joint objectives
and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. A cost may not be
allocated to an award as an indirect cost, if any other cost incurred for the same purpose,
in like circumstances, has been assigned to an award as a direct cost. Typical examples
of indirect costs include depreciation or use allowances on buildings and equipment; the
costs of operating and maintaining facilities; general administration; and other general
expenses, such as the salaries and expenses of executive officers, personnel
administration, and accounting.

If you have an approved indirect cost rate, you may charge indirect costs to the grant. If
you are charging indirect costs to the grant, you must submit documentation supporting
the indirect cost rate to us for review prior to submitting any claims for reimbursement of
indirect costs. Appropriate documentation for an approved indirect rate is a federally
approved indirect cost rate agreement. We will allow the rate to be applied as long as it is
consistent with its established terms. For example, some indirect cost rates may not
apply to capital procurements; in these cases, indirect cost rates would not be applicable
for an equipment or vehicle grant.

3. Audit Costs: Grantees must comply with the organizational audit requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, which states that recipients of Federal funding that expend more than
$500,000 in Federal funds (from all Federal sources) in their fiscal year are required to
have a single audit. (For more information about OMB Circulars, go to
www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars.) If a single audit is required, a portion of the audit
cost would be allowable, if included in the application budget. We will allow you to charge
a prorated share of the costs of the single audit to the grant. For example, if you expend
$100,000 from the AFG and $400,000 from the Forest Service during your fiscal year, we
will allow you to charge one-fifth of the audit cost to the AFG Grant. We do not require
any other audits; therefore, you cannot charge any other audit expenses to the grant.

4. Remodeling or Renovation Costs: Remodeling or renovation to an existing
facility are allowable only if minor in nature (i.e., limited to minor interior alterations costing
less than $10,000 and/or requisite activities associated with installation of equipment
when 1) occurring immediately adjacent to the facility and 2) the project area has been
previously disturbed). To be eligible, the remodeling must be essential to the successful
completion of the grant’s scope of work. The purchase of real estate and construction
costs are not eligible. Construction includes major alterations to a building and/or
changes to the profile or footprint of the structure. Enhancements to existing structures
such as the installation of apparatus bay ventilation systems and retrofitting fire stations
with sprinkler systems are eligible for application under the appropriate fire department or
EMS organization Modification to Facilities Activity. See page 67 for more information on
environmental and historic considerations and requirements.

42



5. Pre-award Costs: Generally, grantees cannot use grant funds to pay for
products and services contracted for or purchased prior to the effective date of the grant.
However, expenses incurred after the application deadline, but prior to award, may be
eligible for reimbursement if the expenses were justified, unavoidable, consistent with the
grant’s scope of work, and specifically approved in writing by DHS. We will consider
requests for reimbursement for pre-award costs on a case-by-case basis.

6. Pre-application Costs: Expenses, obligations, commitments, or contracts
incurred or entered into prior to the application deadline are not eligible to be included as
a grant expense with the exception of grant preparation costs [See G. below].

7. Grant Writer Fees: Fees for grant writers may be included as a pre-award or
pre-application expenditure. Fees payable on a contingency basis are not an eligible
expense. For grant writer fees to be eligible as a pre-award expenditure, the fees must
be specifically identified and listed in the “Request Details” section of the application. In
addition, the fees must have been paid prior to any contact with grants management staff
or an award (i.e., paid within 30 days of the end of the application period). Applicants
may be required to provide documentation to support these pre-award expenditures.

Hiring a grant writer, or use of any other third party in preparing the application, does not
eliminate the applicant’s responsibility for ensuring that information contained in the
application is true and correct. Applicants who submit false information with their
applications, or misrepresent their organizations in any material manner, will have their
applications deemed ineligible by the AFG Program Office and referred to DHS OIG for
further action, as appropriate.

8. Prepayments: A grantee may not use grant funds to prepay for any products
or services in advance of delivery of the products or rendering of services. A down
payment for the purchase of a vehicle is allowable if required in the purchase contract, but
we will only allow up to 25 percent of the Federal share to be drawn for this purpose. No
additional funds beyond the down payment will be provided in advance of the delivery of
the vehicle. Any costs over-and-above the 25 percent limit such as the cost of a chassis
or any other fees or services must be borne by the grantee or deferred until final payment
is drawn. Federal funds may not be used for any other periodic or progress payments,
except the final payment, which should not be requested until after the vehicle is received,
inspected, and accepted by the grantee.

G. Other Funding Restrictions

DHS grant funds may only be used for the purpose set forth in the grant, and must be
consistent with the statutory authority for the award. Grant funds may not be used for
matching funds for other Federal grants/cooperative agreements, lobbying, or intervention
in Federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings. In addition, Federal funds may not be
used to sue the Federal government or any other government entity.

43



Pre-award costs are allowable only with the written consent of DHS and if they are
included in the award agreement.

Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any capacity (paid or unpaid) on any
proposal submitted under this program. Federal employees may not receive funds under
this award.

H. Reasonableness of a Request

The peer review panelists will review all of the applications in the competitive range and
judge each application on its own merits. The panelists will consider all expenses
budgeted, including administrative and indirect costs, as part of the cost-benefit
determination, and may recommend appropriate adjustments. Regardless of the eligibility
of any costs requested, DHS reserves the right to reduce any requests for assistance, in
whole or in part, that DHS deems to be excessive or otherwise contrary to the best
interests of this program.

Applicants who submit false information with their applications, or misrepresent their
organizations in any material manner, will have their applications deemed ineligible by the
AFG Program Office and referred to the DHS OIG for further action, as appropriate.

I. National Incident Management System Implementation Compliance

In accordance with Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD)-5, Management of
Domestic Incidents, the adoption of the National Incident Management System (NIMS) is
a requirement to receive Federal assistance, through grants, contracts, and other
activities. The NIMS provides a consistent nationwide template to enable all levels of
government, tribal nations, nongovernmental organizations, and private sector partners to
work together to prevent, protect against, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the
effects of incidents, regardless of cause, size, location, or complexity.

Federal FY 2009 NIMS implementation must be considered prior to allocation of any
Federal awards in FY 2010. The primary grantee/administrator of FY 2010 AFG award
funds is responsible for determining if sub-awardees have demonstrated sufficient
progress in NIMS implementation to disburse awards.

44



PART IV.

APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION
INFORMATION

This section summarized the process for applying for the FY 2010 AFG Grant.

A. Automated Grant Application

Applications under the FY 2010 AFG will be accessible at https://portal.fema.gov. The
application will also be accessible from the U.S. Fire Administration’s (USFA) Website
(www.usfa.fema.gov), and grants.gov Website (www.grants.gov). We have designed the
automated application with many built-in “help screens” and “drop-down menus” to assist
applicants throughout the application process. The application can be saved and
retrieved as many times as needed to complete it - up to the application deadline or the
submittal of the application.

However, once you have submitted your application, you cannot change it. You will
not be allowed to update your application to correct errors discovered after submission or
to reflect changes in your organization’s circumstances regardless of severity. You will be
automatically notified via e-mail once we have received your application.

An applicant tutorial will be available from the program office. The tutorial explains the
grant program, helps applicants with the online grant application, provides tips for
navigating the application screens, and summarizes FY 2010 program changes. The
tutorial also provides a review of lessons learned during previous grant periods.

You may decide to hire or engage a grant writer to assist you in the application process.
However, as the applicant, you are responsible not only for the cost associated with using
outside assistance but also for all information contained in your application. By submitting
the application, you are certifying that all of the information contained therein is true and is
an accurate reflection of your organization. Therefore, prior to submission, please review
all work produced by grant writers, or other third parties, on your behalf. Applicants who
falsify their applications or misrepresent their organizations in any material manner will
have their applications deemed ineligible by the AFG Program Office and referred to the
DHS OIG for further action, as appropriate.

Paper applications will be accepted, but are discouraged due to the inherent delays
associated with processing them. Also, successful applicants who submit paper
applications must continue to manage their grants via paper, including payment requests,
requests for modifications, reporting, etc.; whereas, applicants who apply online can
perform all of these functions online. In addition, paper applications do not provide the

45



built-in help that is available to online applicants. Finally, there is no assurance that your
paper application is complete when submitted. If you do not have access to the Internet,
contact us at 1-866-274-0960 to request a paper copy of the application via regular mail.
We will not send paper applications via overnight delivery, fax, or e-mail.

The only eligible paper application is the application that we send you. Do not use any
paper application that you did not receive directly from us. Do not print the screens from
this year’s online application and submit them as a paper application. Do not use a
previous year’s application. Any paper application that is not in the correct format will be
deemed ineligible.

Applications for the FY 2010 AFG will be accepted starting on or about Monday, April 26,
2010, at 8:00 a.m. Eastern Time. Up-to-date application information will be posted on the
AFG and USFA Websites. Completed applications must be received by 5:00 p.m.
Eastern Time on Friday, May 28, 2010. Applications submitted by mail must be
postmarked by May 26, 2010. Applications not submitted electronically must be mailed
to:

Fire Grant Program Technical Assistance Center
U.S. Fire Administration, Room [-207

16825 South Seton Avenue

Emmitsburg, Maryland 21727-8998

We will not be responsible for applications mailed to any address other than the address
listed above. Late, incomplete, or faxed applications will NOT be accepted. No
electronically submitted applications other than those submitted online via the automated
grant application system will be accepted.

B. Content and Form of Application

Eligible applicants apply for AFG funding online via the “e-grants” application. The
system will allow an authorized representative of an applicant to log in and create a
username and password for the applicant. The selection of the authorized representative
is at the discretion of each applicant. If your organization submitted an application in
previous years, we advise you to use the same username and password used for
previous applications. If your organization is submitting more than one FY 2010
application, you must use the same username and password used for prior year
applications, as well as for each FY 2010 application.

When filling out the on-line application, applicants are required to provide general
information regarding the applicant and the community they serve. The applicant will
provide detailed information regarding the items or activities for which they are seeking
funding. The applicant will also have to provide a narrative description of their project
including the cost of the project, their financial needs, and the benefits that the project will
have on the applicant’s operations. Finally, the applicants will have to fill out Standard
Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (if the grantee has engaged or intends to

46



engage in lobbying activities) and FEMA Form 20-16C, Certifications Regarding
Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; and Drug-Free
Workplace Requirements.

The program title listed in the CFDA is “Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program.” The
CFDA number is 97.044.

C. DUNS Number

Effective October 1, 2003, all Federal grant applicants must contain a Dun & Bradstreet
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number. The DUNS number helps the
Federal Government identify organizations that receive Federal funding and ensures
consistent name and address data for electronic grant applications. Additional
information about DUNS numbers can be found on the Dun & Bradstreet Website at
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do;jsessionid=B9E740A165.

There is no charge to obtain a DUNS number, and it is the applicant's responsibility to
obtain one. Extensions may not be granted for applicants who were unable to obtain a
DUNS number prior to the end of the application period. Applicants are encouraged to
apply for a DUNS number as soon as possible by calling 1-866-705-5711; as it may take
several weeks to obtain the number online. The DUNS number must be entered in a
special data field on the AFG application.

D. Project Period

The project period for any award under AFG will be 12 months from the date of the
award.

E. Application Details

As in previous years, the AFG application includes general questions about your
organization and community, as well as specific questions about the proposed project.
The answers to these questions will be used to evaluate your application and to
determine whether your organization serves an urban, suburban, or rural community.
Characteristics such as population, water supply, land use, number of stations, call
volume, and the number of inhabitable structures over four-stories tall in the jurisdiction
indicates the type of community served. For the purpose of AFG Grants, a “story” is the
habitable or occupiable space between a floor and a ceiling of a structure. We will allow
you to self-declare the type of community you serve; however, we will also use these
characteristics to assist us in determining the type of community you serve. If your
declaration and our determination differ, you will be prompted to justify your declaration in
the narrative section of the application.

The designation of community type is important because we have established different

funding priorities in some of the activity areas, depending on the type of community
served. These funding priorities are delineated in each program area below, if applicable.

47



The community designation (i.e., urban, suburban, or rural) may also affect the ranking of
your application, depending on the program area or activity for which you are applying.
This is why you must justify your designation in the narrative of the application if your
designation is different from ours.

After completing the general questions, you will be asked a series of activity-specific
questions relative to the program area selected and the activities for which you plan to
apply. Answer the questions for each of the activities that support your project. Lastly,
you will be required to provide a written narrative describing the planned project. The
narrative portion of the application should provide details of the activities for which you
are seeking funding, including budget details for each activity. The narrative should also
describe your organization’s financial need and elaborate on the benefits your community
and/or organization will gain from the expenditure of the grant funds. Applications should
particularly note how the grant would enhance your department’s ability to protect critical
infrastructure. Finally, the narrative should explain the extent to which the grant would
enhance your daily operations and/or how the grant will positively impact your ability to
protect life and property.

We recommend that you type your narrative offline in any word processing software, such
as Word, Word Perfect, or Notepad. Once the narrative is complete, you can copy it or
“cut-and-paste” it from the word processing document into the narrative block of the
application. Space for the narrative is limited and cannot exceed five pages. Any
narrative beyond the five-page limit will be cut off by the electronic system and will not be
a part of your application submission. Do NOT type the narrative using only capital
letters. For more specific information regarding the application and the narrative section,
we advise you to review the applicant tutorial.

F. Project Development

As in previous years, the AFG Program allows applicants to formulate a very
comprehensive grant proposal. Depending on the program area for which you apply,
your grant proposal may include a number of related “activities” to address all of your
needs within a programmatic or functional area. This approach provides you with the
opportunity to develop a more comprehensive grant project that addresses a broader
range of your organization’s needs. Be advised that your application should include only
activities that can be completed within a 1-year period of performance.

In FY 2010, you may submit one application per application period in each of the
program areas, (i.e., one application under Operations and Safety, one under Vehicle
Acquisition, and/or a separate application as a regional host). If multiple applications are
submitted on behalf of one organization within one of these program areas, either
intentionally or unintentionally, we will deem all of that organization’s applications in that
program area to be ineligible. For example, if any applicant submits two applications for
Operations and Safety, both applications will be deemed ineligible.

48



When formulating your grant proposal(s), keep in mind the legislative funding limits (See
Part Il.). If an applicant receives awards under both the Operations and Safety and
Vehicle Acquisition program areas, the total of both awards cannot exceed the
legislatively established funding limit.

1. Fire Department Projects

Fire departments may submit applications for either or both of the following
program areas. AFG awards are subject to the statutory funding limitations
discussed above. Under Operations and Safety, you may include as many
activities within the program area as necessary to meet your needs. The eligible
program areas and associated activities for the FY 2010 AFG are listed below.

Firefighter Operations and Safety. Eligible activities for fire departments
under this program area are limited to training, equipment, PPE, wellness
and fitness, and modifications to fire stations and facilities. If an EMS unit
falls organizationally under the auspices of a fire department, the fire
department may submit requests for EMS training and equipment on behalf
of their department’s EMS unit under the appropriate functional area (i.e.,
training or equipment, respectively). However, a fire department CANNOT
apply as a nonaffiliated EMS organization, even if its application is solely for
EMS equipment or training. Requests for equipment, PPE, and training to
prepare for response to incidents involving CBRNE are eligible under the
appropriate activities in this program area. Applicants should ensure that all
projects applied for under AFG are consistent with national standards and
address interoperable communications and equipment compatibility.

Firefighter Vehicle Acquisition. Eligible apparatus available to fire
departments under this program area include, but are not limited to,
pumpers, brush trucks, tankers/tenders, rescue vehicles, ambulances,
quints, aerials, foam units, and fire boats. Urban and suburban departments
may apply for multiple vehicles on one application; however, urban and
suburban applications will be limited to one vehicle per station (at the time of
the application). Rural fire departments may apply for only one vehicle per
year. Applications from fire departments that serve rural communities and
are requesting more than one vehicle will be deemed ineligible. For FY
2010, there is no restriction on vehicle requests based on previous AFG
vehicle awards. Applicants who received vehicles under prior year AFG
awards are eligible to receive a vehicle grantin FY 2010. Activities related
to a vehicle grant such as driver/operator training and equipment for a
vehicle should be included in the vehicle request, not as part of an
Operations and Safety request.

As stated above, for FY 2010 you may submit one application for assistance in
each of these two program areas. Within your selected program area (Operations
and Safety or Vehicle Acquisition), you may develop a comprehensive project to

49



address all of your needs by applying for as many of the eligible activities that you
determine are necessary. For example, if you determine that your needs are in the
Operations and Safety program area, you could apply for any one of the activities
under that program area, any combination of activities, or all of the activities listed
within that area. If you need a vehicle, you must apply under the Vehicle
Acquisition program area. You may not apply for a vehicle under the Operations
and Safety program area. Any equipment or training requested in a vehicle
application must be specifically relevant to the requested vehicle and consistent
with applicable NFPA standards (1002, 1901, 1961, efc.).

2. Nonaffiliated EMS Organizations

Nonaffiliated EMS organizations are eligible to apply for assistance during the FY
2010 AFG application period. The nonaffiliated EMS portion of AFG mirrors what
is available to fire departments. EMS applicants may apply for assistance under
either the Operations and Safety program area or the Vehicle Acquisition program
area, or both using separate applications. EMS awards are subject to the statutory
funding limitations, as discussed in Part 1 of this guidance. The EMS Operations
and Safety program area provides a range of eligible activities that enable
applicants to formulate a very comprehensive grant proposal to meet all
operational needs. The EMS Vehicle Acquisition area allows applicants to apply
for a vehicle to enhance emergency response capabilities and may include
operator training, as necessary.

For the FY 2010 application period, you may submit one application per program
area; however, you are limited to only one application in each of the two program
areas listed below. Your application should include only activities that can be
completed within the 1-year period of performance. EMS program areas and
associated activities eligible under the FY 2010 AFG are listed below.

* EMS Operations and Safety. Eligible activities available to nonaffiliated
EMS organizations under this program area are limited to EMS training,
EMS equipment, including PPE, wellness and fithess, and modifications to
stations and facilities. Requests for equipment, PPE, and training to
prepare for responding to incidents involving CBRNE are eligible for funding
under the appropriate activities in this program area. Applicants should
ensure that all projects applied for under the grant program are consistent
with national standards and address interoperable communications and
equipment compatibility.

* EMS Vehicle Acquisition. Eligible apparatus available to nonaffiliated
EMS organizations under this area include, but are not limited to,
ambulances, transport units, and rescue squads. Small specialty access
equipment such as ATVs, snowmobiles, and Gators™, or other similar
vehicles are not eligible under the vehicles acquisition category or under the
EMS Operations and Safety program area. Urban and suburban

50



organizations may apply for multiple EMS vehicles on one application;
however, urban and suburban applications will be limited to one vehicle per
station in operation (at the time of the application). Rural organizations may
apply for only one vehicle per year. You may not include equipment for
your EMS vehicle in your request; however, your request may include
driver/operator training. Applications from EMS organizations that serve
rural communities that request more than one vehicle will be deemed
ineligible. Previous AFG vehicle grant recipients are eligible to receive a
vehicle grant in FY 2010.

3. Regional Projects

Any eligible applicant, whether a fire department or a nonaffiliated EMS
organization, may act as a “host applicant” and apply for large-scale or regional
projects on behalf of itself and any number of organizations in neighboring
jurisdictions. A regional project is one in which multiple organizations serving more
than one local jurisdiction benefit directly from the activities implemented with the
grant funds. A county fire department applying for a countywide communications
system is NOT a regional project because it does not benefit multiple “seats-of-
government.” Regional projects are designed to facilitate interoperability and
efficiency among the participating jurisdictions. As such, the only activities
available for application under a regional project are training and equipment
acquisition (such as communications equipment) that positively affect
interoperability between jurisdictions. Purchase of turnouts, SCBA, wellness and
fitness, modification to facilities, and vehicle acquisition activities are not eligible as
regional projects.

Regional projects require one eligible applicant to act as the “host” for the project.
Regional applications may only include activities that are meant to address the
identified regional risk. Regional applications cannot include the purchase of
resources or any activities meant solely for the host applicant. As in last year’s
program, host applicants in FY 2010 may apply for funding to address their own
needs beyond the scope of the regional project in a separate application(s). The
“host” will be responsible for fulfilling all grant requirements such as reporting to
NFIRS, control of and accounting for the funds, and distribution and control of the
property. Additionally, the host is responsible for assuring that the cost share is
met. The cost share for regional projects is based on the total population and
demographics of the entire region.

DHS has the discretion to waive the legislatively established funding limits under
AFG. In order to encourage interest and participation in this critical strategy to
address interoperability, DHS may exercise that discretion if the funding of a
regional application is at risk of exceeding statutory funding caps, (i.e., the funding
of the regional request combined with other AFG awards would cause the host
applicant to exceed the legislatively established funding limits).

51



In general, equipment purchased as a result of a regional project will be physically
distributed to all the departments that are beneficiaries of the project. This physical
distribution of the equipment to other first responder organizations is the single
characteristic that distinguishes eligible regional projects from projects that are not
regional in nature but may have an impact on a region via mutual aid. For
example, a project that would not be considered to have an effect on
interoperability (and thus would not be considered a regional project) would be an
application for an air compressor or a hazardous materials (HAZMAT) response
vehicle. In this example, the assets would be shared with neighboring
departments under mutual or automatic aid agreements, but physically located in
the awardee’s department and not disseminated among the participants; as such,
this project would not qualify as a regional project.

Examples of viable regional projects would be a multi-jurisdictional
communications system or standardization of training. As stated above, regional
projects should be designed to address issues of communications or equipment
interoperability among multiple jurisdictions.

In order to apply for a regional project, the host organization must:

1) be an eligible applicant, (i.e., either a fire department or a nonaffiliated EMS
organization — a county, county association, city, or an emergency
management organization is not eligible and could not apply for a regional
project), and

2) agree, if awarded, to be responsible for all aspects of the grant including, but
not limited to, accountability for the assets and all reporting requirements.

In the regional application, the host organization will be required to describe the
characteristics of the entire region that will be affected by the project (i.e., the
population of the affected region, not the applicant’s “first-due” population). The
applicant must provide detailed information in the project narrative describing the
nature of the project including the project’s budget, the effect the project will have
on the region, and the need for the project. This includes a detailed description of

the following:

* The proposed project and the project budget.

* The financial need for the project.

* The benefits that would result.

* The extent to which the grant would enhance daily operations.

* How the grant will positively impact the regional ability to protect life and
property.

52



In addition, the applicant must include a list of all the participating organizations
that will benefit from the regional project, if the project is approved. Fire
departments or nonaffiliated EMS organizations that will benefit from a regional
project may also apply for funding under AFG, as long as they are not requesting
the same items as the host applicant for the regional project. For example, if a
host applicant applies for a multi-jurisdictional communications project, a
participating organization that will receive some of the communications equipment
can apply for other needs as long as it does not apply for duplicative
communications equipment. Host applicants MAY NOT apply for items to address
other needs beyond the regional project on the regional application; but, as
indicated above, a host applicant may submit a request to meet its own, non-
regional needs in a separate application.

When evaluating the benefits of any regional project, we will take into account the
other partners that will be involved in the project, whether they are other fire
departments, nonaffiliated EMS organizations, or other public service
organizations. We will also take into consideration the extent to which the non-
fire/EMS partners will contribute to the overall costs of the regional project.

53



PART V.

APPLICATION REVIEW AND
EVALUATION PROCESS INFORMATION

This section summarizes the multi-level review and evaluation process used to select
applications for AFG funding.

A. Prescreening Process

As explained earlier, funding priorities and criteria for evaluating AFG applications are
established based on recommendations from the criteria development panel. We will
rank all submitted applications based on the substance of the application relative to the
established funding priorities for the type of community served. Answers to the
application’s activity-specific questions provide information used to determine each
application’s ranking relative to the stated priorities.

If you apply for more than one activity in your selected project, each activity will be scored
separately. Then the scores will be prorated based on each individual activity’s funding
level, compared to the total requested funding in your application. For example, under
the Operations and Safety program area, if you apply for $9,000 in training and $1,000 in
equipment, the training portion of the proposal will represent 90 percent of the score and
the equipment will represent 10 percent of the score. The number of activities included in
the application will not affect the application - negatively or positively.

B. Peer Review Process

Applications that best address the grant funding priorities (as outlined below) will score
higher than applications that are inconsistent with the priorities. Applications scoring the
highest will be determined to be within the “competitive range” and will undergo further
evaluation through a peer review process. It has been DHS practice to review a sufficient
number of applications to assure that the AFG Program’s goals and objectives will be
met. To achieve this, the number of applications reviewed each year is the number of
applications whose cumulative requests total 200 percent of the appropriated funding for
AFG. As such, with $390 million appropriated for AFG in FY 2010, DHS will consider
approximately $800 million in applications to be in the competitive range and reviewed by
a panel of peers.

A panel of at least three peer review panelists will evaluate each application in the
competitive range using the project narrative, along with answers to the general questions
and the activity-specific questions. During the panel review process, panelists will provide
a subjective but qualitative judgment on the merits of each request.

Applications that include requests for equipment and/or training will be evaluated by the
panelists relative to the critical infrastructure within the applicant’s area of first-due

54



response. Critical infrastructure includes any system or asset that, if attacked or
impacted by a hazardous event, would result in catastrophic loss of life or catastrophic
economic loss. Critical infrastructure includes the following: public water or power
systems, major business centers, chemical facilities, nuclear power plants, major rail and
highway bridges, petroleum and natural gas transmission pipelines or storage facilities,
telecommunications facilities, or facilities that support large public gatherings, such as
sporting events or concerts. Panelists will assess such infrastructure and the hazards
confronting the community, as explained in the narrative, to determine the benefits that
will be realized from a grant to the applicant.

Panelists will evaluate and score the following project elements:
1) The clarity of your proposed project, including the project’s budget detail.
2) The organization’s financial need.
3) The benefits that would result from an award relative to the cost.
4) The extent to which the grant would enhance daily operations.

Each of these four elements carries equal weight when factored into the panelists’ scores
(i.e., one-fourth).

Each application will be judged on its own merits, not compared to other applications. As
part of the cost-benefit review, the panelists will consider all expenses budgeted,
including the individual costs of the items requested as well as the extraneous costs such
as warranties or maintenance costs, administrative costs, and/or indirect costs. Panelists
may object to costs that are requested but not fully explained in the application. Panelists
will review each application in its entirety and rate the application according to the
established evaluation criteria.

Keep in mind that we will use the answers to the activity-specific questions when
conducting our initial assessment. The answers to these questions are the primary basis
for determining whether an application warrants further evaluation through peer review.
Applicants whose answers indicate that their project is consistent with the established
priorities (as outlined below) will have a better chance of reaching the competitive range
and the second level, e.g., the peer review, than those applicants whose projects do not
reflect the established priorities. Applicants who submit false information with their
applications or misrepresent their organizations in any material manner will have their
applications deemed ineligible by the AFG Program Office and referred to the DHS OIG
for further action, as appropriate.

Each application that scores high under the peer review process will be deemed in the
fundable range. Applications that are in the fundable range will undergo both a Technical
Review by a subject matter specialist as well as a Program Office review prior to being
recommended for award. In the Technical Review, the subject matter specialists will

55



assess the technical feasibility of the application addressing the needs of the applicant.
After the Technical Review, the Program Office will conduct an additional review to
assess the request with respect to costs and quantities and eligibility prior to
recommending the application for award.

C. State Strategy and Communications Technical Review

Each State will provide a representative to the AFG Program Office to conduct a technical
review of peer-reviewed applications from the State’s perspective. This State review will
focus on requests for CBRNE-related equipment or training and/or interoperable
communications equipment or training. After the panel review process is complete, the
designated State homeland security official will review the application to ensure that
requests for communications systems conform to the State’s SCIP. The State
representative will further certify that such requests are consistent with the State
Homeland Security Strategy and do not duplicate or conflict with assistance already
provided or imminent. If a State representative determines that an application is either
inconsistent with the State strategy or duplicates the State’s assistance, that portion of the
AFG application will not be funded.

D. Anticipated Announcement and Award Dates
DHS will commence the panel review process within 60 days of the end of the application

period. Award decisions for the FY 2010 program will be completed on or before
September 30, 2011.

56



PART VI.

AWARD ADMINISTRATION
INFORMATION

This section summarizes the administration of awards including award procedures and
grantee responsibilities.

A. Award Procedure

Upon approval of an application, FEMA will provide an award package to the applicant
through the automated AFG application system. An email notice of award will also be
sent to the applicant’s primary point of contact. The grantee should carefully read the
award and special condition documents. If there are any questions or concerns, please
contact the Help Desk at (866) 274-0960.

Awards will be made using the results of peer-reviewed applications as the primary basis
for our decisions, regardless of program. However, there are some exceptions to strictly
using the peer review results. For example, the AFG authorizing legislation restricts how
the funds may be used. Grant awards for vehicles may not exceed 25 percent of the total
appropriated funding, and nonaffiliated EMS organizations may not receive more than 2
percent of appropriated funding. Once we reach these limits, we must deviate from the
rank order with respect to the remaining vehicle requests or nonaffiliated EMS requests.

Additionally, career organizations are limited to 45 percent of the available funding and
volunteer and combination organizations are required to receive no less than 22 percent
and 33 percent of the available funding, respectively. Achieving this delineation may also
require deviating from the peer review results.

To fulfill our obligations under the law, we may also make funding decisions using the size
and nature of the community served (urban, suburban, or rural), the type of organization
(career, combination, or volunteer), and the geographic location of the organization. In
these instances where we are making decisions based on geographic location, we will
use States as the basic geographic unit. The geographic location of an applicant will be
used primarily as a final discriminator, (e.g., in cases where applicants have similar
qualifications, we may use the geographic location of the applicants to maximize the
diversity of the awardees).

Fire departments that have received funding under the AFG in previous years are eligible
to apply for funding in the current year. However, due to our responsibilities under the
authorizing statute to assure adequate distribution of awards among certain types of
organizations (career, combination, and volunteer) and certain types of communities

57



(urban, suburban, or rural), we reserve the right to fund or not to fund previous grant
recipients under this program in order to fulfill statutory requirements. We may also take
into account an applicant’s performance on prior grants when making funding decisions
on current applications.

As stated earlier, each application will be evaluated based on the answers to the activity-
specific questions. The applications that best address the established funding priorities
will be deemed to be in the “competitive range” and subject to a second-level review.
This second-level review is conducted via a panel of peer reviewers who will assess the
application’s merits with respect to the detail provided in the narrative on the activity, the
applicant’s financial need, and the purported benefit to be derived for the cost. The peer
reviewers will independently score each application, discuss the merits and shortcomings
of the application, and reconcile any major discrepancies, if necessary. A consensus is
allowed but not required.

Once every application in the competitive range has been through the panel review, the
applications will be ranked according to the average score awarded by the panel. The
ranking will be summarized in a Technical Report prepared by the AFG Program Office.
The AFG Program Office will then make award recommendations to the grants
management specialists in the Grants Management Division of the Grants Programs
Directorate. The grants management specialists will then contact the applicant to discuss
and/or negotiate the content of the application before making final award decisions.

We will select a sufficient number of awardees from this one application period to obligate
all of the FY 2010 funding available. Awards will be announced over several months as
decisions are made. Awards will not be made in any specified order, (i.e., not by State,
program, or any other characteristic).

Award amounts are limited based on the population of the jurisdiction. Specifically, an
applicant that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 500,000 or less may not receive
grant funds in excess of $1,000,000 for any fiscal year. An applicant that serves a
jurisdiction with more than 500,000, but not more than 1,000,000, people may not receive
grant funds in excess of $1,750,000 for any fiscal year. Finally, an applicant that serves a
jurisdiction of more than 1,000,000 people may not receive grant funds in excess of
$2,750,000 in any fiscal year.

B. Grantee Responsibilities
AFG award recipients (grantees) must agree to:

(1) Perform, within the designated period of performance, all tasks (scope of work) as
outlined in the grantee’s application and approved by the AFG Program Office in
accordance with the Articles of Agreement. Failure to adhere to the policies, terms, and
conditions of the award as set forth in this document, as well as the award package and
all references, including clarifications provided in the AFG Program’s frequently asked
questions, may result in loss of the current award as well as future eligibility.

58



(2) Share in the costs of the projects funded under this grant program. Fire departments
and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving populations of over 50,000 or more must
match the Federal grant funds with an amount of non-Federal funds equal to 20 percent
of the total project cost. Fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving
populations between 20,000 and 50,000 must agree to match the Federal grant funds
with an amount of non-Federal funds equal to 10 percent of the total project cost. Fire
departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations serving areas with a population of
20,000 or fewer must match the Federal grant funds with an amount of non-Federal funds
equal to 5 percent of the total project cost. Regional project cost-share will be based on
the total population and demographics of the entire region. All non-Federal match funds
must be in cash; in-kind contributions are not acceptable. No waivers of this requirement
will be granted except for applicants located in Insular Areas as provided for in 48 U.S.C.
§ 1469a.

The grantee is not required to have the cash match in hand at the time of application, nor
at the time of award. But, before a grant is awarded, DHS will contact potential awardees
to determine whether the grantee has the funding in hand or if the grantee has a viable
plan to obtain the funding necessary to fulfill the matching requirement.

(3) Maintain operating expenditures for the 1-year grant period of performance in the
areas funded by this grant activity at a level equal to, or greater than, the average of their
operating expenditures in the 2 years preceding the year in which this assistance is
received. This program is meant to supplement rather than replace an organization’s
funding.

(4) Retain grant files and supporting documentation for 3 years after the conclusion and
closeout of the grant or any audit subsequent to closeout.

(5) Ensure all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner to provide, to the
maximum extent practical, open and free competition. Grantees are expected to promote
competition and ensure advantageous pricing by soliciting bids from multiple vendors and
to select the lowest bidder able to meet the requirements. Procurements shall be made
from the bidder whose offer is responsive to the solicitation and is most advantageous to
the grantee when price, quality, and other factors are considered. The grantee must
follow its established procurement processes when purchasing vehicles, equipment, and
services with AFG funds. If the grantee has no established procedures, it should obtain
at least two quotes/bids for the items being procured and document the process used in
the grant files. Sole-source purchasing is not an acceptable procurement method except
in unusual circumstances. Grantees who fail to adhere to their own procurement policy or
otherwise fail to fully “compete” any transaction involving Federal funds may find that their
expenditures will be questioned and subsequently disallowed.

Specifications developed for solicitations shall clearly set forth all requirements that the

bidder shall fulfill in order for the bid or offer to be evaluated by the recipient. However,
those specifications may not be so narrowly constructed or contain features which unduly

59



limit, restrict, or eliminate competition unnecessarily. See also Iltem 7 below regarding
conflicts of interest.

Grantees shall, on request, make available to DHS, pre-award review and procurement
documents, such as request for proposals or invitations for bids, independent cost
estimates, efc., if a) the procurement specifies a "brand name" product, or b) the
proposed award is to be awarded to other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed
bid process. Grantees found to be using proprietary specifications may find that their
expenditures will be questioned and subsequently disallowed.

(6) Conduct all bidding activities (solicitation, receipt, and evaluation) after award, i.e.,
during the period of performance. Quotes obtained prior to submittal of the application -
for the purposes of applying for this grant - are not considered to be sufficient to satisfy
the requirements for competition as outlined at 44 CFR Part 13. Grantees may be
jeopardizing their awards if they do not adhere to the requirements set forth herein.

(7) Avoid conflicts of interest in order to ensure objective vendor performance and
eliminate a real or an apparent unfair, competitive advantage. Grantees must assure that
anyone that develops or drafts specifications, requirements, statements of work (including
the grant application), invitations for bids and/or requests for proposals are excluded from
competing for such procurements. Grantees must assure that no employee, officer, or
agent of their organization participates in the selection, award, or administration of any
procurement supported by Federal funds if a real or an apparent conflict of interest would
be involved. A conflict of interest could arise when any of the following conditions exists:

a) An officer, employee, or agent of the grantee has a financial or other interest in the
vendor selected for the procurement.

b) Any member of the grantee’s officers’, employees’, or agents’ immediate family
has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the procurement.

c) An organization which employs a grantee’s officer, employee, or agent, is a vendor
or has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected for the procurement.

d) An officer, employee, or agent of the grantee is a Federal employee.

For the purposes of this program, we consider volunteers of an organization and grant
writers to be employees, officers and/or agents of the grantee. As such, grantees must
assure that no volunteer or member of their organizations or anyone involved in the
application for funding participates in, or benefits from, the procurement if Federal funds
are involved. Grantees who select vendors that employ volunteers or members of the
organization will have to document how they avoided a conflict of interest during their
procurement process. Grantees who fail to fully document their purchases may find that
their expenditures will be questioned and subsequently disallowed. Grantees who have
membership who are also Federal employees must take appropriate steps to assure that
the Federal employees are not involved in any portion of the grant process and do not
benefit from the grant in any fashion.

60



(8) Submit a performance report to DHS after 6 months as well as a final performance
closeout report. If a grant’s period of performance is extended for any reason, the
grantee must submit performance reports every 6 months until the grant is closed out. At
grant closeout, the grantee must report how the grant funding was used and the benefits
realized from the award in a detailed final report. An accounting of the funds must also be
included. Applicants should be aware that prior performance including timely submission
of performance and closeout reports will be taken into consideration in evaluating future
awards.

(9) Make grant files, books, and records available, if requested, for inspection to ensure
compliance with any requirement of the grant program. Grantees are required to maintain
and retain backup documentation such as bids, quotes, and cost/price analyses on file for
Federal auditors. The required documentation for federally funded purchases should
include specifications, solicitations, purchase orders, invoices, cancelled checks, copies
of competitive quotes or proposals, and basis for selection. Grantees who fail to fully
document their purchases may find that their expenditures will be questioned and
subsequently disallowed.

(10) If the grantee is a fire department, agree to provide information through established
reporting channels to the USFA NFIRS for the period covered by the assistance.
Nonaffiliated EMS organizations do not have to comply with the NFIRS reporting
requirement. If a fire department does not participate in the incident reporting system and
does not have the capacity to report at the time of the award, that grantee must agree to
provide information to the NFIRS system for a 12-month period commencing as soon as
they develop the capacity to report. We expect non-reporting grantees to pursue the
capacity to report immediately after notification of award, and for these non-reporting
grantees to be actively reporting to NFIRS within the approved period of performance.
AFG Program grantees from previous years will not be allowed to closeout their grants
until they demonstrate that they are complying with this requirement. Failure to close out
previous years’ grants may affect the consideration of future awards.

(11) Follow the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Grantees who expend $500,000 or more in
Federal funds during the year they were awarded (from all Federal sources) must have a
single audit performed in accordance with the Circular. (For more information about the
Circulars, go to www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars.)

(12) Comply with Homeland Security Presidential Directive-5 (HSPD-5). Starting
October 1, 2004, HSPD-5 requires all recipients of Federal preparedness funding —
including recipients of Federal grants and contracts — to adopt NIMS as a condition for
receipt of Federal funds. Recipients of FY 2010 AFG funds must comply with this
directive. AFG recipients will be considered in compliance with this NIMS requirement if
the grantee: 1) has an operational knowledge of ICS; 2) has an understanding of NIMS’
principles and policies; and 3) agrees to adopt and/or comply with all directives,
ordinances, rules, orders, edicts, efc., passed down by local or State authorities with
respect to incident management. Organizations already trained in ICS do not need

61



retraining if the previous training was consistent with DHS standards. In order for us to
document compliance, grantees will be required to certify their recognition of NIMS/ICS
as part of the grant closeout process.

(13) Vehicle awardees are required to obtain a prepayment bond if they advance any
funding to the vehicle manufacturer. Vehicle awardees may be required to submit
documentation regarding their purchase as a condition of receiving payment.

(14) Vehicle awardees are required to include a performance clause in their contract.
The clause will specify a delivery date for the vehicle under contract and include a
provision for penalty for non-delivery on the specified date. Non-delivery by the contract’s
guaranteed date will require a penalty for nonperformance that is no less than $100 per
day until the date that the vehicle is delivered. Delivery is not acceptable unless the
vehicle is operational, functioning, and ready to be placed in service.

C. Monitoring

Grant recipients will be monitored periodically by DHS staff, both programmatically and
financially, to ensure that the project goals, objectives, performance requirements,
timelines, milestone completion, budgets, and other related program criteria are being
met. Monitoring will be accomplished through a combination of office-based reviews and
on-site monitoring visits. Monitoring will involve the review and analysis of the financial,
programmatic, performance and administrative issues relative to each project and will
identify areas where technical assistance and other support may be needed.

D. Grant Closeout Process

Within 90 days after the end of the period of performance, grantees must submit a final
closeout report detailing all accomplishments throughout the project. The grantee is
responsible for returning any funds that have been drawn down but remain as
unliquidated in grantee financial records. After the closeout report has been reviewed
and approved by DHS, a closeout notice will be completed to close out the grant.

E. Financial Reporting Requirements

Recipients of any AFG grants awarded on or after October 1, 2009, also will be required
to submit a semi-annual Federal Financial Report (FFR) via the automated system on the
Standard Form 425. The FFR is intended to provide Federal agencies and grant
recipients with a standard format and consistent reporting requirements throughout the
government. The FFR, to be submitted using the online e-grant system, will be due semi-
annually based on the calendar year beginning with the period after the award is made.
Grant recipients will be required to submit a FFR throughout the entire period of
performance of the grant.

Reporting Periods for the FFR:

62



January 1 through June 30 (Report due by July 31)
July 1 through December 31 (Report due by January 30)

At the end of the grant’s period of performance, all grantees are required to produce a
final report on how the grant funding was used and the benefits realized from the award.
Grantees must submit a final financial report and a final performance report within 90
days after the end of the period of performance. After these reports have been reviewed
and approved by DHS, grantees receive an official notice the closeout has been accepted
and completed. Any remaining grant funds are deobligated. The grantee is responsible
for returning any funds that have been drawn down but remain unliquidated.

F. Standard Financial Requirements

The grantees must, in addition to the assurances made as part of the application, comply
with all applicable statutes, regulations, executive orders, OMB Circulars, terms and
conditions of the award, and the approved application.

1. Standard Financial Requirements. The grantee shall comply with all applicable
laws and regulations. A non-exclusive list of regulations commonly applicable to DHS
grants are listed below:

1.1 — Administrative Requirements.
* 44 CFR Part 13, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments
* 2 CFR Part 215, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-
Profit Organizations (OMB Circular A-110)

1.2 — Cost Principles.

» 2 CFR Part 225, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian tribal
Governments (OMB Circular A-87)

* 2 CFR Part 220, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions (OMB Circular
A-21)

* 2 CFR Part 230, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations (OMB Circular
A-122)

* 48 CFR 31.2, Federal Acquisitions Regulations (FAR), Contracts with
Commercial Organizations

1.3 — Duplication of Benefits. There may not be a duplication of any Federal
assistance by governmental entities, per 2 CFR Part 225, Basic Guidelines Section
C.3 (c), which states: Any cost allocable to a particular Federal award or cost
objective under the principles provided for in this Authority may not be charged to
other Federal awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed
by law or terms of the Federal awards, or for other reasons. However, this
prohibition would not preclude governmental units from shifting costs that are
allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing program

63



agreements. Non-governmental entities are also subject to this prohibition per 2
CFR Parts 220 and 230 and 48 CFR 31.2.

2. Payment. DHS/FEMA uses the Direct Deposit/Electronic Funds Transfer (DD/EFT)
method of payment to Recipients. Requests for payment are submitted via the
automated AFG grant system.

2.1 - Advance Payment. In accordance with Treasury regulations at 31 CFR Part
205, the Recipient shall maintain procedures to minimize the time elapsing
between the transfer of funds and the disbursement of said funds (See 44 CFR
Part 13.21(i)) regarding payment of interest earned on advances. In order to
request an advance, the Recipient must maintain or demonstrate the willingness
and ability to maintain procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the
transfer of funds from DHS and expenditure and disbursement by the Recipient.
When these requirements are not met, the Recipient will be required to be on a
reimbursement for costs incurred method.

NOTE: FUNDS WILL NOT BE AUTOMATICALLY TRANSFERRED UPON
ISSUANCE OF THE GRANT. GRANTEES MUST SUBMIT A REQUEST FOR
ADVANCE/REIMBURSEMENT (SF-270) IN ORDER FOR THE FUNDS TO BE
TRANSFERRED TO THE GRANTEE’S ACCOUNT.

2.2 - Cash Management. In accordance with 44CFR13.21(3)(i) grantees and
sub-grantees shall promptly, but at least quarterly, remit interest earned on
advances to the Federal agency, except for interest exempt under the
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (31USC 6501 et seq.) and the Indian Self-
Determination Act (23 USC 450). The grantee or sub-grantee may keep interest
amounts up to $100 per year for administrative expenses.

3. Non-supplanting Requirement. Grant funds will be used to supplement existing
funds, and will not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the same
purpose. Applicants or grantees may be required to supply documentation certifying
that a reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt
or expected receipt of Federal funds.

4. Administrative Requirements.

4.1 — Compliance with Federal civil rights laws and regulations. The grantee
is required to comply with Federal civil rights laws and regulations. Specifically,
the grantee is required to provide assurances as a condition for receipt of Federal
funds that its programs and activities comply with the following:

* Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42. U.S.C. §2000 et
seq. — Provides that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in any program or activity receiving

64



Federal financial assistance. Title VI also extends protection to persons
with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). (42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.)

» Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C.
§1681 et seq. — Provides that no person, on the basis of sex, be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to
discrimination under any education program or activity receiving Federal
financial assistance.

» Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §794
— Provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the
United States, shall, solely by reason of his or her disability, be excluded
from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subject to
discrimination in any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance.

* The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 20 U.S.C. §6101 et seq.
— Provides that no person in the United States shall, on the basis of age, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance.

Grantees must comply with all regulations, guidelines, and standards adopted
under the above statutes. The grantee is also required to submit information, as
required, to the DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties concerning its
compliance with these laws and their implementing regulations.

4.2 - Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons. Recipients of
FEMA financial assistance are required to comply with several Federal civil rights
laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. These laws
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, natural origin, and sex in
the delivery of services. National origin discrimination includes discrimination on
the basis of limited English proficiency. To ensure compliance with Title VI,
recipients are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may entail providing
language assistance services, including oral and written translation, where
necessary. The grantee is encouraged to consider the need for language services
for LEP persons served or encountered both in developing their proposals and
budgets and in conducting their programs and activities. Reasonable costs
associated with providing meaningful access for LEP individuals are considered
allowable program costs. For additional information, see http:/www.lep.gov.

4.3 — Certifications and Assurances. Certifications and assurances regarding
the following apply:

65



Lobbying. — 31 U.S.C. §1352, Limitation on use of appropriated funds to
influence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions. — Prohibits
the use of Federal funds in lobbying members and employees of Congress,
as well as employees of Federal agencies, with respect to the award or
amendment of any Federal grant, cooperative agreement, contract, or loan.
FEMA and DHS have codified restrictions upon lobbying at 44 CFR Part 18
and 6 CFR Part 9. (Refer to form included in application package.)

Drug-free Workplace Act, as amended, 41 U.S.C. §701 et seq. — Requires
the recipient to publish a statement about its drug-free workplace program
and give a copy of the statement to each employee (including consultants
and temporary personnel) who will be involved in award-supported activities
at any site where these activities will be carried out. Also, place(s) where
work is being performed under the award (i.e., street address, city, state and
zip code) must be maintained on file. The recipient must notify the Grants
Officer of any employee convicted of a violation of a criminal drug statute
that occurs in the workplace. For additional information, see 44 CFR Part
17.

Debarment and Suspension. — Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 provide
protection from fraud, waste, and abuse by debarring or suspending those
persons that deal in an irresponsible manner with the Federal government.
The recipient must certify that they are not debarred or suspended from
receiving Federal assistance. For additional information, see 2 CFR Part
3000.

Federal Debt Status. — The recipient may not be delinquent in the
repayment of any Federal debt. Examples of relevant debt include
delinquent payroll or other taxes, audit disallowances, and benefit
overpayments. (See OMB Circular A-129) (Refer to SF-424, item number
17.)

Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990. — In accordance with section 6 of
the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. §2225a, the recipient
agrees to ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space
funded in whole or in part with Federal funds, complies with the fire
prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control
Act of 1974, 15 U.S.C. §2225.

Grantees must comply with all regulations, guidelines, and standards adopted
under the above statutes.

4.4 — Integrating individuals with disabilities into emergency planning.
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, prohibits discrimination
against people with disabilities in all aspects of emergency mitigation, planning,
response, and recovery by entities receiving financial funding from FEMA. In

66



addition, Executive Order 13347, Individuals with Disabilities in Emergency
Preparedness signed in July 2004, requires the Federal government to support
safety and security for individuals with disabilities in situations involving disasters,
including earthquakes, tornadoes, fires, floods, hurricanes, and acts of terrorism.
Executive Order 13347 requires the Federal government to encourage
consideration of the needs of individuals with disabilities served by State, local,
and tribal governments in emergency preparedness planning.

4.5 — Whistleblower Protection. Each recipient or sub-recipient awarded funds
made available under the ARRA shall promptly refer to the FEMA Office of
Inspector General any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent,
contractor, sub-recipient, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false
claim under the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation of
laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct
involving those funds (ARRA Sec. 1553). The DHS Office of Inspector General
can be reached at http://www.oig.Department.gov/fraud/hotline/.

4.6 — Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation Compliance. FEMA
is required to consider the potential impacts to the human and natural environment
of projects proposed for FEMA grant funding. FEMA, through its Environmental
Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Program, engages in a review process
to ensure that FEMA-funded activities comply with various Federal laws including:
National Environmental Policy Act, National Historic Preservation Act, Endangered
Species Act, the Clean Water Act, and Executive Orders on Floodplains (11988),
Wetlands (11990), Environmental Justice (12898). The goal of these compliance
requirements is to protect our nation’s water, air, coastal, wildlife, agricultural,
historical, and cultural resources, as well as to minimize potential adverse effects
to low-income and minority populations.

The grantee shall provide all relevant information to FEMA to ensure compliance
with applicable Federal EHP requirements. Any project with the potential to impact
natural or biological resources or historic properties cannot be initiated until FEMA
has completed the required EHP review. In addition to a detailed project
description that describes what is to be done with the grant funds, how it will be
done, and where it will be done, grantees shall provide detailed information about
the project (where applicable), including, but not limited to, the following:

Project location (i.e., exact street address or map coordinates)

Total extent of ground disturbance and vegetation clearing

Extent of modification of existing structures

Construction equipment to be used, staging areas, etc.

Year that any affected buildings or structures were built

Natural, biological, and/or cultural resources present within the project area
and vicinity, including wetlands, floodplains, geologic resources, threatened
or endangered species, or National Register of Historic Places listed or
eligible properties, etc.

67



* Visual documentation such as good quality, color and labeled site and
facility photographs, project plans, aerial photos, maps, etc.

* Alternative ways considered to implement the project (not applicable to
procurement of mobile and portable equipment)

For projects that have the potential to impact sensitive resources, FEMA must
consult with other Federal, State, and tribal agencies such as the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, State Historic Preservation Offices, and the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers, as well as other agencies and organizations responsible for the
protection and/or management of natural and cultural resources, including
Federally-recognized Indian tribes, Tribal Historic Preservation Offices, and the
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs. For projects with the potential
to have adverse effects on the environment and/or historic properties, FEMA’s
EHP review process and consultation may result in a substantive agreement
between the involved parties outlining how the grantee will avoid the effects,
minimize the effects, or, if necessary, compensate for the effects. Grantees who
are proposing communication tower projects are encouraged to complete their
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) EHP process prior to preparing their
EHP review materials for FEMA, and to include their FCC EHP materials with their
submission to FEMA. Completing the FCC process first and submitting all relevant
EHP documentation to FEMA will help expedite FEMA'’s review.

Because of the potential for adverse effects to EHP resources or public
controversy, some projects may require an additional assessment or report, such
as an Environmental Assessment, Biological Assessment, archaeological survey,
cultural resources report, wetlands delineation, or other document, as well as a
public comment period. Grantees are responsible for the preparation of such
documents, as well as for the implementation of any treatment or mitigation
measures identified during the EHP review that are necessary to address potential
adverse impacts. Grantees may use grant funds toward the costs of preparing
such documents. The use of grant funds for mitigation or treatment measures that
are not typically allowable expenses will be considered on a case-by-case basis.
Failure of the grantee to meet Federal, State, local and territorial EHP
requirements, obtain required permits, and comply with any conditions that may be
placed on the project as the result of FEMA’s EHP review may jeopardize Federal
funding.

Recipients shall not undertake any project without the prior approval of FEMA, and
must comply with all conditions placed on the project as the result of the EHP
review. Any change to the approved project description will require re-evaluation
for compliance with these EHP requirements. If ground disturbing activities occur
during project implementation, the recipient must ensure monitoring of ground
disturbance, and if any potential archeological resources are discovered, the
recipient will immediately cease construction in that area and notify their FEMA
Program Office, and the appropriate State Historic Preservation Office. Any

68



projects that have been initiated prior to approval will result in a non-compliance
finding and will not be eligible for funding.

For more information on FEMA'’s EHP requirements, Grantees should refer to
FEMA'’s Information Bulletin #329, Environmental Planning and Historic
Preservation Requirements for Grants, available at
http://ojp.usdoj.qov/odp/docs/info329.pdf. Additional information and resources
can also be found at http./www.fema.qgov/plan/ehp/ehp-applicant-help.shtm.

69



PART VII.

FEMA CONTACTS

This section describes several resources that may help applicants in completing an AFG
Grant application.

AFG Help Desk. AFG staffs a help desk throughout the application period. The help
desk can provide assistance with navigation through the automated application as well as
provide programmatic assistance with respect to questions of eligibility. The help desk
can be contacted at 1-866-274-0960 or via email at firegrants@dhs.gov. The help desk
hours of operation during the application period are from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Monday
through Friday; and 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., on Saturday. All times listed are eastern
times.

DHS Regional Fire Program Specialists. Each of the DHS Regions has specialists that
can assist applicants with the application process. Interested parties may contact the
AFG helpdesk for information on the nearest regional specialists.

70



PART VIII.

OTHER INFORMATION

Excess Funds

Occasionally, due to successful competitive bid processes, some grantees have funds
remaining after the completion of the obligations outlined above. Fire department
grantees have four options for the use of the excess funds if they complete the approved
scope of work prior to the end of the performance period. Requests for use of excess
funds must be submitted for consideration prior to the end of the approved period of
performance, and any initiatives requested must be completed within the approved period
of performance or within a reasonable extension to the period of performance (e.g., 3 to 4
months after the period of performance). The four options are as follows:

(1) Grantees may use the greater of 1 percent of their award amount or $5,000 to
continue or expand the activities for which they received the award. For example, if a
grantee has funds remaining after completion of the activities listed in their grant
agreement, the grantee may use excess funds (subject to the above limitation) to
purchase other eligible items without seeking DHS approval.

(2) Grantees may use excess funds to create or expand a fire or injury prevention project.
Excess funds above the amounts discussed in paragraph (1) above must be used for
fire or injury prevention activities or returned to DHS [See option (3) below]. In order
to use excess funds for fire or injury prevention activities, a grantee must submit an
amendment to their grant. The amendment request should explain the following:

i)  Fire orinjury prevention efforts currently underway in your organization.

ii)  Where the use of excess funds would fit within your existing efforts, if
applicable.

iii)  What fire or injury problem you are trying to address with these funds.

iv) The target audience for your fire or injury prevention project(s), and how
this audience was identified.

v)  How you will implement/deliver your project(s).

vi) How you will evaluate the effectiveness of the requested fire or injury
prevention project(s).

(3) Grantees may use up to 50 percent of their excess funds for training and/or
wellness/fitness activities. In order to implement this option, the grantee must submit

71



an amendment and explain the proposed project and the timeframe to complete the
project.

(4) Grantees may return excess funds to DHS. To exercise this option, a grantee must
closeout their grant and state in the final performance report that the remaining funds
are not necessary to fulfill grant obligations. The grantee must also indicate that they
understand that the funds will be deobligated and unavailable for future expenses.
Deobligation of excess funds will decrease the Federal portion of the grant and the
amount of the grantee’s match.

Fire department grantees that complete the approved scope of work prior to the end of
the performance period and still have grant funds available may use the excess funds in a
combination of activities from the options above. Nonaffiliated EMS organizations that
have excess funds may exercise the same options as a fire department; however, EMS
organizations may not expend grant funds for fire prevention activities. Rather, EMS
organizations are restricted to uses that only involve injury prevention projects and
initiatives.

72



COPY OF EMAIL NOTIFICATION OF GRANT AWARD

From: Day, Andrea [mailto:andrea.day@dhs.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, December 22, 2010 6:37 PM

To: CLienhardt@Antioch.IL.Gov; JNixon@antioch.il.gov

Cc: Day, Andrea

Subject: ANTIOCH FIRE DEPARTMENT, lllinois: EMW-2010-FV-04186 - QUESTIONNAIRE
Importance: High

Dear 2010 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program Applicant:

I am Andrea Day, the Grants Management Specialist from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Grant Programs Directorate, assigned to review your
Fiscal Year (FY) 2010 AFG (Assistance to Firefighters Grant) grant application. Your
application was favorably reviewed by a panel of your peers. As such, | have a few
matters to discuss/verify with you prior to processing your application any further.
Please be advised, this is not a notification of award; it is only a preliminary discussion
of your application. If the Program Office has made reductions to your original request,
please maintain a copy of your E-mail accepting the reductions to your original
application for your official records.

1) The Program Office has made the following reductions to your grant:

The total project cost was reduced per the Program Office comments from $425,000 to
$300,000. The federal share was reduced from $403,750 to $285,000. The applicant
share was reduced from $21,250 to $15,000.

The approved cost for fire engine apparatus is $300,000, not $425,000.
If you are selected for a grant award, will you accept this reduction?

2a) If you are selected for a grant award, can your department meet the required cost-
share?

2b) How are you planning to meet the required cost-share?

3) If you are selected for an award, do you understand that the grant funds can only
be used to purchase the number and types of items listed in the Request Details section
of the approved grant application. Any changes to the number of items listed in request
details must be approved by FEMA. You understand that you have to complete the
project (i.e., order the goods or services, receive the goods or services, and accept the
goods or services) within the grant’'s one-year period of performance?

4). If you are selected, do you understand that your department will be required to
report to National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) for one year commencing at



your earliest convenience during the performance period of the grant? Nonaffiliated
EMS organizations do not have to comply with the NFIRS reporting requirement.

* If you need assistance reporting to NFIRS, you may call the support center toll free
number 1-888-382-3827.

5) Is your department fully compliant with the National Incident Management System
(NIMS) directives issued by your State and your local jurisdiction?

6a) After you submitted this application, did your department have an urgent need to
purchase any of the items requested in the application? If so, please provide the
following information:

. what was purchased

. guantity of items purchase

. cost of the items purchased

. date item/items were purchased

. rationale for purchase prior to award

6b) If you used a grant writer and included the grant writer’s fee in your budget, please
fax a copy of the bank statement and canceled check (front and back) that was paid to

the grant writer to 202-786-9905, to the attention of the Grants Management Specialist
who contacted you. Please include the following information: Grant Number, FD name,
city and state.

7) Do you have any changes to your contact information provided in your application,
such as the names of the individuals, phone numbers, or email addresses? If so please
update your application prior to award. If you have listed your agencies primary phone
number, and it is not staffed fulltime, please contact information where someone can
be reached right away.

* |If the primary point of contact has a new email address, please follow the instructions
below:

Using the same user name and id when you applied for the grant, log into
https://portal.fema.gov. Once you are into the Status screen, you will select Edit Profile
located in the top of the screen. Your next screen will reveal your personal information
where you will see your current email address listed. Once you have edited the email
address you will click on the Save button. You will then receive a confirmation screen
that your profile has been updated but you are NOT finished — you must click near the
top left Authorized Applications. You will then click on Firefighters Grant link near the
top left to ensure that all updated profile information is transferred through the system.

8a) Do you have any changes to your DUNS number, EIN number (36-6005772) or
your banking information listed in your application?



8b) Are you sharing an EIN with your city and/or county? If so, please name the
parent entity.

8c) Do you have authorization to use this EIN#?

(9) Does your department have any previous AFG/SAFER/FP&S grants that are past
their period of performance and have not been properly closed out? If so this may
complicate awarding further grants (Performance on prior awards is taken into
consideration when processing new applications. Closing out overdue AFG grants may
facilitate further processing of your FY2010 application.).

10) Have you received any other Federal funding this fiscal year?

If you responded yes, please indicate the name of the agency that awarded you federal
funding and a brief summary of the items that were awarded.

11a) VEHICLE Applicants only: Do you understand that vehicle awardees will be
required to include a Penalty Clause as part of the contract with the vehicle
manufacturer. If you request the 25 % of federal funds for down payment as discussed
in the program guidance you will be required to obtain a prepayment bond.

Please note, extensions to a grant's period of performance may not be considered if a
Penalty clause and a performance bond are not included in the purchase contract.

11b) Do you certify that you currently have a comprehensive driver/operator training
program (compliant with NFPA 1002) already in place or, if you do not have a
comprehensive driver/operator training program and you are awarded a grant, do you
certify that your Department will have a program in place within one year of the award?

11c) Do you verify that the vehicle being replaced will be completely removed from
service? In order to comply with this requirement, you may NOT donate, sell, give, or
transfer your unsafe vehicle to any other emergency response organization for the
purpose of emergency response.

Again, this is not a notification of award; it is only a preliminary discussion of your
application. Once | complete my review, and receive your favorable reply to this
message, | will forward your application on to the next phase. If your department is
selected you will be notified by e-mail through our on-line grants system. In that email,
you will be directed to a website to print the award forms and other pertinent
information.

Sincerely,

Andrea Day

Grants Management Specialist
Grant Management Division
FEMA/DHS



Request For Board Action

REFERRED TO BOARD January 3, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 6

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Administration

SUBJECT: Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-3 of the Municipal Code of
Antioch Setting Special Tap-On Fees for the Clublands Subdivision

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:

The Village has long required payments for the privilege of connecting to the water and sewer lines,
which payments are colloquially known as “tap fees” or “tap-on fees”. Consistent with statutory
provisions regulating the same and local ordinances, the funds generated have been used for the
construction, extension, maintenance and improvements to the Village’s water and sewer system which
is a critical issue that is central to safeguarding public health. Construction and maintenance in turn
depend on the continued receipt of adequate funds for pipes, pumps, equipment, vehicles and personnel
needed for the monitoring, rehabilitation and repairs of the lines and other facilities.

During the development of the Clublands Subdivision by Neumann Homes, Inc. (“Neumann Homes")
in the early 2000’s, there were certain disputes between the Neumann Homes and the Village which
resulted in the Village expending significant funds to install and maintain certain components of the
water system providing potable water to that subdivision. The subsequent bankruptcy of Neumann
Homes resulted in the creation of certain legal impediments to the Village’s being able to obtain full and
fair reimbursement from Neumann Homes for the expenses it incurred, and it also generated the
existence of a claim by Neumann Homes’ bankrupt estate for reimbursement for the funds Neumann
Homes expended.

Pursuant to the provisions of an Order of the United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of
Illinois, Eastern Division in the case of In Re: Neumann Homes, Inc., causes number 07-21412 through
07-20417 and 07-21468 through 07-21470 by Judge Eugene B. Wedoff on July 23, 2008, and pursuant to
the agreements memorialized therein, a special tap fee in the amount of $4,000.00 per residence is hereby
imposed on all residential properties located within the Clublands Subdivision for the privilege of
tapping into the Village’s existing water system, which special tap fee is imposed in lieu of any and all
other water tap fees imposed by the Village pursuant to law. This special tap fee shall apply to all
building permits for houses constructed on lots in the Clublands Subdivision applied for or issued at any
time after the adoption of this amendatory ordinance.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Ordinance

RECOMMENDED MOTION:




I | I |

Move to accept the first reading of An Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-3 of the Municipal Code of
Antioch Setting Special Tap-On Fees for the Clublands Subdivision.

Or

Move to waive first and second reading and approve An Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-3 of the
Municipal Code of Antioch Setting Special Tap-On Fees for the Clublands Subdivision.

1 | | | N



ORDINANCE 11 -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 813-1-3 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ANTIOCH
SETTING SPECIAL TAP-ON FEES FOR THE CLUBLANDS SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Village has long required payments for the privilege of connecting to the
water and sewer lines, which payments are colloquially known as “tap fees” or “tap-on fees”,
and

WHEREAS, consistent with statutory provisions regulating the same and local ordinances, the
funds so generated have been used for the construction, extension, maintenance and
improvements to the Village’s water and sewer system, and

WHEREAS, construction and continued maintenance of the water and sewer system is a
critical issue that is central to the safeguarding of public health, and that construction and
maintenance in turn depends on the continued receipt of adequate funds for pipes, pumps,
equipment, vehicles and personnel needed for the monitoring, rehabilitation and repairs of the
lines and other facilities, and

WHEREAS, during the development of the Clublands Subdivision by Neumann Homes, Inc.
(“Neumann Homes”) in the early 2000’s, there were certain disputes between the Neumann
Homes and the Village which resulted in the Village expending significant funds to install and
maintain certain components of the water system providing potable water to that subdivision,
and

WHEREAS, Neumann Homes also expended significant funds in the said installations, and

WHEREAS, the Clublands Subdivision is comprised of the geographical territory legally
described on Exhibit A hereto, and

WHEREAS, the subsequent bankruptcy of Neumann Homes resulted in the creation of certain
legal impediments to the Village’s being able to obtain full and fair reimbursement from
Neumann Homes for the expenses it incurred as referenced hereinabove, and it also generated
the existence of a claim by Neumann Homes’ bankrupt estate for reimbursement for the funds
Neumann Homes expended, and

WHEREAS, the Clublands Subdivision was owned by Neumann Homes subject to a mortgage
placed upon the land by the Cole Taylor Bank, and during the pendency of the Neumann Homes
bankruptcy, a series of negotiations were conducted between the Village, Neumann Homes and
Cole Taylor Bank, among others, which ultimately resulted in the entry by United States
Bankruptcy Judge Eugene B. Wedoff of an Order in the bankruptcy proceedings known as a
“Relief from Stay Order”, and other orders related to the development and disposition of the
Clublands Subdivision, and



WHEREAS, these orders collectively allowed the Village to pursue claims against the surety
bonds issued by the Fidelity & Deposit Company of Maryland (“F&D”) regarding certain Public
Improvements in the Clublands Subdivision; allowed the Village and F&D to complete Public
Improvements in the Clublands Subdivision; allowed the Village to draw upon funds remaining
in SSA-2; and provided for the conveyance of Neumann Homes’ interest in the Clublands
Subdivision to Cole Taylor Bank, and

WHEREAS, a true copy of the Relief from Stay Order entered on July 23, 2008 is attached
hereto as Exhibit B, and it is incorporated herein by reference, and

WHEREAS, paragraph 1(f) of the Relief from Stay Order provides for the tap fees in the
Clublands Subdivision to be increased to $4,000.00 per lot, and

WHEREAS, Neumann Homes, Cole Taylor Bank, F&D and the Village agreed to the entry of
the Relief from Stay Order and the increase of the tap fees to $4,000.00 per lot, and

WHEREAS, this increase in tap fees will expedite the recovery and reimbursement of the costs
and expenses for construction of the Public Improvements, including the water treatment plant
and related water systems, and will further provide for the continued maintenance of the systems
for the benefit of the owners and residents of properties within the Clublands Subdivision, and

WHEREAS, under the unique situation described hereinabove, and within the specific grant of
permission of the bankruptcy court, coupled with the agreement of the bankrupt debtor as the
property owner (Neumann Homes), the lending mortgagee holding a security interest in the land
(Cole Taylor Bank), the surety (F&D) and the Village, there is a good and sufficient justification
for applying a larger fee for the privilege of tapping into the Village’s water supply system in
Clublands Subdivision, despite the general applicability of tap fees on a uniform basis
throughout the Village in all other geographical areas thereof, and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, as
follows:

SECTION ONE: The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and made a substantive part of
this Ordinance, and comprise the specific findings of the corporate authorities on the matters
therein set forth.

SECTION TWO: Section 13-1-3 of the Antioch Municipal Code is hereby amended by the
addition of the following subsection B.1.3, which shall hereafter read as follows:

3. CLUBLANDS SUBDIVISION SPECIAL RATES. Pursuant to the provisions of an
Order of the United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division in the case of In Re: Neumann Homes, Inc., causes number 07-21412 through
07-20417 and 07-21468 through 07-21470 by Judge Eugene B. Wedoff on July 23, 2008,
and pursuant to the agreements memorialized therein, a special tap fee in the amount of
$4,000.00 per residence is hereby imposed on all residential properties located within the
Clublands Subdivision for the privilege of tapping into the Village’s existing water



system, which special tap fee is imposed in lieu of any and all all other water tap fees
imposed by the Village pursuant to law. This special tap fee shall apply to all building
permits for houses constructed on lots in the Clublands Subdivision applied for or issued
at any time after the adoption of this amendatory ordinance on January 3, 2011. Nothing
in this paragraph shall affect any other fees, taxes, permits, licenses or other charges or
requirements imposed by law upon the lots in the Clublands Subvision.

SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval and publication as required by law.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, ILLINOIS,
ON THIS DAY OF , 2011.

ATTEST:

LAWRENCE M. HANSON, MAYOR

CANDI L. ROWE, VILLAGE CLERK



N THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
CEASTERN DIVISION

3 Case Nos. 07-20412 through 07-20417, and
In e 07-21468 through 07-23470
(ointly Administered
NEUMARNN BOMES INC..
N} i{;if\}:w‘h HUMES INC., Chapter 11

Hon. Bogene ¥, Wedof!

R . L

Debtors,

STIPULATION AND AGREED ORDER REGARDING VILLAGE OF ANTIOCIPS
MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM STAY (DOCKET NO, 123) AND THE VILLAGE OF
ANTIOCH'S SUPPLEMENTAL MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM STAY DOCKET NO. 613}

Lipon the Village of Antioch’™s Motion for Reliel fom Stay [Docket No. 123 {ihe
“Stey Motign™) and the Village of Antioch’s Supplemental Mation for Relief from Stay ' Dockei

Mo, 66 (the “Supplemental Stay Metion™ and together with the Stay Motion, the “Matons™"

of the Village of Anticch {the “Village™), for entry of an order {the “Qrder™ for relief from (he
automatic stay, it ie hereby
ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:
i. The Villuge, by agreement with the Debtors, including Newrann Homes,

RRAY

tne, ("Neumann ™), and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland (CE&D™;, 8 surety under
certam subdivision and site improvement bonds issued with respact to the Debtors’ “Clublands
Development” {(which is identified as the “Development” in the Public Infrestructure

Agreement for Special Service Area Number 2: Clublands (the “Infrastructurs A greement™,

Tl Debtors suesist oft Newmann Howmes, Ine. {EIN: 36-3372185): NDC Fobrications, 1L (HTN RO-38278E9)
Neumana fomes of Colorads, LLC (EIN: J0-DOEEIETY, Nevmann Hemes of Michigen, LU (BIN; 20
0266814, Neumann Homes of Wiscomsin, LILE (HIN: 134233 138); New Peo Co,, LLC (UEN: 2023027020,
Nillsky Ranch, LLZ(EIN: 20-2680457); Precision Framing Systerns, LLC (EIN: 41 1304308}, and Sy
Ranch, LI (BIN: 20-2680547).

[

Ulntless atherwise defined horain, capitaliced terms nsed herein shall have the meanings wictbed o thans i tin
Motions.



altached to the Supplemental Stay Motion as Exhibit “B", including the Water Treatment Plant’
and all other onsight and offsite public improvements relating to the Clublands Developmont),
shiail be, and is hereby gramted reliet from the automatic stay such that:

{a)  The Villsge may declare Neumznn to he in breack ov default of its
oblhgations under the Infrastructure Agreement and related agreements for the purpose of
completing certain Public Improvements identifisd in the Punchlists {uttached as Fxhibits H
shrough K w ihe Supplementat Stay Motion insofar as they pertain to the Clublands
Development) and Priority Lists (attached a5 Exhibits Q through Q to the Supplemental Stay
Motion insofar as they pertain 1 the Ciublands Development) (without Hmiting the claims that
are proserved tierein, the undertakings set forth herein with respact 10 the complatinr. of the
Public Improvements, subject to their performance, constitating 2 cure of any performance
defanlts relating 1o thoss Public Improvements under Section 365 of the Bankruptey Coda.)
Subjet to Paragraph 1(f) and alt other available defenses, the Village's claim voder the
Apphoable Tievelopment Agreements (as defined later herein, logether with all other related
agreements) for reimbursement of its costs and expenscs, including reasonable sttorne v fees
arising oul of the breach or default of the Deblors to complete the Public Timprovemenis s fully
preserved even though the Public Improverments may be completed by the Village, F&I2 or
fiture developsrs;

() The Village may make demand wpon P&D) to perform its
vbligations under five Site Improvement Bond No. 08614792 dated October 29, 2002 4o the

onginal ameunt af $3,122,003.13, (the “Phase 1 Band") and Subdivision/Site Trmprovement

Y The Water Treatment Plant is the subject of an agreement dated Ceteber 4, 2004 between Newmann and te
Village entidsd “Agroement For Constiyetion of Polable Water Improvements” and s also subjee: to btigatun
pending b the Cirguit Court of Lake County, Tiinois a5 Case No. 06 [, 419,

-7

HEE AT R




Bond No. 05663983 dated September 29, 2004 in the revised amount of $3,316,832.20, (the
“Phase 3 Bond"} (collectively, the “Bonds™) with respect to those aspects of the Public
Improvemenis idemified in the Pauchlists and Priority Lists:

(¢} F&D,under the terms and conditions of those gertain complation
agreements {the “Complelion Agreements™ which have been executed by the Village and F&D
obligations, under the Bonds issued for Phase | and Phase 3 of the Clubjands Drevelopment by
cither compleding the frems identified as the “A” items on the Phase Priorlry List and identificd
as the “A” fterns on the Phase 3 Priority List for Clublands o, if so elected by F&D priog to
August 15, 2008, by paying the penal sum of cither the Phase 1 Bond or the Phase 3 Bond or
both. Fayment by F&ID of the penal sum of either bond shall constitute a complete discharpe of
F&1Y's ohligaticns under the bond for which the penal sum s paid. In the cvent that F&D clects
ter pay the penal sutn of etther the Phase 1 Bood or the Phase 3 Hond, the Villape shall make no
use or digtribution of such funds other than for installation of the Public Improvemens as
icentiffed as the “A” iterns on the Priority List for Clublands Phase 1 or Clublands Mhase 1, as
spplicable, Lnless otherwise agreed to by the Debiors and the Village, if there are funds
remaining afier the Viltage completes said Public Inprovements, the Village shall appiv that
surplus (the “Surety Surpius™ against any allowed cure or administrative claims as pravided in
Paragraph (). The Village and F&I? may not in the Completion Agreements or olhorwise agres
without the consent of the Debtors or the respective purchaser of Clublands Phase | or Clublands
Phase 3, which consent shail not be unreasonably wiibheld, {1) to extend the complotion date of
the "A” itents on the Phase 1 Priority List and the Phase 3 Priority List beyond November 30,

2008, or {ii) to materially reduce the scepe of the "A” nems identificd in the Phase | Priority List

ISV 5R0T4.4




and “A” items Hentified in the Phase 3 Priority List. In the event that F&D clects not 1o pay the
penal sum but instead undertaiies to complete the construction of instaliment of a particular
seclion or ares of a public improvement, it shall complete such construction or instailment in
- aceordance with the terms of the Completion Agreement. The Village reserves its vighds ko muake
further demands upon the Bonds and any other bonds issued relating to the Clublands
Developmeny, inciuding any bonds relating to the Water Treatment Plant,

{)  The Village may complete the Public Improvements for Clublands
Phesa 2, as werdified on the relevant Punchlist (attached as Exhibit | to the Supplemental Stay
Motion). The Village shall substantislly complete the Public Inprovements for Clublands Phase
2 which wre identificd as the Village’s Responsibility Report for Phase ITwhich is attached as
Exhibit B herero, on or before November 30, 2008 (weather permitting, or by June 30, 2009),
provided that, and to the extent that, funds from S8A-2 are available for the Phase 2 Public
Improvernents, To tho extent there are not sufficient $8A-2 funds for the Village to connplete tha
Public Improvements listed on the Village’s Responsibility Report for Phase 2 (Exhibit BY, the
Village may ngvertheless uémp’letﬂ such improvements provided that any future buver shall not
b responsitle for more than 10% o the costs of such inpravements, with the future buyer’s
Lubility capped at 560,000 (the “Phase 2 Cap™). The Village may not deny  permit or certificate
of cceupancy to the-future builder on account of the improvements Hsted as the Village's
responsihility on Exhibit B not having been completed, but the Village may deny peenils if the
future builder does not contribute its share toward the Phase 2 Cap. For informational PUIPOSCS
only, the Village skall provide to the Debtor copies of the hid documents three (3} husiness davy
before they are iysued for bid and copies of bids received (along with an indication of the

awarded bid} within {hree (3) business days before work commences. The Dehtor rany provide

CESERILTRR- 2540




commens or input o the bid process or awarded bids, but any such comments or inpui shall not
prevent the Village from proceeding with the Public Improvements, the partios reserving i of
their rights and defenses with respect thereto. Once work on any particular seetion or area of 2
Public Improvemont hus been commenced, it shall be substantially completed by November 30,
2008 (weather permitting, ot by June 30, 2009). To the extent consistent with the underlying
83A-2 docunams, the Village shall promptly draw upon the SSA-2 Emprovement Fund for BV
such items as o which S85A-2 funding is available.

{e}  Provided that F&D or its contractar installs Public Tmprovemonts
in Phase | and/or Phase 3 as contemplated by this Order, F&D may assert one or more ciaims
against the Debtors 1 connection with the performance of its obligations under the surety bosds
which are the subject of' the Motion, the completion of the Public Improvements and the matters
for which the siay is lifted, which, by F&D’s agreement, shall be Emited to:

(i}  asccured claim as to each development phase
whigh {1} is junior in all respects to the liens of Cole Tayior Bank {inciuding the
“earve out” agreement between the Debtors and Cole Taylor Bunk 25 to the
sharing of preceeds froin the sale of a development in which Cole Tayior Bank
has a lien) and any other existing liens on the development, neiuding any special
service tax tens, (ii) pertaing only to the cost of work desigriated as “new work™
{as opposed to “repair work”) by agecement between F&D and the Debtors, (1) is
Umited in amount to 20% of the actual cost incurred by K& of completing the
new word i 4 particular phase of & development which is not reimbursed from
any {hird party source multiplied by a fruction, the numersior of which is equal to
the number of lots owned by the Debtors in such development phase as of the date
hereof and the denominator of which is equal to the jotal number of iots in such

development phase times, and (iv) attaches only to the proceeds of the sale of
Phase 1 and/or Phase 3, as applicable and

(i} an unsecured claim for the actual costs incurred hy
F&D tor compieting the Public Improvements that is not reimbursed by the
secured claim described in clause (i) or any third panty source.
¥ F&I pavs the pemal sum of either brmd to the Village, the Village shiall, on or before June 30,

2009, construct the Fublic Improvements for Phase 1 or Phase 3 up to {he extent of the [unds

_5.

GIATS00 ] ARERAS




reeeived from F&D and itom available $8A-2 funds which are remaiming afier completion ol the
Public Improvement in Phase 2 and reimbursement of engineering fees as swated in the
Cornpieticn Agreement, The Village may assert a securad claim as sel forth in this paragraph
He}1) and (Y above, et only to the extent the costs to complete the Improvements for Phase |
or Phase 3 exveed the amounts that the Village recaves from F&D or from $54-2 for the Phase
i or Phase 3 Improvements, For informational purposes only, the Village shall provide to the
Deblor copics of the bid decuments three (3) business days before they are issued for bid and
ropies of bids received {along with an indication of the awarded bid} within three {3} business
days before work conimeznces. The Debtor may provide comments or input on the bid process or
awarded bids, bui any such comments or input shall not prevent the Village from proceeding
with the Publiz Improvements, the parties reserving all of their rights and defenses with respeet
therela,

i The Village reserves all of its rights (including any right o sctoff)
1oy asserl an adminisirative or cure claim as to any maliers relating to the Clublands Development,
inchiding the Water Treatment Plant (and the Debtors and all othier partics reserve all righis to
contest any such claims), provided that, (i) the Village may assert an atministrative or cure slaim
for the construction costs for the Phase 2 Public Improvements 2s identified on the relevant
Punich Lisis only 4o the extent the Village, after using its best effor(s, cannot recover those
construction costs from S8A-2 funds or from surety bonds and, provided further, that the
maximiun amourtt that 1he Village may claim for the construction costs of such improvements,
aficr receipt i 38A-2 funds or surcty funds, will be $500,000, (i) the Village shall not assert
any sewured claims relating to the Clublands Development against the Dicbtors excent as set forth

in the preeeding paragraph (€), nor any administrative or cure claims &s to which funding fom

G330 LT




another source is etherwise available and (ii) the only source of repayment for any allowed
adrumistrative or cure claim (ineluding any right to setoff or recoupment) refating to the
Clublands. Development shall be (x) the potable water tap fees associated with the remaining lots
vwned by the Debtors as of the date hereof, which by agrcement of the Debtors and the Village
shall be increased from approximately $2,000 per lot to $4,000 per lot and recapiure fees
associated with the Service Arca for the Water Treatment Plant; (y) previously paid tap foes
which are held ln cacrow by the Village, (or, to the extent any smounts which should stilt be ir
escrow have provieusly been drawn by the Vitlape, eredit in the amount o drawn); and (2} any
burety Surplus. Any amounts remaining in any of the categorics of funds described in (14} {x1-(x)
above, afler payment of any cure or adminisirative claims of the Village as allowed by
subsequent agreemint between the Viilage and the Debtors or by subsequent order of this Court
shall belong to the Debiors up to the amounts owed to the Debtors under any Applicable
Davelopment Agreement (as defined in Paragraph 2) or in any ofher related agreement. An ¥
amounts remaining in said categories after all amounty due the Debtors have been paid shali be
retained by the Village., The Village shall provide an accounting to the Debtors within fourieen
{14) days of the sutry of this Order as to the collection and any application of tap fees paid by the
Deblors as well us uny other recapture fees assogiated with the Service Area for the water
treatment plant. Te the extent that it is subsequently determined by agreement of the Village and
the Dxebiors or by court order that any escrow funds were withdrawn by the V illage in 2 manner
ne’ in accordance with the appiicable agreements governing the use of such funds, the Yillago
shall immediately restore such escrow by the amount of such withdrawals. Fhe Vilage and e
Debtors agree to use reasonable efforis (o resolve any cure or sdministrative claims as provaptly

as possible. Pending reselution of such claims issues and subject to approval of the board of the

Tl AR




Village at ity next regularly scheduled board meefing, the Debtors and the Village apree 1o split

o1 2 50/50 basis the escrow funds currently held by the Village from the tap fees. Any
disburgement of these tap foes 15 subject (o zretention of $76,318.80, plus interast, with respoct
tc the lizn asseried by Juseph 3. Henderson & Son, Inc. #nd 2 retention of $7,000.00 with réspect
to the lien or ciaim asserted by Lake County Grading Company, LLC (*LOG™), which liens or
claimyg pertais to the Water Treatraent Plant, and which liens or claims ave disputed, The
disbursement of the remaining funds 10 the Village and the Debtor shall be applisd against any
clatns that efther such party may otherwise have in such finds,

{8)  The Village and F&D may draw and use curremly available 8§34-7
Funds in conformity with the underlying 83A docwments to the oxtent that exther such party has
rights thereunder. The Village andfor F&D (a5 applicabic) shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmiess the Debtors for (i) any and all third-party claims asseried against the Debiors for any
use of sueh funds drawn by the Village or F&D subsequent to the entry of this Qrder, and (if) any
foes, costs or expenses incurred by the Debtors in the absence of any defense provided by the
Village and/or Fé&T} (as applicable) or incvrred by the Debtors in assisting the Vilage andfor
F&D ai their request, respectively, in defending against such asserted olaims, Neither F&D nor
the Village ¢hall fle any claims {other than unsccured claims) against the Drebtors with respect to
the S3A-2 funds. Uintil further Order of Court or until agreement between the Village, the
Diwotors and LOG, the sum of $189,189.45, plus statutory interest, if any, shali remain in the
SEA-Z Improvement Fund with respeet to the len asserted by LCG, which lien i« disputed. To
ihe extent there arg any excess S5A-2 Funds available after all permitted Vitlage and F&D draws
are gecountted for, the Debiors reserve the right fo submit draw requests in accordasce with the

hard docoments and ail relevant ageesments, and the Village and al} other partiss reserve afi

WS MR HEHEAA



Ll

rights 1o contest any claims er interest which the Debtors may assert witk respect to the SSAZ
Funda.

(hj By agreement of the Debtors, after the Public Improvements have
been completed and acoepted by the Village’s engineers, the Public Improvements shalf be
dedicated to the Village in accordance with Section 3.9 of the Infrastructure Agmements.

2. {a}  Rased upon {hc information which the Village received from its
enginesrs and otherwise to the Village's hest knowledge, the Village reprasents that the
Punchlists, the Priority Lists, the FBRR Reports (defined below and anached herete) and the
requirements st forth in the Applicable Development Agreements® with respea! to Phase 4
constituie e nature and extent of the Public lmprovements that remain to be installed,
compicted andior construcied with respect to the Clublands Developruent as of the date the
Punchlists were sropared. As a result of ihe andertakings of the Village and F&D under
paragraph | of this Order and the other agreements reflected hersin and without expanding or
diminishing the scope of those undertakings, neither the Debtors nor ANy SUTSEssar or purchaser
of their essels shall have any obligation to perforn or bear any expense with respect to the
sompletion of the Public hnprovements with respect to the Clublands Development other than:

(i) Astothe Debtors, the claims allowable against the
Debiors under paragraph | hereof,

{ii} Az 10 any purchaser of Phase 1, the “Euiure
Sutider’s Responsibilities” Report (the “FBRR Report™) for Phase 1, a copy of

"Applicable Nevelapment Agreements” for Clublaids shall consist of the "Public Iaftastructure Agreernent For
Special Service Aroa Nusber 20 Clublands” dated June 5, 2003; the Setdesnent Agreement involvisg Tl Anest
dited November 21, 2002; the Clublands Develppent Agreement dated Cotober 28, 2002; UL, Ordinances.
applicativns and related docwnents; the Final Plans and Fisal Plat of Svbdivision o £ lubtands; ail docuraeons
relating to the bonds tsgued for Speaial Service Aven Nunber I {E8A-2}; all enginesring pluns propaccd by
Manhard Consulting Lad for Cliblands, mciuding o1l revisions theretsy; and all Landseepe Foprovesent Plans
prepared by Ives/Ryan Growp, Tov., acd tovisiong therete, sud any agresments ralating ta the Miller Hoad
rimge ssuzes,

iy

438 LAGDY ] BRAR4S




whicit 5 attached as Exhibit C, 1o the extent such items were ubligations of the
Debtors under the Applicable Dovelopment Agreements;

(i} As to any purchaser of Phase 2, {x) the FBRR
Report {or Phase 2, a copy of which is aftached hereto as Exhibit D, to the extent
such ey were obligations of the Debtors under the AppLcable Dievelopment
Agresments and (¥) the Phase 2 Cap;

{v)  Asto any purchaser of Phase 3 East, the FBRE
Repert for Phase 3 Last, a copy of which is attachied as Exhibit B, to the cxtent
such items were obligations of the Debtors under the Applicable Developtrent
Agresiments;

(v}  Asio any purchaser of Phasc 3 Weat, the FERR
Report for Pluse 3 West, 4 copy of which is attached as Exhibit T, to the extent
such items were obligations of the Debtors under the Applicable Development
Asmesmeniy:

(v1)  Asto any purchaser of Phase 4, all Public
fuprevernents-which were the responsibility of the Debtar for Phase 4, and #Hy
dralnage issues relating lo Miller Road {(whether included as part of Phasc 3 or
Phase 4 but subject 10 any required easements having been obtained), to the exteny
such items were ohligations of the Debtors under the Applicable Developrnent
Agriemnts;

{vii)  Asto any and all purchasers, all requirements for
the issuance of permits generally imposed by the Village unless otherwise
provided under the Applicable Development Agreements with the Debtors:

{vii)  The Village reserves the right (o require in
sonnestion with a sale hearing that any and alf purchasers submit surety honds
acceptable to the Village for the construetion of the Public Tmiproversents
identified n 2(3i}-2{vi) above, whether required by any Applicable Development
Agreement, by stalule, or otherwise, and the Debtors and any such purchaser(s)
rescive the right io contest the same. Without limiting the foregoing, such
reservation shatl inchude the right of the Village, as part of the sales proeess, to
object 1o any assumprion and assigement of any Applicable Development
Agreement hrased on the need for adequate assurances of future perfanmance by
the purchasers and the rght of the Debtor and any purchaser(a) to contest the
samne. The Village also reserves the right to require any and all purchasers to
coraply with all applicable ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and all
appheable federal, stale and local laws and the Debtors and any such purchaser(s)
resarve De right {o contest the same a8 not applicable; ‘

(ix})  Commitinent by the purchaser of Phase 4 to build

the Clubliouse for Clublands to the extent, if any, that the Debtors were obligated
to construet the Clubhouse under the Applicable Developtment Agecements or any

- 10-

HELRIUTI I




sther related agreements or as may otherwise be agreed to by the purchaser of
Phase 4 and the Village,

{x}  Withrespectto Phases |, 2, 3 East and 3 West, o
the extent any Public Improvement is not identified on the Prionity Lists or the
applicabrle SEC Report, Lhe Village, the Deblors, aty subsequent purchaser and
F&IJ shall, in good faith, attempt Lo ascertain and assiun responsibility for the
sompletion of such Public mprovement hascd ugon the delepation of
respongibifities for the construction and completion the Public Improvements
otherwise set forth herein. If the partics are unable to reach an agreement, the
purchaser for the Phase pn which such Public Improverent is locatod shall bear
respousibility for such Public Improvement anless, upon totion of the Debiors or
suck purchaser, the Coutt, by final and non-appsalable order, detcrmines that the
Village or F&D should be assigned responsibility for the completion of such
Public kuproverment based wpon {a} the general delegation of responsibilities for
the construgtion and completion of the Public Timprovements otherwise set forth
herein, (hy as to F&ID only, limited to the terms, conditions and Limitutions
{inchadiug the penal sum Hmitation) contained in the Bonds, and {c) as to the
Viliage, limited to funds available from SSA-2 funds, the Bonds or the Surety
Surplus, The Village may not deny a permit or vertificate of occupancy to the
fature builder on aceount of the Village not completing such Public
Improvemeis,

{b)  Except as permitted herein, neither the Village rior F&D may asscrt any
seclsedd, adminisirative or cure glaim apaingt the Debtors with respect to the Clublands
Development. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following rights and ohligations are fully
reserved by any interested party:

(i3  Nothing herein shall be construed as affecting or in
amy wiy prohibiting or permitling any party from asserting any rights related in
the Village of Antioch Special Service Area Number Twy, including anvy right to
assess, lax, levy, collest, enforce, or take any uctign permitted pursnant to the
sertain Series 2003 FPrust Indenture and Scries 2003 Bonds, and applicable law,
telated to the Village of Antioch Special Service Area Number Two and any right

0 corilest same; and

(i}  Unsecured claims (which do not also constituse
administratve or cure claims) that may be filed herein by Antioch or F&D,

3. The Village shall cooperate with any purchaser of Clublands Phase 4 angd
shall issee the second funding phase of $§4-2 {(*Phase 2 Funding™) subject to the followin i

ferms and conditions.

11 -

AIAYS ] BAR4S




{2)  Antioch will market the bonds but will not puaranise that the
bonds will be sofd;

{p)  Antioch will issue the Phase 2 Funding in sccordance with the
‘erms ant conditions of the undetlying documents governing the issuance and funding of the
Phase I Funding. The Court shall retain Jjunsdiction to determine that legal oblipation; and

() The Phase 2 Funding shall proceed at the time designated i any
exising agreement between the Villape and the Debror, Otherwise, the timing of the Phase 2
Funding shal procesd pursuant to agreement between the Village and the successor or agsignee
of Neuniann,

4, The Viliage and F&D (as applicable) shall {1} Indemnifv and hold
harinless the Debrors {and any stccessor to the Debtors or purchaser of their assels) from and
against any claim or Sen which muy be asserted against the Debtors (and any successor o the
Byehtars or purchaser of their assets) by suppliers of labor and materal in connection with the
cempletion of uny Public Improvements by the Village or F&DY as contemplated by his Order,
provided that such labor or malerial were provided subsequent to the entry of this Order, (1)
only employ insured or bonded contrastors 1o complete the said Public Improvesments, sand {iLi)
namg the Bebiors {and any successor to the Debtors or purchaser of their assets identified a1 the
time that any contmet is entered into with any such contractor), at vo cost to the Dobtors {or
any sucsesser to the Deblors or purchaser of their assets), as udditional ingureds under &y
peiley of Hability insurance prosyred or furnished by the Village or F&D er fumished by &
prime comtractur in connection with the completion of the Public Improvements rontemntaed

by this Qrder.

GRS BHA L




3 Notwithstanding any provision to the centrary, the Village has stay relief
lo druw upon (he BEA-2 Admiristrative Fund in accordanee with the Bond Docoments. The
Debtors agree not to assert any ebjection to the Village's right to draw upon the S5A-2
Administrative Fund for reimbursernent of the Village’s foes and expenses, provided that such
drasvs do not exesed $500,000 and that the Debtors are released from any claims that have been
paid therehy.

b, Motwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this order does it
rddress any clalms or other matters pertalning to or arising from foe NeuMaven {Deercrest)
Development and all such matters asserted in the Motions shatl be continued o July 16, 2008.

7. The agresments set forth herein are expressty hased upon the Village and
F&LD having exesuted the Completion Agreements prior {o the entry of this Order.

8. Por mfvrmational purposes only, the Village shall provide the Debtors
with notice of any S8A-2 draws within three business days after any sooh draws.

5. Notwithstanding anything contained herzin, the Dehtors reserve the right
to seek o roject iny of the Applicable Development Agreements and all parties reserve the
right o contest the same.

10, While this Order refers to the development as “Phase 1, “Phase 27,
“Phase 3 East”, “Phiase 3 West” and “Phase 4” consistent with the existing development
documents, a8 a result of the different stage of completion of all or a portion of the various
prases, the {lublands Development has been divided inte Parcel A, Parcel B and Parce] ¢ for
roarketing and bidding purposes. To the extent that all or a portion of a “phase” |3 included

within g “parcel”, the buyer of such “parcel” shall have all the rghts set forth herein and,

-13.

ISR RRGA 44




subjeet {0 the temms of a subsequent sale order, 2t of the obligations sel forth herein with
Tespect o fhe “phase” or portion of a “phase” that comprise such “parce!™,
Fi. This QOrder shall be effective and enforcegble immediarely upon entry

nerpaf and shall net be slayed for ten days afier the cotry of this Order,

AGREED AND STIPULATED 110

VH.LAGE OF ANTIOCT, an Rhinois
Municjpal coiporation

£ L ! ‘
‘ 1 Vi A A R TN A Ak A
SKADDEN, ARPS, SLATE, ’
MEAGHER & FLOM LLP
Guerge N, Pavagekis {ARDC No. 06205271)
Staphen D, Willlamson {ARDC No. 06244130}
Chicago, Hlinois 60606-1285 FIDELITY & DEPOSIT COMPANY OF
{312Y 407-57003 MARYLAND
Altorney's fhr Dehtars anid
Dbt sein-Possession

\
i

By

Dated: Clideago, HMinois
July 23, 2008

Lawrenee R Moslmann (ARDC No., 1937448)
HINEHAW & CULBERTSON LLP

222 North LaSaile Streot

Suiie 300

Chicago, (L 6U601

{5123 7043000

Attomeys for the Village of Antioch

214

A3 R HERYES




subyect lo the terms of u sebsequent sale order, all of the oblipations se: forth herein with

Fespect o the “phase” or portion of 2 “phase” that comprise such “parcel™,

th. This Order shall be effective und eoforceable immediately vpon entry

herend and shail not be stayed for ten days afier the entry of this Order.

ACTRERY AND STIFUTATED TO:

BRADDEM, ARPE SLATE,

MEAGHER & FLOM LIP
Guimge W, Panagaker (ARDC No, D6205271)
Stemhen D Willlarasan (ARDIS No. 66244 130)
Chivago, lingis 90606 1285
(31234070

Attortey’s for Debiors and
Debtors-in-Possession

Daied: Chizago, Hlinois
daly 2008

Lawrence R, Mosimann (ARDC No. 1937448)

HINSHAW & CUTLBERTSON LLP
222 Mol Laballe Sroo
Seite Sk
Chiespo, TL 80601
PRI 043000
Allomeys for the Village of Amticeh

VILLAGE GF ANTIOCH, an Do
Mumctpul wmnmtmn

MM [ i MW::(’*"‘A:.’..‘L-.‘..__._

FIDELITY & DEPOSIT COMPANY OF

MARYLAND
¢ £l s g
By Cﬁ,ﬁ*"‘*’{'{""* ok ! 'fuﬁﬁd_
N S
ol L o,
i

Unitéd States Banioruptey judes

EANSDH | BEEEL



Exhibit A



SRECUTION OOPY

ANTIOCH CLUBLANDS PHASE 1 COMPLETION AGREEMENT

This Completion Agreement (CAgrecmaent™ is made by and between the Vidage of

Ansioch {the "Village” or "Antloch™ and Fidelity & Deposit Company of Marviand (E&D")

P e PR
andd as eftective fhis 177 day of May, 2008

M
e

RECITALS

Noumarm Homes, Toe, (“Newmann™) and the Villege entered oo 2 cortzin Infiastrocture
Apreement (NTA™) dated June 5, 2003 (a copy of which is artached us Fxhibit B w0 the

Stay Reiiel Moton {defined bebow in Recital “F™), for the dovelopmen: of  sundivision

.

commenly bnovn as “Clublands Phase 1. {the “Subdivizion™ The 14 among other
things, requires that Neunann construet site improvements or infrasizuctare Tootlactivaly,
e “lmprovements™) in the Subdivision for the health, ssfory and welfare of ke
residents,  Attached hereto and made a part heveof as Bxhibit A is a Iist of 5l of the
decuments (the "Improvement Dovuments™) governing instafladon of fhe Rnprovements,
Whith Neumarn 6 obligated to instal] th Clublands Phase

Az reguired by the IA, in order to secure performanice of Meumaus’s oblipaton to
comgiruct @ Improvements, Newmamn proctred and delivered to the Village
Subdivision/Site Improvement Bond No. 8614762 {the “Phase 1 Bond™ dated Cotober
28, 2002, I the original penal sum of $3,122,003.13 (s copy of the Phase | Tond i
atehed hereto as Bxhibit “B”), which was issued by F&D. ag surety, and namos

Neumany, a3 principal, and tive Village, 25 obligee,

LRI BECEAS



Bmith Enginesring Copsultants (“SEC™), the engincers irm. the Village, prepared o
summary o1 punchlist of Public Improvements for Clublands -~ Prasc |t {ahached 1o the
Stay Relief Motion as Bxhibit “H"), which shall be referred to as the “Phase | Punchlis®
Eu) with inpur from Foreon Interngtional - Michigan, Lid, F&D's consultant, nrapared
& oriority Hat for Phases 1, which is attached to the Stay Relief Motion (as Exhibn ©07
frefervel to as the “Phase 1 Prorily List™), which the Village contends ghonld be
commpiead o a priority basis;

The Village contends that Nenmann s in breach of the LA because Menmann haz cetsed
alf swork om fhe fmprovements for s period of six (8 conseoative mondy withour
reasonable cause for delay;

MNoumann filed a voluntary Petition for Refief under Chapter 11 of the United Stated
HBankroptoy Code (“C?nda”) on or about November 1, 2007 (the “Petition Dare™};

v

Thae Village has prosented to the Bankroptey Court the Supplemeniai Motion of the
Village of Antloch for Relief from Stay (the “Suy Relisf Motion®);

The Village, F&D, and Neumann have agreed on the form and content of ar agresd ordor
{the “Dhraft Sy Relief Oveder™) that muy be entered in the Newmane Hankrupiey
Procedings with respect o the Stay Retief Motion, wiich provides in part that upon
eatry fhereef the Village may declare Neumann to be in breach of its oblipations undaey
the 4 s that the Village may demand that P&D perform its obligatinng under the Phase
1 Bond. A copy of the Draft Stay Relief Order is attached hereto as Exhi'bi.t Cy

Upon entry of the Draft Stay Refief Order, the Village intends to declare Neumann in
defaalt of s obligations under the 1A and to makes 2 demand spon FED w perform its

obiigarions under the Phase | Bond and, in contemplation of thase svents ccourring, this

FTTEOTYL BRGHIL




Agreement sontains the ferms ond conditions under which F&D will perform suck

ohligations,

AGREEMENT
WOW, THEREFORE, in considerstion for the terms and condivons set fhmh in tis
Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the yeceipt and adeq wacy of which is

aoxnewledged, the Village and F&D apree as follows:

The Recitals are incorporated hersin.

. Antioch and F&D agree to the entry of & stay rellef order in 2 Sum substantialiv
similar 1o the Dratt Stay Relief Order granting relief to Anfioch to declare Nevmann i defuult of
its-obligations under the 1A and to make a demand under the Phase 1 Bond,

3, Upon the entry of the Stay Relief Order referred fo in parsgraph 2 above, Antioch
sigll declare Neumann to be in breach of its obligations under the IA wita respeet to fae
compietion of e .Irxlp.:'uﬁemaﬁts, inclnding, without lmiration, those items identified W the
Phase 1 Priovity List. Antioch shall also make a written demand upon F&D o GHill cerain of
i obligetions under Phase 1 Boud by completing the items on the Phase | Priority List. The
foregoing declaration of defsult and written demuand are conditions precedent tn FEDS
ahiigations under this Agreoment and upder the Phase 1 Bond.,

4, Frovided that the fémguing comditions are satisfied, F&D agress to compiets the
“A" items on the Phase | Priority List (the “Priorty “A" Items) in accordance with; the tenns and
vonditions of im;,im'\:amcm: Documents insofar as they are apphcsble to the Priority "AY ltems,
F&D shail hive o contravtor t0 complete all such items. Without limiting the f'cn'uguir—.ggz Fan
shall require ity contractor to comply with all insurance reguirements sontaiped o the

improvement Docusents and shall comply with any applicahle prevailing wage faw, P& shall

-3

LR K



require the comtractor o furnish pavment and performanes bonds in the smount of the contract

awarded 10 suid contractor and farther require that the Village be named o8 an additional obligee
thereto. The Priodty "A” Hems shall be completed on or before October 30, 2008 fthe
“Compietion Date’™. Thoe is of the essence. However, subject W the requirements of paragronh
5 Rwreof, TAD may rﬁ:q,nest extensions of Complefion Date, which recuests shail not be
unrensonsh iy \:ién'md, provided that F&D has pursued completion of the Prioviry “A" Trems with
reasonable promptness. In the event that the construction of the work is interrupted ar prevented by
ety of God, acts of war or rebellion, labor distarbances {other thun those caused by F&D or i
cantractor, aats of Government or governmental officers oy any cavse hovond the contnl of F&D,
P& shadl not be pesponsible for any Josses or damages, including aftorneys fees, resulting from amy
deduys nensed by e foregoing,

3 P&D and the Village agree that this Agresment cannot be modified or smended
matenially redoce the scope of work identificd on the Priority "A" Dems or to extond the
Complation Date beyond October 31, 2008, without the consent of Newumana or ity designos,
wiidh consent shall not be unrensonably withheld.

B, As part of the Draft Stay Relief Order, Neumanu may convey 1o Antioch fre
Improviements censtrocted to date by Neumann in Phase 1. By accepting auch improvements,
Antloch does aot release FAD from Hs obligations uader the Phase 1 Bond.

7 Antinch has previonsly issued Special Service Ares Number Special Tax Bonds
(S8A-2) for cortain improvements regarding Clublands, 'The Village représents to F&D based
upon infermation received from the 8SA-2 Truster, that the halsnce in the §8A4.0 Improvemsnt
Fand as of May 21, 2008 is 555‘.32,956,26, which includes acerued interost (the “§84 Balanee™).

The Yillage has advised P& that it will aot honor any regquest by F&ED for pavment fromr the

ST RELRES



85A Improvement Fund for work performed by F&D or it contractor on Phase | FéD reserves

any and all rights and remedies available to it to contest the Village's decision to not honor any
sach requesis for payvment, F&D does not intend fo waive spy such Aghts or remedies.
Stuztiarly, the Vilage reserves any and all rights and defenses to any such claims hat may be
asserted by F&l,

5. Carrently, 8 mechanie lien clain under Seerion 23 of the [lnsis mechanic Lion
Act has been szrved by Lake County Grading seeking fo impose a Hen upen the S5A4 Balunes,

N in the event either party obtains a final and non-appeatable order from a ot of
competent pursdiction declaring that the dishurserneni of the $SA Balance wes tmiproper, both
the Villsge and F&D agree 1o restore to the SSA-2 Improvement Fund the amomt of my
improper dishursement of the S8A Balance recsived by F&D und/or the Village, P&D s not
1*$spmulsible for restoring funds which had heen improperdy distursed to Amtioch, and Antioch is
ot respoasinle tor restoring funds whick had been improperty dishursed to P&D.

WL The parties agree that the eurrent penal sum of the Phase 1 Bond s §3,122,003.22
tthe “Penal Bum™. FED shall bo entitled to reduetjon of the Penal Sum by the amount paid by
Farid (1) tor completion of the Priority “A” Items, inchuding, without Hmitation, amonnts paid by
P& Tor the earrection of any defective work installed by Newmann or anv of it contractors and
{0} for any ongingering or other professional expenses contemplated by the construction
docuisents, such ua the preparation of record drawings, Except for the foregeing enginesring
fews, the Penal Burp of the Phase 1 Bond shall not be reduced by amounts pald by P& for
engineering, conauiting or legal expenses incurred by F&D or construction costs incurred for He
sorteetion of defective work installed by F&D or any of it subcomwactory, Bffective upon the

Willagt's avesptance of and F&D's convevance to the Village of the complersd “47 items

R I P v



wdentified in the Phase ! Priority List (the “Accepted Improvements') and except for latent
Y ‘ ! J P

dufects of which the Village, upon reasonable inspection, could not have discovercd ag of the
dave of geid convevanes, the Village releases F&ED from any and all additional ciaims, Dabilities
aind dumages, incheding attorneys” fees, with respect to the Accepted Improvements.

Pl 3ubiset to the thmgcning‘rcductzi on and releass, Antioch reserves any and all nghts
and cluimzs which Jt has or may hereafter have under the Phase | Bond. at law or in equity and
aieey that Fas Hability wo the Village is Hmited to Ponal Sum which remains after reduction
of the Penel Sum due fo completion of the Priotity "A™ fems, us provided herein, F&D reserves
any and 21! rights and defenses available to i under the Phase | Bond, at law ov in couitv. The
Willage aml F&LD do not intend to waive any sech rights, claims and/or defenses,

12 P&D shall provide to the Village » written warranty from the conbraciorls) ¥
retaing fo perforrn the work on the Priority “A” items which gusranices to the Village the
workummship and material faenished by the gaid contractor(s) for one year commencing on the
dote ol substantial completion of such work, F&D and its contvactor(s) shall have no
responisibility for wrranting any of the work performed by Neumann or its contractors.

13, F&D shall be represented at the Projest by 1. Bugene Morgan or another desiones
of Forcon International - Michigan, L., (the “Authorized Renresentative™, The Authorized
Representutive will represent the P&IY in dealing with the Village on deyv-to-day constriction
wgues with reapect w0 the work, The Authorized Representative shall bave, on behalf of the
P&, the authority w negotiate ull change orders for extra work requested or required by V illage,
All chamge ruders shalt he execimed by FAD. Al requests for change orders must be submitied

o Mr D, Hugepe Morgan, Foreon Intemational - Miehigan, Ltd., PO, Box 389, 7513 South

e

FATEGE Tl ARARA



Harbor Drive, Pontwaser, ME 49449, The authorized represantative for the Village shall be Ms.

Jill Velan, Village Adminisirator, whose address is st forth in paragraph 13 below,

l4. This Agreement containg the entire understandings und apreements of the mirties
hereto, Al eral or writien agroements prior to the effective date of this Agreament and which
relate to this Agreement and the matters set forth herein are declared null and veid. Asy
modification v this Agreement must be made i writing and exeented by the purties hereto

53 Any notice mcmirz:ld o be made under the terms of this Contragi shall be deemed
made if either party mails susk notice by first class mail, postage prapaid, as follows:

A0 the Village:

e, Sl Velan, Administrator
Village of Antioch

474 Nain Btreat

Antioeh, 1, 40002

Tel: {815} 395-1000;

Hasy f818) 305.1020
smatlivelan@antiochil.gov

with a copy 1o

Lawrence R Moelmann

Hinshaw & Culbertson, LLP

222 M. La Salle Street

Sudte 300

Chicago, 1L 60601

Tal: (312) 704-3220

Fax: {312) 704-3001
email:bmoslmamm@hinshawlaw. com

F&D:

i Hugens Morgan

Farcon International — Michigan, Ltd,
B Box 389

*513 South Harbor Drive

Peptwater, M 40449

Ten: 8231) 8692007

Fax: (2317 859-2123

email: gmacreang

ks

oy

ARIRGETY: BREads



with # zopy to;
Comeliws F, Riordan
Riordar, Dounelly, Lipinaki & MeKee, Lid.
18N, Derrborn Street
Fourth Floor
Chicago, IL 60502
Tel: {312) S89-6010
Fax: (312 663-1028
emsil: griordan@rdlmlaw.com

6, It {2 understood and agreed by FAD and the Village that this Agreement shall by
constried without any regard to any presumption or other myle recjuiﬁng construction against the
party causing his A grsement,

¥ This Completion Agreement mgy be executsd in counterparts.  Signatures
transmitiad by Jeaimile or e-mail shall have the same legal effact vs otiginal si gnature,

- 14, D‘Lﬁm‘ that as specifically provided herein at paragraph 5, the parties agree that no
third party shall have any rights under this agreement.

9. This apreement shali be governad by the law of the state of Hlinois,

IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Completion Agreement this

27™ day of May, 2008.
ATTEST ‘ VILLAGE OF ANTIOC L, un Hlinois
’ﬁﬂ\f Municipal corporation
gls fE »\ '“*
w0t Aoue .
ks C] ::rk f It_,sﬁ’ffapﬁ Administmtor

FIDLEITY & DEPOSIT COMPANY 0OF
MARYLAND

Ciaisis qr;&mm

£3ERONTYT BESRAL



EXECUTION COPY

ANTIOCH CLUBLAN MPLETION AGREEMENT

This Completion Agreemest (“Agreement™ is made by and betwoen the Village of

Antloch (fhe "Village” or “Antioch™ aud Fidelity & Deposic Company of Marviand (“F&TH";

and 15 efective thig 277 day of May, 2008

RECITALS

Neumngan Homes, Ine, (“Newmaasn™) and the Village entersd into & cerlain Jufrastruciore
Agreement (“IA”) duted June 5, 2003 (4 copy of which is attuched as Exhibit B m the
Sray Balief Motion (defined below in Recit.ﬁ% “FY, for the development of & subdivision
pommonly known as “Clublands Fhase 3" {the “Subdivision™ The {4 .amtmg other
things, requires thet Newmann construct site improvements or infrastructure (collociivel v,
e “improvements™) in the Subdivision for the health, sefety und welfire of the
residents.  Attacked herefo and made u part hereof as Exhibit A is a lst of il of the
documents {the “hinprovement Documents™) governing installation of the Improvemoents,
ywhich Netmann is obligated to install in Clublands Phase 3

Ar reguired by the LA, In order to secuse porformance of Neumann's obligation o
construet  the h.npxm‘emenfts, Newmarm precured and  delivered o the Village

Sitbdivision/Site Tmprovement Bond No. 086630835 {the “Phase 3 Bong"} dated
September 19, 2004, in the original penal sum of £8,053,2213.00, with a revised and
current penal sum in the amount of $3316,832.20 (& copy of the Phase 3 Bong is

attached 1o the Stay Reliof Motion as part of Group Exhibit “D™3, which was issusd (53

F&D), as surety, and names Neamann, as principal, and the Village, as oblipes:

GBI Te | 5 BEEAL



b.

Bmith Engineering Consultants (“8EC™, the engineers for the Village, preparsd

sunsmaries o1 punchiists of Public Improvements for Clublands — Phase 7 West {attached
f the Stay Relief Motion as Exhibit ™) and fir Clublands — Phase 3 Fas {attached to
te Sty Relief Motion as Exhibit “K”), which eollestively shall be refarred {0 0 the
“Phase 3 Punchlists.”  SEC, with input from Forcon International - Wichigan, L.,
Fair's vonsultant, prepared priority lists for Phases 3 West and Bast, which are attachod
fo the Stey Relef Motion (as Exbibits “P" and “(" (collectively reforred 1o as the “Phase
3 Prionity Liste”™), which the Village contends should be conrpleted on a priority basis:
Tre Village contends that Nenmann is in breach of the 1A because Newmann has eensed
all work on fhe lmprovements for a pm’iod'{}f six {6) corsesutive months withou
rezsonieble couse for deley;

Neurmarn filed @ voluntery Petition for Relief under Chapter 17 of the Tnhed Statud
Sankruptey Code {(“Code™} on or about November 1, 2007 (the “Petition Date™y;

The Village has prosented to the Bankouptoy Cowt the Supplements) Motion of e
Village of Antioeh for Relief from Sty (the “Stay Retief Motion™;

The Village, F&D, and Newmann have aprecd on the form and conten of un agreod ordor
fthe “Diait Stay Relief Order™) that may he entered in the Neumann Bankrptoy
Proceedings with respeet to the Stay Relief Motien, which provides in part that upom
entry thereef the Village may declare Newmnanr to be i breach of ity obligations under
the 1A sn that the Village may demand that F&D perfortn its obligations vnder the Phase
3 Bonc. A copy ofthe Draft Sty Relief Order is attached bereto as Bxhihit 3

Unor entey of the Draft Stay Relief Order, the Village inteads to deciave Newmann m

defouit of its oblgations under the TA and to make & demand upon FED to poerfony s

S3EEUV ESEAL



obligations under the Phase 3 Bond and, in contemplation of those events aeeurring, this
Agreemient contains the terms and conditions under which F&D will perfor such

sbligaions,

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration for the rma and conditions set foril i this
Agresmont, aad for ofher good and valuable consideration, the receipl end adeguacy of which: iy

acknowledped, the Village and F&D a gree as follows;

1 The Recitals are incorporated herein,

2 Antiech and F&LY agree to the entry of a stay relief order in & form subgtantizliy
simifar © the Draft Stay Relief Order granting relief to Ant‘imh to deciare Neumann ini defaudt of
its obligations under the 14 and to make a demand under the Phase 3 Bond,

3 Upon the entry of the Stay Relief Ordr:f referved 1o in paragrapl: 2 shove, Antioch
shall declare Moumann to be in breach of iy obligations under the IA with respect to the
completion of the Improvements, ncluding, without limitarion, those items identified li::: the
Phese 2 Priority Lists. Antioch shall also make # writtens demand vpon F&Y to fulfil] eCrtain of
its obligations under Phase 3 Bond by completing the {tems on the Phaso 3 Priority Lists, The
forcgoing declurotion of defanlt and written demand ave conditions precedent to F&Ds
ubibgations under this Agreement and under the Ph ase 3 Bond,

“. Provided that the foregoing conditions are satisfied, F&D agrees to complate the
“A™ items on the Phase 3 Priority Lists (the “Priority “A” Iterns”) in accordance with the tems
and conditions of fmprovement Documents insofar as they are applicable 10 the Phuge 3 Prionty
Lists. F&ID shell hire & contractor to complete all such items.  Withew: iimiting the foregoing,

F&E shall reguive 43 contractor o comply with all insurance requirements contained i the

-3,
A3 GIRYE B




Improvement Documents and shall comply with any applicable prevailing wags law, T&D shall
requive the coniractor to fumish payvazent and performance bonds in e amount of the conteact
awarded 0 safd contraetor and farther require that the Village be pamied as an additiony! ohligne
therato.  The Prority A ltems shall be compieted on or before Cetober 31, 2008 {the
“Completion Ilaw™), Time is of fhe cszence, However, subject to the requirements of paragraph
3 bereof, FAD may request extensions of Completion Date, which reguests shall not be
lnreasonaoly denfed, provided that F&D has pursued completion of the Priority “A” Irems with
reasonanle prompiness. In the event that the construction of the work is fdesrapied or prevensed by
dets ol God, acls of war or rebellion, labor distwbanoes (other than those caused by F&D or irs
contracter), gets of Government or governental officers or any cause beyond the confrol of P&,
&l shall not be responsible for any losses or damages, including attornevs fecs, remilvs i from anv
daiays caused by the foregoing,

35 F&D and the Village agree that fhis Agrecment cansot be mocified or amendad 1o
materially reduce the scope of work identified on the Priotity “A” Tems or to exiend the
Completion Date bevend October 31, 2008, without the consent of Neomanm or s designoe,
whivh cemsent shall not be wrgasonably withheld,

fi. Ax part of the Draft Stay Relief Order, Nemnan may convey w Antloch the
improvements constructed to date by Nevmann in Phase 3. By secepting such iraprovemcns,
Antioeh does not releass F&D from jts obligations wnder the Phase 3 Bond,

7. sAntiech has previousty issued Special Service Aren Nunther 2 Speectal Tax Honds
{(85A-Z) for cortadny improvements regurding Cloblands, The Village repressnls w F&D, based
upim dformation received from the S84-2 Trustee, thar the halance in the $84-2 Improvement

Fand as of May 21, 2008 is S032.956.26, which includes acorued interest {ihe "854 Balance™,

REROETY ] BEakag




Antioch has advised P&D that it intends to draw from the S8A Balance the sum of $64 00000
for engincering costs and an additiona) sum sutficient to pay for conmpletion of the Public
wnprovements for Clublands - Phase 1L F&D} pErecs not to poniest the withdrwal of
FO0,000.00 Fora the 5A.2 I provement Fund in the partial payment of engineering cosis, and
the Village agraes nor o withdraw more than SO0,000.00 from the S84-2 Improvemant Poed for
the payment of enynesring costs.  Fxeept for the foregoing 390,000 withdrawal, F&D hes
adviged the Village that it abjents to any withdmwal of the S$A Balance which are not anthorized
by the agreemenis) governing the use ‘ami dishursement of funds In the SSA fm mrvement Fund
and, eonsequently, any such requisition and withdrawal of funds from the 384 Balanes is done

)

without F&I3's ngresment oy congent. P&D reacrves any and all rights and remedies avaiiable o
ft to vomtest the Village's withdraval of funds from the 8SA Balance, F&D does not infend 1o
walve any such rights or remedies. Similarty, the Village reserves an s and all rights and defenses
W uny such claims that may be asserted by F&D. Antioch agrees to puy to F&D ary and al)
reimaining fands {n the $$A.2 fmprcwemmt Fued for in aecordance with the agreemonts
governing said fund to partially cover the costs related 1o the Phase 3 Prionty Yems. provider
thitt there are 1o assersed lons or encumbranees apainst sueh finds, F&D's acgeptance of any
such payment ahall not constitute a waiver o7 releage by F&D of any rights or remedies avatiahle
fo Féeld with respect to the Village's use of such fonds.

A, Curvently, 4 mechanic lien olaim ynder Seetion 23 of the Ulinols mechanie Lien
Act has been seved hy Lake County Grading secking to impose a len upon the 554 Baianee.

9. Es the event either party obtains 2 final and ton-appealable order From s court pff
competent jurisdiction declaring that the disbursement of the S$A Balance was improper, botd

the Yillage and F&D rgree to restore to the SSA-2 Improvement Fund (ke amount of myv

SREINTG] Bangd g




improper dishursement of the $8A Balanee received by F&D and'or the Viliape. F&D is not
responsible for remoring funds which had been improperty disbursed to Antioch, and Antioch is
hot responsible for restoring finds which had been irapropecty dishursed to Fa&D,

il The parties apres that the current periad sum of the Phase 3 Bond is $3,316,232.20
Uthe “Peral Bum”y. F&D shali be entitled to redustion of the Penal Som by the amound paid by
FED{D for compietion of the Priority “A™ liems, including, without 1 imitation, amowsts paid by
Férly for the corraction of any defective work mstebled by Neumann or any of its contraciors end
) for my ungineering or other professional expenses contemplated by the sonstruction
devuments, such as the preparation of record drawings. Exeepl for the foregoin # elgineering
foes, the Penal Sum of the Phase 3 Bond shall not be reduced by amounis paid by F&D o
mgineering, consaiting or Jegal expenses incurred by F&D3 or construction costs incurred for the
correstion of deleetive work instalied by F&D or any of ils subsoniraciors. Effeetive upon the
Vitlage's acceptance of and F&DY's conveyance o the Village of the certain Public Im PYOVESTCN
ideniified as “A” Jtems i lhe Phase 3 Priority Lists (the “Aceepted Improvements™) and except
for latent defects of which the Village, upon reasonahle fnspection, could not have discovered s
of the dare of said conveyance, the Village releases F&D from iy and ail addidonal claimg,
lahilites and cagages, inl uding attorneys’ fees, with respect to the Accepted Improvemonts,

Lo Subjset to the foregoing reduction and release, Antjoch reserves uny and sil rights
aud elaims which it has or may hereafter have under the Phase 3 Bond, at law or in guity and
sgrees that F&D's Hﬂbi'ﬁty to the Village is limited to Penal Sum which remains after reduction
of the Penal Sum due to completion of the Priority “A™ Ttems, as provided herein, P&IY rescrves
any and all Hghts and defenses available to it undey the Fhase 3 Bond, at law ar in aquity. The

Viltage and FAD do not intend to walve amy such rights, claims and/or defenses,

GRIBM T REBsqL




1, F&D shail provide to the Village o writion warranty from the contractor(s) it
retains o perform the work on the Priority “A” ftems which guarantees to the Villape the
workmanship and moterial fismished by the said contractor(s) for one yoar commaneing on e
date of substancizl compietion of such work, F&D and its contractorisy shail have o
respunsibility for warranting any of the work performed by Newmann or its contractors,

15 F&D shall be represented at the Project by D. Fugene Morgan o snother desi ite

of Forcon International — Michigan, Lid,, (the Authorized Representatrve”). The Authorized
Represemative will supresent the F&D in dealing with the Village o day-to-day conatrustion
wsees whh respest to the work, The Awuthorized Representative sholl have, on behalf of the
F&ly, the muhority 1o pegoiate all chenge orders for extra work requested or regurired by Village.
Al change orders shall be cxecuted by P&D. Al requests for change orders must be submitted
o Mr D Rugene Morgan, Forcon International - Michigan, [1d,, PO Box 389, 7513 South
Harbor Drive, Pentwater, MU 49449, The mathorized representative for the Village shall he M.
Jul Velan, Village Administrator, whose address is set forh in paragraph 13 below,
2. Vhis Agreement contains the entire understandings and agreaments of the partiey
nereto. Al oval or written agreements prior to the effeciive dute of this Apgresment und which
relate to this Agreement and the matiers set forth herein arc declared null and void, Any
woditivation of dis Agreement must be made in wriling and exceuted by the parties hereto.

5. &py nouee requivad o be made under the terms of this Contract shall b dectned
male if either party maiis such notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, as folows:

Ao the Villase:

Mg Sl Vehan, Administrator
Village of Antioch

574 Main Strest

Sntioch, T 60002
Tal {8157 3531000

—7.

G3 IR BRGA44




-r?\

Fass (B15)3950020
emuibivelandfannochil ov

with a copy

Lawrence R, Moeltnann

Hinshaw & Cutbertzon, LLF

22N La Salle Sweet

Ruite 300

Uhicage, IL 60607

Tl (3121 T04-322¢

Fax: (312) 704-3001
smiblmoelmanndhinshawlaw.com

Ag tp P&

- Eagene Morgan

Forcon International — Michipssn, L.
PO, Hoy 389

7515 Bouth Harbor Deivo

Pentwater, M1 49440

Tel: B2311 8692017

Fax: (231) 869-212%

emafh: smaoreandiforene come

with a capy to:

fomnelius F, Riordan

Riorcan, Donnelly, Lipinski & MeKee, Ltd.
IO N, Dearbom Smrest

Fourtly Flooy

Chivage, 1L 405802

Tel: (3123 389.6010

Fax: (3123 663-1028

[t is understood and agreed by F&D and the Village that this Agreement shall he

wonstoued without any regard w any presomption or other rule reguiring construction against the

parly cavsing this Apreement.

This Completion Agreement may be exesuted in counterparts.  Signarures

trangmitted by fuesimifc or c-mafl shatl have the same le gal effect s original signature.

GRLAUETY ] RESEG




18 " (ther that as specifically provided herein st puragraph S, the paniies paree tiat ne
third party shail have any fights under this sgresment,

m. This agmenaﬂnt-shu!] be govemed by the law of the state of Dlinoje.

2l WITNESS '-WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Completion Apreoment this
27" ay of biay, 2008, '
ATTHST VILLAGE OF ANTHOCH, gn Ilinois
Munizipal corporation

e
/ 4

i i u / . - - _
mondil A pr

Its Clerk " Hs Villsge Adminigtrator
(-~

i

FIDLEITY & DEPOSIT COMEANY OF

MARYLAND
Bydee des e 77/
Claiks Cﬁ’ﬁnse‘!

EX IR BfdRaq




Exhibit B




Fxhibit B3

The Vilage's Responsibility Repord - Clublands Phase H )

Iy general. the Village of Antioch (the “Village™) will complote the Public mprovemers for i
Clabdands Prase I Subdivision i accordance with the stay Belie! Order entered iy the Novmann
Homes Bankiuptey proceedings. Inan effort (o further clanify the work that must e completed
vy the Village in Clublonds Phase 11 Subdivision, SI¢C Grroup, ne. has prepared the 1t below,
Chie J15lowas taken from (e Clublands Plase 11 - Acceptance Review Noo i laetler propared
SEC dated Decembar 20, 2007, The Village's respunsibilities do not extend to the fos owned by
e Diebtors an the e the bankruptey provecdings were comenced {Lots 138167, 164, 173
and [ 74) The fabare buitderideveloper wili have responsibifity for these fots as stated i Fxhubic
15

Vhie fimwre itdersdoveloper must submit Rocord Brawings ot the fot grading and
weerluai dow rowtes (i locuted on and adjacent 10 the o ey own) to the Vitlage for
reviewsapproval paor to the ceupancy permit buing issued for that home. The ot e
drawings will atow the Village 1o vertty that the fingshed tot grading whed ovoriand 1w
FRtias are constructen maccordancs with the approved cngrineering pluns.

He Dresion cuntral measires on e site nst be repaired wnd mainiained and {1 s antieinaed

h Village will repair the site erosiom conirol delicicncics Prior w the propeny oelng

sl The Village will repair the dameged silt fence and straw hates, wstablish wernporas
vigetation an disturbed arcas, and maintain crosion control memsuroes U il e site oy

sabitizoed,

v

54
Lt

HEL e Villigre wil romove ail garbage and debriy from the vacant fots and will stabilize the
lots with teaiporary seeding ( clay bustery until an adeguate mat of vimeladiom i

watablished.

V. The Village will address the deficienzics with the wettands and stormwarer sior
Vo The Vitlage {5 responsible for correctng the deficiencies noted with the sanitary aower

Vi The Villige i responsible for carreciing the deficiencies neled with the storm sower
SRl

Vi The Vlage s responsihie for correcting the delicienctes noted with the water maig

dumreveinens,

VL The Wiikge is respomsible for mstalting all missing street signage and vorrecting ail
deliviencies noted with the sireet s gagy,

X, The Vitlage §s responsible for correetimg all the deficiencies with the streo babis systen,




X

KV

Fxhibit B
Fhe Village is responsible for cotrocting the deficiencies in 1 the roadways and ropatring
the damaged curb and nstalling the fing] [it of asphalt on the roadwiys,

Tha Villae 15 responsible for mstatling the sidewadtk on Lots 164 angd 17 atong with
repring v defioiem sidowalk as noved,

The VMillage fs responsibie Tor repairing all deficiencios with eRIsng drveway anrons,
The Village is responsibie for completing the Notice of Termination.

e Viilage wapmm?‘lu o7 installing the pavement markings once the Gnal surtace
course of asphali s instalied.

2 i responsible for installing the subdivision SUCVCY TRanumea iy lion,

The v

The Village's stalt is responsible for submitting the fnal docnments (Bill of Sale.
Mamtenaney Guaranioe, ete) 1o the Village Board and regquesiing aeceptines of the
mprevenionts once al? the work is comploted,




Exhibit C




Fahibit {C

Lhe Future Builders Responsibitity Report .. Clublands Phase |

Wiy
Ny consirues

muliderdevstoper who will purchase the Clublands Phase | Subdivision will have w
the improvements and hames in aceordance with the approned B :

)

Plans, Viliege Ordinances, and Agrecments that were in place with Newmams Homey, A

T

subdsceuenily detined snd or superseded by the Order, the futare {miidu:z"’ci»‘:wiog avwdlf he
sespansible for installmg the driveway aprons, sidowalk and hadseaping on adiaeont b then
it that ey wre constructing homes on, Plus, the futire builder adevedoper is raspoansgihhe for
proteching the vompleted public and private improvements from dummages white they are
complating thetv work, In i clfort o further clarity the work that must be completed byt
Astare buikderGeveloper in Clublands Phase T Subdivision, SR Cieoup, fne. Bias propared the Hss
below. The Hsr was mken from the Acceptance Review No. 1 letter propared By SEC dated
Davenbor 200, 2007

The Tufure hm’ldc1'*{1&*\';:10;1&;1' must subrmt Record Drawings of the fol grading and
overiand How routes Ul ocated onund adjacent o the Tos | by v}t the Village for
reviovy annreval prier o the cocupancy permit being issued for that home. The e reeard
dmmnm will alfew the Vitlage to verity fhat the finished 1ot arading end averiang 1oy
OGS arc cosstraction i aecordance with the approved engine serihg plans,

. The future butider developer must waintain the sites, meluding the crosion controd
mesures Ty thale Lot grading and averland fow roies (f located on and a JEcent (vt
ot they own) enes they fake ownership until the work iy completod and accepted by (he
ARHFE w.

I The Bature builder'developer raust complote the Tot grading work i aceordancy with the
approved engmeeriag plans (overland fow roules. no nonding, eie). 14 ity stagtore
e ot requires adjustment in elevation in ordee to confor o the Gnisihed {o: grading.
thin thye 'hnm builderrdeveloper will adiust the structure onee the Sl srading work is
completad, The firare builder'developer will have the ¢ responsibilivy of maintiiging their
lows frmowing, elpan up debris, crosion control, cted until the home constriction is
compieted and the Improvements accepted by the Village,

IV, The 1 e buiiderdeveloper will be responsible for installing alb mussinyg landscaping,

; ummnmd landscoping on their Jots und guarantee all Jdtid‘»td{m"? wstablod i the
I\i"\\ cojacent (front o side vands) to their ot for a period ol one TH vear alter the waork
s sceepted by the Vitlage Board. Additionally, the frure builder-devel n;m will by
““\Nsmhi\ for vemoving the asphalt parking Lot grading Lots 4, 10212 i sevordanee
wilh the approved englneering plans,

nr

.

The fanare butlder-developer is tesponsible for instailing the sidewalk on Lots 1<+,




F.xhibit C

VI The future builder/developur is respansible for instalting ali new driveway aprons for
thuir tots,

VIL The futare builderideveloper may apply for his own TEPA NOT for the lots that ke s

DUTChRs g,

VI The futre builderdeveloper will be respomnsibie for submitting the Gnal docuents (1331
of Sate, Meinlenance Guarantee, ete) for the public improverwenis (sidewalks, deivews \

aprens, andseaping, ¢1g) copstructed/icompleted on and adjaeent tw ther o,

Foe fatire builder/developer of the vacant lots will be rasponsibie for proecting the exiting
public {rondways, utilitios, sidewalks. cted und private Jandseaping, detention busins. feners, on
smprevements and shall make good any damage eatsed o these properties. The fature
buildisddeveloper may submit an irrevocable loter of credit, cash bond or surety bond w the
Village of Antloch as a performanee puaranree for completing the installation of the public
improvemnents instativd (sidewniks, landscaping, erosion control vle.) for their Jots and for
protecting e exiating improvements, if required by any applicable development agreenzont,
statie, ordinanee, or otherwise, Once the work i uctepted by the Village Board, the futore
builder doveloper will rephice the performance gnarantee with o maiyicnance HUATAN LG

acvendanee with the Village Ordinances and procedures,

Laa




Exhibit D




Fxhibin 1

The Future Builders Responsibility Report - Clublands Pihase i1

T Ritare buliderdes efoper whe will purchase the Clublands Phase 1 Subdivision will have 1o
fnish constracting the buprovements and homes in accordance with 1he approved Enginvernin
Plans, Viliag s, and Agreemenis that were in place with Neumann Homes, As
subsequently defined and or superseded by this Order, the future builder deveinper will be
responsible S e installation of sidewalks. drivew ay aprong, and lamdscaping on and adiacen
o thenr fods. The futare bullder developer is responsible for praiecting the compioted public and
privats improvements from damases while they are completing thewr work. hean offort o further
vt svork that mast be comploted by the Tutere builderidove elener m Ulublands Phuse B

subdivision, SRC Group, Ine. has ;mmmi the Hst below. The Bist was taken from the Clubiands
f"ﬂn-w - hupt.t%u Roview No. 1 letter prepared by SEC Gated December 20, 2007, The jots
tor which the fuure buitder/developer will he responsible are lots 158164, 171 and (74,

d

¢ Lu 1

Lo The future builder developer muust subnat Recurd Digwis s of the ket arasding und

fomd Tow rostes G focated on and acljacent to the b they owi o the Wit for
review approval prior e the oecupancy permit being fssued tor that heire, The ot rocord
ddrawings il aliow the Village w verlty tha the finished for grading and averkd How
Tty are sonstiuetion maceordaiee with the approved engineering plans.,

[RAY

L The fuere builderdoveluper most maintain the sites, tneiwding erosion control measirs,
for their Jot grading and overland fow routes (i} locm&,d on and adjacent to the lol they
SWiL from the time they purchase the p property until their work 1s comploted and aceopivd
by the Villeae Board,

I The fitore builder duwiw;wr must complete the ot grading work in acoordumee with !
approved eingineering plans (overland Mow rowes, no nonding, otel oty ~‘irm~ HI
Wi & ol reguites dtllll‘wltllﬂ'll in elovation in order Lo contorm 1o the {Inished ot gradis
then the Fatwre imlIdwdr_wdopur will adjust the strugture oncs the (inal grading worl
mmpl led. The futire builder *duclupm wilt have the responsibilivy of mainain ter
wis (mowing. cloen up debris, crosion contral, ete} unti the hone construction s
compiaied and the improvements accepted by ihe Vitlage Bourd.

IV The futuwe builder devaloper will be responsible for | instatiing all missing landscaping,
capairing d mmmi tandscaping on their Tots (Lots 138102 160, 171 and 174 and
PAMA ST fdseaping in the ROW adiacent ¢frond or side wunds) o these Jotyg for
periof of | vear alter the improvements are aceepted by the Vitlage Bourd

Vo The future builder-developer is respunsible for mstalling the sidewalk on Lots 1380167
unct 174

Pha futurs buiider/developer is responsible For mstalling alf new driveway aprons for

r.a




Fxhibit D

VL The futere bailderdeveloper must apply for his own IEPA NOT for the lots i be i
murchasing,

VL The fnere builder’developer will be responsible for subroitting the Gnal documoents (1457
of Sule, Manienanee Guaranice. ete) for the public improvermenty (sidewatks, drivews v
apronty, landscaming, vig) constructed/completed on and adjacont o tieir T 1o the
Wl g,

e Tenre builderdeveloper of the vacant Lots will bo responsible for protecting the exiting
pubize froadwivs, utitities, sidewalks, oic) and private {(landscaping, detention hasins. fences, st
maprovements and sihall make good any damage caused to these propertics. The fubre
builderdevetoper mayv submil an irrevocable lotter ol credit, cash bond or surety bond (o the
Village of Antioch as a performance guarantee for completing the installation of the Tsublic
mproversems nsiatled {sidowalks, fandseaping. erosion contral ete. ) for their vavant lots gnc o
protecting the existing improvements, it required by any applicabic ifuveloprment agrecmuent,
statute, oramanye or otherwise. Onee the work is aceeprod by the Village Board. the future
paderdeveloper will replace the performanes guarantee with o maintenance SHTnicy in
secordanee with the Village Ordinanees and procedures,




Exhibit E




Exibit b

The Future Builders Responsibility Report ~ Clublands Phase T East

Sinee thts suldivision s only partially wass graded and constructed, ihe farure iilder dov cuper
who parchases e Chabilunds Phase 11 Eost Subdivision will have w figish constructing thie
mprovenisnts i aecordance with the approved Fogineering Plans, Village Ordinances, and
Agrevmenls that were moplace with Neumans Homes. As subsegirently delined and or

sl d by iy Qrder, the Tutire buildersdeveloper s responsible for compicting the sile mass
sruding. asstaliation of the rermaining subdivision improvemeants amd for instafiiee the Miller
Road O S5te Swrm Sewer Gutlet, conditioned upon the obligation. i anyv. of the Grub Sciwol
Drasnage District securing necessary vasements w the extent required pursuant o e settlomen
aied developricnt agresments, The future butlderrdeveloper is rasponsible for srotecting the
comploted public and private mprovements from damages while they are completing ther work.
v an cBort o further clarily the work that must be completed by the Fature butlderdeveioper in
Clublands Phose HI Bast Subidivision, ST !

C Grrop, [oe, has prepared the Hst below, The hstwie
taken Jrom the Ulublands Phase B East - Aceeplance Roview N { etter propared by SFC

Jdated Deeember 20, 2007,

Lo The future buddordeveloper must submit Record Diwings of the improvenents they
consint, mchading but nol Hrted to undereround wilities, detention busin volumes
S Additionallv, the record drawings for lot grading and overfand ow roores (1 o
arrand adjaecnt to the ot tey own) must by subnuited to the Village for roviewappros!
prioy t the eoeupaney permit being issues for that home., The 1ot record drawings will
allow the Viltage to verily that the Tmshed Tot grading and overtand How romes are
constraeled inaccordanee with the approved engincering plans.

§

He e Nutere builderdeveloper must maimtain the sites, inchuding crosion conirol, from
therr purchase date untl their work is completed und aceepied by the Villags Board. Thus
ty o permt respirement for Lake Coumy SMC, ACOE, and TRPA: and the fack of
maintenance arul upkeep of the croson controf measures witl reselt in fines per the

NCTITLIY,

Hi Sinec the subdivision is only partiadly mass graded and covstrucied, the future
builderdoveloper must complere the subklivision and ot grading work i accordancs with
the approved engineering plans. 1Cis our understarding that Neumznn Homes intended
Glitize the oxeess structural B material wnd topsoil (including the stockpiles) from Plase
I Easi o complere the mass grading of Clublands Phase 1V, The future
sutlderdoveloper of Clublands Phose 11T Fast must instat] the Miller Boad OFSie Stom
Sewer Dutlen unfess the developer of Clublands Phase IV undertakes that responsibility
with st aveeptable surety bond, The future builderdeveloper will bave the responsibiiity
sl muaintaining their Jots {mowing, clean up debris, crosion conteol, ctes unti! the hume
construcion is comploted and the improvements aceepted by the Village Board,




el

IX.

Lxhibic ¥
The futare aider/developer must Gansh constructing Detention Basie 4 and covsiruet the
remEinng slormwaier basing as shown on the approved engmoecrmy plans, Additonaliy.
the future buildecdevetoper of Clublands Phase 11 East must constret the Mitler Roud
CaT S Sor Sewer uilesy the developer of Clublands Phase TV sndertakes tha
responaitiiily with an aeceptable surcly bond,

The tuture hullderdeveloper will be responsible for installing all missing fandscaping por

the approved landscaping plan (including tot lors), repairing dmnaged landsoaping oo ol
loats oxeept H37-047 and 663-066. Addittonally, the future buitder-diveloper mus:
guaraniee il landseapimg in the ROW adjacoent (Front or side vards fo these o fora

neriod of Tyear after the improvements are aceepted by the Village Board.

The fture builderideveloper must complete the wstaliation of thy remaining saniary
sewer syatems, repair any deficiencizs and guavantes the work i ascerdanee with Viltuw
erdiganess wud procedures ance the Improvemenls are accepted by the Village Board.

Phe futore builderdevetoper of Phase T East must instadl the Miller Road O Sire storm
Sewerniess the developer of Clublunds Phase IV undertakes st responsibiine with an
aceeprabie surety bond, Additionaily, the futtre builder/dey cloper must compicrs the
mstaliatios: of the remaining storm sewer sysiom, repair any deflciencies and guaranice
the wark i accordance with Village ordinances and procedures once the improvements
are necepdad by the Vitlage Board,

¢ hutlderdeveloper must compleote the installation of the remaining water muin
distvibution systom, repair any deticiencios and guarantee the work in aceordance with
Village ordinances and procedures onee the improvements are accepted by the Viltage

Bourd.
The furure butider-developer will be responsible for completing 'maintaining strect
sipngs work on Forest Ridge Prive, Tall Oaks Drive, Crescem Drive, Nevway Lane,
and tlevitage Oeks, until the improvements are aceepted by the Village Bowrd,

The tuture builder/developer will be responsible for comploting e fnstallatdon of the
remnaining street lights in Clublands Phose U3 Fast Subdivision, repatr any duiteicpeies
and guarantos the work i accordanes with Village ordmances and procodures once the
tmprovements are seeepted by the Villuge Board.

The future builderileycioper will be esponsible for completing and maintaining the
rermirang roads (Forest Ridge Drve, Tall Ouks Deive, Crescent Dinve, Neuway Lane.
andd Hurttuge Ouks) includiog removing/replacing dumaged pavement and curb on the
PRI streets prior to mstatiing the sarfaes course of asphalt.

St




xil,

XY

NV

Exhtbit E

(i thur gurety repairs the damaged existing sidewalks, all olher sidewalls vl be
irstalied and maintained by the futiure builder/developer untii the improverents are
aoceped Dy the Village Bourd.

The Amere builder/developer s responsible for istadling @} new drivewsy aprotis {of
their lots,

The twnare buiider/developor may apply for his own TEPA NOT for the areas that ha (3

purchasing,

Tiwe fuwre puttder developer must istall all other pavement markings onge they Hhe
sureiv] install the surfiace course of asphalt on the rouds,

The future builder developer will be responsible for submitting the finad dociments (RN
ol ok, Minntenance Guarantee, ete) for the public improvemenss (sidewalie, drivesay
aprons, fandscaping, ele conatructedicomploted on and adjacent o their lows w the
Villuee,

The future builder'developer of the vacant lot will be responsible for protecting the exiting
public {roadways, witines, sidewalks, o) and private (landscaping, detention bastis, funces. ctoy
mmprovemenis sl shall wake good any damage coused w these propertics. The futere
builder/deyveioper may submit an irrevocable letter of credit, cash bond or surcty bond 10 the
Village of Antioch as o performance guarantee lor completing the instsliation of the public
ipeovserenis fnstadjed (sidewalks, landscaping, erosion contrel ste ) and fr protegiing thy
cxisting impravements, H required by any applicahle development agreement, stalure, ondinanes
aor ciliarwise, Onee the work is aceepted by the Village Bourd, the future butider devatoper wili
sepluce the performance guarantee with 3 mainteninee guarantos in aecordanes with the Vidagy

Ohsdinanees and procadures,




Exhibit F




Fxhibit ¥

The Fatare Builders Resnonpsibility Report — Cleblands Chase T11 West

Fhe 111!'&1""‘ brtiderdovelopoer who will purchase the Clublands Phase 1T West Subdivision wiil
vt Beish consiraeting the improvements and homes in sccordanes with the approved
Engmacrig Plans, Village Ochinances, aud Agreements that were in place with Newmang
Homes, As subsequently defined and or superseded by the Order, the fnture builderdevelopey
witl be responsibic for the installation of sidewalks, driveway aprons and landseaping on and
adfjaevmt W thetr fots, The finure builderdeveloper s responsibie {or protecting the completed
public aind privawe improvements fron dainages while they are completing thetr work. fran
erfort o further elarify the work that must be completed by the fiure buliderrdeveloper in
Cluhlands Phase I West Sabdivision, SEC Group, Tae. has prepared the list below. The fist was
takar fron the Clublands Phase T West - Acceptanee Review Noo 1 letier propared by SEC

gired Docember 200 2007,

Lo The st bublderdeveloper must subanit Record Dravwings of the for grading .mai
averbud How routes { located on and wdjacent 1 the Tot they owng o the Village tor
K wmm vpmm] prior w the ogeupaney permit being tssisd for that home, The ot recond
with atow the Villuge o v Urllv that the tinished lot prading and overland Gow

rottes are constrocted in accordance with the approved engimecring plats,

Ho The fiiure budlder developer must wadntain the sites, inchuding croston contral, {or thar
ot grading and overland Gow routes (i lovated on and adjacent w the Tov they own) from
thelr purchose date uptil the work is completed and accepted by the Village Board, This
i pormit requirement for Lake Cotnty SMO, ACOE, and TEPA; and the Lk of
malttenaney and upkeep of the erogion control mcasures will result in fnes per the
eIty

HE The fware builder/doveloper mugt complete the ot grsding work for their los in
geeordunce with the approved engineering plans (overland flow routes, ne pending. ete. ),
fla iy structure on o lot requires adjustment i elevation in order to conform fo the
Frtshed ot graging, then the future boilder/developer will adjust the siructure ones the
final grading work is completed. The futere builderdeveloper will have e
responsibiiity of maintaining their Jos (mowing, clean up debris, erosion control, aic
until the Bome construction 1x completed and the improverments seeepted by the Village.

B The fusare Buiiderdevetoper will be responsible For fustalling all missing landscapi
repsiring damaged Jandseaping on Tots 198, 210-216, 210, 220, 225-224, 2312236,
3R TOR-2Ta, ZTT DN OH, 27RO 28 2RA, 293-300, A5, 20T, 09304, 14358
S3R-344, 349, 3512353 335360, 3620 and 368, Additonatly, the future builderGe
must gimrantee wfl ndscaping i the ROW adjacent {ront or 2ide vards) 1o these fots for
&operiod of bvear after the fmprovements are accepted by the Village Doard.

VOO




Exhibit ¥

Vo The futire builder/deveioper will be responsible for mstabiing the sidewaik on Loy 210-
6. 219, 225228 231-236, 260-274, 277, 284, 286, 293-303, 303, 307, 309-314, 324-
FR5 AT 358344, 349, 3512353 and 333-360.

V1 The future builder/developer is responsible for instalbing all new driveway aprons [or
thair Lots.

VAL The Qe builder'developer may apply for his own [EPA NOL for the Jots that ke is
parchasing.

VI The [utan Butlder/developor will be responsible for submiting the fivad documents (31
of Sele, Maintenance Guarantee, ete) for the public improvamaents (sidewalks, drivewsy

aprons, bandseaping, ow) constructed completed on and athavcent w their lots to the
Willaue,

Toe future builder/doveloper of the vacant Jols will be responsibiv for protecting the exiving
public {roadways, wtilives. sidewalks, ctey and privide (landscaping, detention basins, fonees, sl
improvements and shall make good any damage caused 0 these properties. The fiore
buttderideveloper mav submit an irrevocable letior of eredit, cash bomd or surety bond w the
Vailage of Antiock as a performance guarantee for completing the instaflaton of the public
mprovements instailed (sidewalks, landscaping, crosion control ete.) and fur prodeeting the
xisting mprovements, i required by any applicable development agreement, stature. ordinenee
o otbiersvize. Onee the work i3 aceepted by the Villuge Board, the future boilder dovaloper will
teplace the perfbrmanes guarantee with g maintenane e glarantes m accordunee with the Viliage
Ordingnees aid procedures.




	1 -12-20-10 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	III. ROLL CALL


